
Regular Board Meeting 
Mission Vista Academy 

June 8, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
43517 Ridge Park Drive, #100 

Temecula, CA 92590 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comments

3. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes

4. Approval of Instructional Funds Policy

5. Approval of Access to the Charter School Documents Policy

6. Approval of Anti-Harassment Policy

7. Approval of FERPA Directory Policy and Opt-out Notice Policy

8. Approval of Homeless Education Policy

9. Approval of Information Technology Policy and Procedures

10. Approval of Identification of Individuals for 504 Policy

11. Approval of Identification of Individuals for Special Education Policy

12. Approval of Individual Education Program Policy

13. Approval of Individual Education Program Administrative Regulation

14. Approval of Parent-Student Technology Use Policy

15. Approval of Procedural Safeguards and Complaint Policy

16. Approval of Procedural Safeguards and Complaint Administrative Regulation

17. Approval of Staff Information Technology Use Policy

18. Approval of Suicide Prevention Policy

19. Approval of Suspension and Expulsion Policy

20. Approval of Teacher Certification Policy

21. Approval of The Charter School Documents Policy

22. Approval of Transportation for Students with Disabilities Policy

23. Approval of Universal Complaint Policy

24. Approval of Universal Complaint Administrative Regulation

25. Approval of Whistleblower Policy 

MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
 43517 Ridge Park Drive #100, Temecula, California 92590                                                               
 Phone (951) 395-8940  *  Fax (951) 395-8941

Page 1 of 187



26. Approval of Education Records and Student Information  

27. Approval of Immigration Enforcement Policy 

28. Approval of Immigration Enforcement Policy Related to the Deportation of Family 

Members 

29. Approval of Anti-Nepotism Policy 

30. Approval of Policy Re Inconsistent, Incompatible or Conflicting Employment, 

Activity or Enterprise by School Personnel 

31. Approval of Policy Confirming No Funds or Thing of Value to Students, Parents or 

Guardians 

32. Approval of Conflict of Interest Code 

33. Approval of 2019 – 2020 Budgets 

34. Approval of Board Resolution to Approve the Principals Salary and Supplemental 

Benefits   

35. Approval of District Office Service Agreements 

36. Approval of Board Resolution to Approve Employee Higher Education Scholarships 

37. Closed Session -  § 54957 

38. Report out of Closed Session  

39. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public comment rules:  Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items.  Please fill out a yellow 
card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask 
that comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible 
may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  Inspire Charter Schools Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting 
process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the 
public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 818-207-3837 at least 48 hours before the scheduled board 
meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you.  (Government Code § 54954.2; Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132 

 
 Page 2 of 187



 MISSION VISTA ACADEMY 
 43517 Ridge Park Dr #100, Temecula, California 92590

Phone (951) 395-8940  *  Fax (951) 395-8941  

Special Board Meeting - Mission Vista Academy 
February 13, 2019 - 7:00 pm - 7:30 pm 
43517 Ridge Park Drive # 100 
Temecula, CA 92590 

Attendance: Kacie Christiansen and Brigette Garcia 
Absent: Janet Evans 
Also Present: Nick Nichols, Kimmi Buzzard, Amy Davis, and Bryanna Brossman. 

Call to Order: 
Kacie Christiansen called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

Public Comments: 
None 

Approval of Board Resolution to Approve and Adopt: 
a. Articles of Incorporation
b. Bylaws
c. Election of Officers
d. Fiscal Year End
e. Depository
f. Authority to Transact Business
g. Tax-Exempt Status and Charitable Solicitation
h. Conflict of Interest Policy

Kacie Christiansen motioned to approve the of Board Resolution with the correction of
the spelling of Kacie Christinasen. Brigette Garcia seconded.
-Unanimous

Adjournment: 
Kacie Christiansen motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:08 pm. Brigette Garcia s econded. 
-Unanimous

Prepared By: 

Bryanna Brossman 

Page 3 of 187



   

 

 

 

 

Noted By:  

 

 

 

Brigette Garcia  

Board Secretary  

 
 
 
 

 
Page 4 of 187



 MISSION VISTA ACADEMY 
 43517 Ridge Park Dr #100, Temecula, California 92590    
      Phone (951) 395-8940  *  Fax (951) 395-8941  
 

Special Board Meeting - Mission Vista Academy 
February 26, 2019 - 8:30 pm - 8:50 pm 
43517 Ridge Park Drive # 100 
Temecula, CA 92590 
 
Attendance: Kacie Christiansen and Janet Evans 
Absent: Brigette Garcia 
Also Present: Nick Nichols, Kimmi Buzzard, Amy Davis, and Bryanna Brossman.  
 
 
Call to Order:  

Kacie Christiansen called the meeting to order at 8:31 pm.  
 
Public Comments:  

None 
 
Approval of Ratification of the Charter Petition 

Kacie Christiansen motioned to approve the Ratification of the Charter Petition. Janet Evans 
seconded.  
-Unanimous 

 
Approval of the MOU with Beaumont Unified School District  

 Janet Evans motioned to approve the MOU with Beaumont Unified School District.  Kacie 
Christiansen seconded.  
-Unanimous 

 
Adjournment:  

Kacie Christiansen motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 pm.  Janet Evans seconded.   
-Unanimous 

 

Prepared By:  

Bryanna Brossman 

 

 

Noted By:  

 

 

Brigette Garcia  

Board Secretary  

 
Page 5 of 187



 MISSION VISTA ACADEMY 
 43517 Ridge Park Dr #100, Temecula, California 92590                                                                
      Phone (951) 395-8940  *  Fax (951) 395-8941  
 
 
 

Special Board Meeting - Mission Vista Academy
April 18, 2019 – 4:30 pm – 5:00 pm  
43517 Ridge Park Drive # 100 
Temecula, CA 92590 
 
Attendance: Kacie Christiansen, Brigette Garcia, Janet Evans 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Dr. Nick Nichols, Kimmi Buzzard, Bryanna Brossman, Dr. Ed Robillard 
 
 
Call to Order:  
 Kacie Christiansen called the meeting to order at 4:34 pm.  
 
 
Public Comments:  
 None 
 
 
Approval of Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure as a Public Agency: 

Kacie Christiansen motioned to approve the Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure as a Public 
Agency. Brigette Garcia seconded. 
-Unanimous 
 
 

Approval of SELPA Assurances: 
 Kacie Christiansen motioned to approve the SELPA Assurances. Brigette Garcia seconded. 
 -Unanimous 
 
 
Approval of SELPA Participation Agreement: 

Kacie Christiansen motioned to approve the SELPA Participation Agreement. Brigette Garcia 
seconded. 

 -Unanimous 
 
 
Adjournment:  

Kacie Christiansen motioned to adjourn the meeting at 4:41 pm. Brigette Garcia seconded.   
-Unanimous 

 
 
Prepared By:  
Bryanna Brossman 
 
 
 
 
 Page 6 of 187



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 
Noted By:  
 
 
 
Brigette Garcia  
Board Secretary  
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 187



 

 
 
 
 

Curriculum and Enrichment Funds Policy 

Mission Vista Academy is committed to giving students the same opportunities that are offered at 
non-charter district schools. District schools often provide opportunities for music, art, sports, field 
trips, and other ways to extend the learning experience. 

 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Mission Vista 
Academy Curriculum and Enrichment Funds Policy is to accomplish the following: 

1. Establish Assurances & Procedural Safeguards 
2. Determine Specific Funding Amount 
3. Clarify What Funds Can Be Used For 
4. Clarify When Funds Can Be Used 
5. Identify Non-Consumable Category Groups 
6. Authorize Establishment of Lending Libraries 

 
1. Establish Assurances & Procedural Safeguards: The school will use a system with multiple 

checks and internal controls to ensure all instructional funds are utilized appropriately and 
lawfully. 
Ordering Process: 

i. Parent requests curriculum, service/class, and or product through the Mission Vista 
Academy Enrichment Centre (in-house, online ordering system). 

ii. Teacher consistent with Mission Vista Academy’s policies and procedures reviews 
and determines whether or not the requested item has appropriate educational value 
and prior to approval, will ensure the service or product is nonsectarian in nature in 
accordance with Ed. Code 47605(d)(1), which states, “a charter school shall be 
nonsectarian in its programs, and all other operations”. 

iii. Enrichment staff member also ensures that the requested item is evaluated for 
appropriate educational value and prior to approval, ensures that the service or 
product is nonsectarian in nature in accordance with Ed. Code 47605(d)(1), which 
states, “a charter school shall be nonsectarian in its programs, and all other 
operations”. 

 
2. Determine Specific Funding Amount: The funding amount for the 2016-2017 school year 

will be $2,600 for TK-8th students and $2,800 for 9-12th students. The families’ chosen 
curriculum is deducted from the allocated funding amount. Currently, curriculum costs range 
from $150 to $1,000 per student. This amount may be adjusted at any time at Board discretion 
or based on budget need. 

 
• Clarify What Funds Can Be Used For: Instructional Funds will first be used toward 

the student’s core subjects, technology items, then other enrichment products and 
services, and other appropriate items to extend the learning experience like fieldtrips, 

Page 8 of 187



educational travel and related educational conferences/workshops. Limit on 
educational travel: A student may only use instructional funds to sign up for one 

Page 9 of 187



educational travel experience per school year. Up to $965 of students 
Instructional Funds can be applied to their educational travel experience. Any 
deposits required to hold a student’s spot on an educational travel tour cannot 
be paid using instructional funds. Educational content is all that can be covered 
by instructional funds. Travel costs such as transportation, food and lodging 
cannot be paid using instructional funds. Parents or guardians planning to travel 
with their student must pay 100% of their travel and tour costs. Up to $350 a 
year may be used on parent trainings or workshops that directly support 
students learning. All use of funds must be approved by the student’s 
credentialed teacher consistent with Mission Vista Academy’s policies and 
procedures. 

 
3. Clarify When Funds Can Be Used: Instructional Funds may be used when students 

are in session or when they are not in session. For example, students may extend their 
learning by taking a class on an evening or Saturday outside of the regular instructional 
day. Furthermore, since Mission Vista Academy considers the Instructional Funds as 
encumbered to support the specific student consistent with policies and procedures, 
students are able to utilize these instructional funds during the traditional "summer 
months" and throughout their time at Mission Vista Academy in order to enhance and 
expand innovative learning opportunities helping to minimize the effects of learning 
loss typically seen come fall. Consistent with the practices of many non- charter 
districts supporting student learning or remediation during times when school is not in 
session, is an acceptable use of funds for students. Funds can be transferred between 
siblings enrolled at Mission Vista Academy and co-used with administrative approval. 
 

4. Identify Non-Consumable Category Groups: All items in the following categories 
are considered non-consumable and must be returned as school property: 

i. Technology, Electronics, and Media (CDs/DVDs) 
ii. Textbooks and Teacher Manuals 
iii. Science Equipment 
iv. Musical Equipment 
v. Games and Puzzles 

 
5. Authorize Establishment of Lending Libraries: As a general benefit to ALL Mission 

Vista Academy families, non-consumables other than technology that are returned will 
be available for borrowing in our newly established Lending Libraries to be located 
within our current offices. 
 

 

Page 10 of 187



 
 
 
 

Access to The Charter School Documents Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy recognizes the right of citizens to have access to public records of the 
Charter School. The Board intends the Charter School to provide any person reasonable access to 
the public records of the Charter School during normal business hours and within the requirements 
of law. Public access shall not be given to records listed as exempt from public disclosure in the 
California Public Records Act and other state or federal law. 
  
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Access to the Charter 
School Documents Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Procedures for Responding to a Public Records Act 
2. Establish the Ability to Charge for the Cost of Copies 
3. Identify How to Maintain Security of the Charter School’s Documents  

 
1. Public Records Act: In response to a public records request, the Executive Director or 

designee shall make reasonable efforts to locate the requested records, including, but not 
limited to, any electronic communication substantively related to the records, such as email, 
text messages, instant messages, and other electronic communications, regardless of whether 
they are transmitted through the Charter School’s-provided device or account or through an 
employee's or Board member's personal device or account. 
 

2. Charging for the Cost of Copies: The Charter School may charge for copies of public records 
or other materials requested by individuals or groups.  The charge shall be based on actual 
costs of duplication, as determined by the Executive Director or designee and as specified in 
administrative regulation. 

 
3. Security of The Charter School’s Documents: In order to help maintain the security of the 

Charter School’s records, members of the public granted access shall examine records in the 
presence of a charter school staff member. 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 187



 
 
 
 

Anti–Harassment / Discrimination / Intimidation / 
Bullying / Retaliation Policy 

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to ensuring a professional work and learning environment 
without discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying on the basis of race, religious creed 
(including religious dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (including language use 
restrictions), immigration status, citizenship status, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, 
breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy or childbirth), gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military and veteran status, or association with a person 
or group with one or more of the aforementioned characteristics or any other legally protected 
category. Mission Vista Academy prohibits any such discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying.  
 

The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Anti–
Harassment/Discrimination/Intimidation/Bullying/ Retaliation Policy is to accomplish the 
following:    

 

1. Define Harassment, Discrimination, Intimidation, and Bullying 
2. Identify Who the Policy Applies to 
3. Identify Where the Policy Applies  
4. Establish the Responsibility of Reporting  
5. Identify Reporting Procedures 
6. Identify Investigation/Complaint Procedures 
7. Identify the Consequences of Retaliation  
8. Outline the Protection of Individuals with Immigration Status 
9. Outline the Procedures for Notifying Parents of Their Children’s Right to a Free Public 

Education, Regardless of Immigration Status or Religious Beliefs 
 

1. Definitions:  
• Harassment:  Harassment is unwelcome verbal or physical conduct prohibited by law 

directed toward, or differential treatment of, a student or staff member because of his/her 
membership (or perceived membership) in any protected group or on any other prohibited 
basis.  The harasser can be a student, a School official or employee, or someone who is not 
an employee of the School, such as a vendor or parent. Examples of such conduct include, 
but are not limited to:   

Page 12 of 187



o Offensive or degrading remarks, verbal abuse, or other hostile behavior such as 
insulting, teasing, mocking, name calling, degrading, or ridiculing another person 
or group 

o Racial slurs, derogatory remarks about a person’s accent, or display of racially 
offensive symbols 

o Unwelcome or inappropriate physical contact, comments, questions, advances, 
jokes epithets or demands 

o Physical assault or stalking 
o Displays or electronic transmission of derogatory, demeaning or hostile materials 

or statements 
o Graphic and written offensive or derogatory statements, which may include use of 

cell phones or the Internet 
 
Harassment does not have to include intent to harm, be directed at a specific target or 
involve repeated incidents.  Harassment creates a hostile environment when the conduct is 
sufficiently severe, pervasive or persistent so as to interfere with or limit a student’s ability 
to participate in or benefit from the services, activities or opportunities offered by the 
School.   

 

• Sexual Harassment:  Sexual harassment is a form of harassment based on sex, including 
sexual harassment, gender harassment and harassment based on pregnancy, childbirth or 
related medical conditions.  It generally involves unwanted sexual advances, or visual, 
verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature.  This definition includes many forms of 
offensive behavior and includes gender–based harassment of a person of the same sex as 
the harasser.  The following is a partial list of violations: 

 

o Unwanted sexual advances 
o Offering educational benefits in exchange for sexual favors 
o Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances 
o Visual conduct:  Leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of suggestive objects 

or pictures, cartoons or posters 
o Verbal conduct:  Making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs and jokes 
o Verbal sexual advances or propositions 
o Verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic verbal commentaries about an individual’s 

body, sexually degrading words used to describe an individual, suggestive or 
obscene letters, notes or invitations 

o Physical conduct:  Touching, assault, impeding or blocking movements 
 

• Intimidation:  Intimidation includes adverse actions intended to fill another with fear, to 
overawe or cow, as through force of personality or by superior display of wealth, talent, 
etc., or to force another into or deter from some action by inducing fear.  
 

• Bullying:  Bullying may take place in a variety of hostile acts that are carried out repeatedly 
over time.  The acts involve a real or perceived imbalance of power, with the more powerful 
child or group attacking those who are less powerful.  It may be physical (hitting, kicking, 
spitting, pushing), verbal (taunting, malicious teasing, name calling, threatening), or 
psychological (spreading rumors, manipulating social relationships, or promoting social 

Page 13 of 187



exclusion, extortion or intimidation).  Bullying is any severe or pervasive action or conduct 
directed toward one or more students that have the effect of one or more of the following:  
1) places a reasonable student in fear of harm to that student’s person or property; 2) causes 
a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or her physical 
or mental health; 3) causes a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with 
his or her academic performance; 4) causes a reasonable student to experience interference 
with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities or privileges 
provided by the School. 
 
Other types of bullying: 

o Sexual bullying includes many of the actions typical of bullying behavior with the 
added actions of exhibitionism, voyeurism, sexual propositioning, sexual 
harassment and sexual abuse (touching, physical contact, sexual assault). 

o Bias or hate–motivated bullying is a basic bias against or hate for a person or group.  
Examples include taunting one’s race, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, 
or physical or mental disabilities.  The bullying behavior may also be aggressive, 
antagonistic, and assaultive. 

o Hazing is a form of aggressive behavior that usually involves intimidation and 
humiliation during an initiation for a student organization or body, club, group or 
sports team.  It may involve conduct that is likely to cause serious bodily injury or 
personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, 
current or prospective pupil.  Hazing does not include athletic events or school–
sanctioned events.  

o Cyberbullying involves bullying conduct that is created or transmitted by means of 
an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone 
or other wireless communication device, computer or pager communicating any of 
the following:  1) a message, text, sound or image; 2) a post on a social network 
Internet Web site, including a “Burn Page,” an impersonation of another student, 
and a false profile. 

 
• Retaliation:  Retaliation is any adverse action taken against a student because he or she 

filed a charge of harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying complaint to the 
School or another agency or participated in an investigation about the same (such as an 
internal investigation or lawsuit), including as a witness.  Retaliation also includes adverse 
action taken against someone who is associated with the individual opposing the perceived 
harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying.   

 

2. Who the Policy Applies to: It shall be a violation of this policy for any student, teacher, 
administrator or other employee of Mission Vista Academy to discriminate against, harass, 
intimidate or bully another student, teacher, administrator, other employee or anyone 
associated with Mission Vista Academy through conduct or communication. This policy 
applies to all applicants and employees, whether related to conduct engaged in by fellow 
employees or someone not directly connected to Mission Vista Academy (e.g. an outside 
vendor, consultant or customer). 

 

Page 14 of 187



3. Where the Policy Applies: Conduct prohibited by these policies is unacceptable in the 
workplace and in any work–related setting outside the workplace, such as during business or 
field trips, meetings and business or school–related social events.  

 
4. Responsibility: All Mission Vista Academy employees have a responsibility for keeping our 

work environment free of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying.  
 
5. Reporting: Mission Vista Academy encourages reporting of all perceived incidents of 

discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, or retaliation, regardless of the offender’s 
identity or position. Individuals who believe that they have been the victims of such conduct 
should discuss their concerns with their immediate supervisor, the Executive Director, or the 
Deputy Executive Director. In addition, Mission Vista Academy encourages individuals who 
believe they are being subjected to such conduct to promptly advise the offender that his or her 
behavior is unwelcome and request that it be discontinued. Often this action alone will resolve 
the problem. Mission Vista Academy recognizes, however, that an individual may prefer to 
pursue the matter through formal complaint procedures. Every effort will be made to keep such 
reports as confidential as possible, although it is understood that an investigation will normally 
require the involvement of third parties. Mission Vista Academy is serious about enforcing its 
policy against harassment; however, Mission Vista Academy cannot resolve a harassment 
problem that it does not know about. Therefore, employees are responsible for bringing any 
such problems to Mission Vista Academy’s attention so it can take whatever steps are 
necessary to correct the problems.  

 
6. Investigation/Complaint Procedure: All complaints of harassment or discrimination will be 

promptly investigated. If the investigation substantiates the accusations, the appropriate 
corrective action will be taken. This may include, but not be limited to, reprimand, suspension 
or dismissal, depending on the nature and severity of the offense. Appropriate action will also 
be taken in the event the accusations are intentionally false or malicious in intent.  

 
Individuals who believe they have been the victims of conduct prohibited by this policy 
statement or believe they have witnessed such conduct should discuss their concerns with their 
immediate supervisor, the Executive Director, or the Deputy Executive Director. Mission Vista 
Academy encourages the prompt reporting of complaints or concerns so that rapid and 
appropriate remedial action can be taken before relationships become irreparably strained. 
Therefore, while no fixed reporting period has been established, early reporting and 
intervention have proven to be the most effective method of resolving actual or perceived 
incidents of harassment.  
 
Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be investigated 
promptly. The investigation may include individual interviews with the parties involved and, 
where necessary, with individuals who may have observed the alleged conduct or may have 
other relevant knowledge. Confidentiality will be maintained throughout the investigatory 
process to the extent consistent with adequate investigation methods and appropriate corrective 
actions. Misconduct constituting harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with 
appropriately. Responsive action may include, for example, training, referral to counseling 
and/or disciplinary action such as warning, reprimand, withholding of a promotion or pay 
increase, reassignment, temporary suspension without pay or termination, as Mission Vista 
Academy believes appropriate under the circumstances. Willful false and malicious complaints 
of harassment, discrimination or retaliation may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.  

Page 15 of 187



 
7. Consequences for Retaliation: Retaliation against an individual who has a complaint or has 

formally reported discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or has participated in 
an investigation of such a complaint is a serious violation of this policy and, like 
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or retaliation itself, will be subject to disciplinary 
action. Acts of retaliation should be reported immediately and will be promptly investigated 
and addressed.  
 

8. Immigration Status: If the Charter School possesses information that could indicate 
immigration status, citizenship status or national origin information, the School shall not use 
the acquired information to discriminate against any students or families or bar children from 
enrolling in or attending school.  If parents or guardians choose not to provide information that 
could indicate their or their children’s immigration status, citizenship status or national origin 
information, the School shall not use such actions as a basis to discriminate against any students 
or families or bar children from enrolling or attending school.   
 
Each year, the School shall educate students about the negative impact of bullying other 
students based on their actual or perceived immigration status or their religious beliefs or 
customs.  The School shall also train teachers, staff and personnel to ensure that they are aware 
of their legal duty to take reasonable steps to eliminate a hostile environment and respond to 
any incidents of harassment based on the actual or perceived characteristics noted above.  Such 
training shall provide School personnel with the skills to do the following: 
 

• Discuss the varying immigration experiences among members of the student body and 
school community; 

• Discuss bullying–prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize 
the behavior and characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims; 

• Identify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior; 
• Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed; and  
• Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances 

of criminal behavior. 
 

9. Parental Notification: Each year, the School shall notify parents and guardians of their 
children’s right to a free public education, regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs.  
This information shall include information related to the “Know Your Rights” immigration 
enforcement established by the California Attorney General.  The School shall also inform 
students who are the victims of hate crimes of their right to report such crimes. 

 
 

Page 16 of 187



 
 
 
 

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
Directory Information Policy and “Opt-Out” Notice 

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed ensuring that the Charter School complies with the Family 
Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the disclosure of directory information.  
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Family Educational 
Rights and Privacy Act Directory Information Policy and “Opt-Out” Notice is to accomplish the 
following:    
 

1. Establish the Release of Directory Information  
2. Define Directory Information  
3. Identify the “Opt-Out” Notice Procedure 

  
1. Release of Directory Information: “Directory information,” which is defined as set forth 

below, may be released to requestors in limited circumstances by the Charter School without 
additional notice to parents/guardians unless the parent/guardian “opts out” of such 
disclosures, in writing. 
 
State and federal law allow directory information to be disclosed to any requestors, except 
those who intend to use the information for commercial purposes.  However, the Charter 
School ’s policy is to not release directory information to any requestor, for any purpose, 
without specific prior parent/guardian consent in each situation, EXCEPT the Charter School 
will release such information to requestors that engage in political advocacy, lobbying, or 
information dissemination related to California charter schools. 
 

2. Definition of Directory Information: Mission Vista Academy has designated the following 
information as directory information: 
 

• Parents’/guardians’ names 
 

• Address 
 
• Electronic mail address 
 
• Dates of attendance 
 

Page 17 of 187



• Degrees, honors, and awards received; and 
 
• The most recent educational agency or institution attended 

 

3. “Opt-Out” Notice: If a parent/guardian does not want the Charter School to disclose the 
parent/guardian’s contact and other directory information from his/her child’s records to such 
persons or entities without the parent/guardian’s prior written consent, the parent/guardian 
must notify the Charter School in writing within two weeks of receipt of this policy. 

 
 
 

Page 18 of 187



 
 
 
 

Homeless Education Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to ensuring that homeless students are provided equal access 
to the same free, appropriate public education provided to other children and youth.  Homeless 
students will be given access to the education and other services that such students need to ensure 
that they have an opportunity to meet the same challenging State student academic achievement 
standards to which all students are held.  Homeless students will not be stigmatized or segregated 
in a separate school or program based on the student’s status as homeless. 

The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Homeless Education 
Policy is to accomplish the following:   
 

1. Define Homeless Children and Youth   
2. Identify the Homeless Liaison’s Responsibilities  
3. Explain the Requirements for Enrollment of Homeless Children and Youth  
4. Identify Enrollment Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process  
5. Define Comparable Education Services for Homeless Children and Youth 

 
1. Definitions:  

• Homeless children and youths means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and 
adequate nighttime residence and includes children and youths: 

o Who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic 
hardship or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks (not including 
mobile home parks), or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate 
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned 
in hospitals; 

o Who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not 
designated for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human 
beings; 

o Who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard 
housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings;  

o Who are migratory children who qualify as homeless for purposes of this part 
because the children are living in circumstances described above. 

Page 19 of 187



• Unaccompanied youth includes a youth not in the physical custody of a parent or 
guardian. 

• The Charter School is the school of origin when the student attended the Charter School 
when permanently housed or was last enrolled when the student became homeless.  The 
Charter School will not be considered the school of origin when it is contrary to the wishes 
of a student’s parent(s) or guardian(s), or is not in the best interest of the student.   

In determining the best interest of the child or youth, the School shall:   

o Presume that keeping the child or youth in the school of origin is in the best interest 
of the child or youth, less it is contrary to the request of the child’s or youth’s parent 
or guardian, or unaccompanied youth; 

o Consider student-centered factors related to the child’s or youth’s best interest, 
including factors related to the impact of mobility on achievement, education, 
health, and safety of homeless children and youth, giving priority to the request of 
the child’s or youth’s parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth; 

o If, after conducting the best interest determination based on consideration of the 
presumption identified above and the student-centered factors identified above, the 
School determines that it is not in the child’s or youth’s best interest to attend the 
School, the School shall provide the child’s or youth’s parent or guardian or the 
unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the reasons for its 
determination, in a manner and form understandable to such parent, guardian, or 
unaccompanied youth, including information regarding the right to appeal; and 

o In the case of an unaccompanied youth, ensure that the School liaison assists in 
placement or enrollment decisions, gives priority to the views of such 
unaccompanied youth and provides notice to such youth of the right to appeal.  

A child or youth or unaccompanied youth shall be considered homeless for as long as he/she is in 
a living situation described above. 
 
2. Homeless Liaison Responsibilities: The Charter School’s homeless liaison is required to do 

all of the following: 
 

• Ensure that homeless children and youths are identified by school personnel through 
outreach and coordination activities with other entities and agencies; 

• Ensure that homeless children and youth enroll in, and have a full and equal opportunity 
to succeed in the School; 

• Ensure that homeless children and youths have access to and receive educational 
services for which such families, children, and youth are eligible, including referrals to 
health care services, dental services, mental health and substance abuse services, 
housing services and other appropriate services; 

• Ensure that the parents or guardians of homeless children and youths are informed of 

Page 20 of 187



the educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided 
with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children; 

• Ensure that enrollment disputes are mediated in accordance with the dispute resolution 
process outlined below; 

• Ensure that public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths is 
disseminated in locations frequented by parents or guardians, including schools, 
shelters, public libraries and soup kitchens, in a manner and form understandable to the 
parents and guardians of homeless children and youths, and unaccompanied youths; 

• Ensure that school personnel providing services participate in professional 
development and other technical support as determined appropriate by the State 
Coordinator; 

• Ensure that unaccompanied youths 1) are enrolled in school; 2) have opportunities to 
meet the same challenging State academic standards as the State establishes for other 
children and youth, including implementation of procedures to identify and remove 
barriers that prevent youths from receiving appropriate credit for full or partial 
coursework satisfactorily completed while attending a prior school; and 3) are informed 
of their status as independent students and that the youths may obtain assistance from 
the liaison to receive verification of such status for purposes of the Free Application 
for Federal Student Aid. 
 

3. Enrollment: All homeless students are required to follow the school’s process for enrolling 
students, including filling out and submitting the school’s enrollment packet on time.  As with 
all students, enrollment depends upon availability.  In the event of an oversubscription in a 
grade, homeless students will participate in the lottery as with any other student. 
 
If the homeless student seeking to enroll is unable to produce records normally required for 
enrollment, such as previous academic records, medical records, proof of residency or other 
documentation, this will not serve as a basis for non-enrollment.  Provided that the enrollment 
process has been followed in all other respects, a homeless student will be enrolled in the 
School despite the missing paperwork.  Upon enrollment, the School will contact the school 
last attended by the students to obtain relevant academic and other records.   
 
If the student needs to obtain immunizations, or immunization or medical records, the School 
will immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student, or the unaccompanied youth, to 
the Homeless Liaison, who shall assist in obtaining necessary immunizations, or immunization 
or medical records.    

 

4. Enrollment Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process: If a dispute arises over 
enrollment in the Charter School of a homeless student, the student will be immediately 
enrolled to the Charter School in which enrollment is sought, pending resolution of the dispute.  
“Enrolled” means attending classes and participating fully in school activities.   
 
The Charter School will refer the student and/or his/her parents or guardians to the Homeless 
Liaison, who will carry out the dispute resolution in accordance with the process set forth 
below, as expeditiously as possible after receiving notice of the dispute.  In the case of an 

Page 21 of 187



unaccompanied youth, the Homeless Liaison will ensure that the youth is immediately enrolled 
in school pending resolution of the dispute. 
 
Parents, guardians and unaccompanied youth may provide written or oral documentation to 
support their positions about enrollment and may seek assistance of social services, advocates, 
and/or service providers in the dispute process.  
 
The Charter School will provide the parent or guardian of the student with a written explanation 
of the Charter School’s decision regarding enrollment, including the rights of the parent, 
guardian or unaccompanied youth’s appeal the decision.  The written explanation will be 
complete, as brief as possible, simply stated and provided in a language that the parent, 
guardian or unaccompanied youth can understand. 
 
If the dispute remains unresolved at the Charter School level or is appealed, then the Charter 
School Homeless Liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the 
homeless liaison at the county office of education (COE).  The COE’s homeless liaison will 
review these materials and determine the school selection or enrollment decision within five 
(5) working days of receipt of the materials.  The COE homeless liaison will notify the Charter 
School and parent/guardian/unaccompanied youth of the decision.   
 
If the dispute remains unresolved at the COE level or is appealed to the State, then the COE 
homeless liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the State 
Homeless Coordinator.  Upon review, the CDE will notify the parent/guardian/unaccompanied 
youth of the decision relating enrollment in the Charter School within ten working days of 
receipt of the materials. 

 

5. Comparable Education Services: Each homeless student will be provided access to services 
comparable to services offered to other students in the Charter School, including but not limited 
to the following:  

• Educational services for which the homeless student meets federal, state and local 
program eligibility criteria 

• Programs in career and technical education 

 

*This policy was adapted from the Charter School Development Center- Homeless Youth Policy.  

 

Page 22 of 187



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Information Technology Department 

Policies and Procedures 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23 of 187



Overview 
This document serves as a rulebook and roadmap for successfully and properly utilizing the technology 
resources at Inspire Charter Schools (ICS). You, the employee, should always take careful consideration to 
verify that all actions fall within the authorized parameters for access, utilization, distribution, and 
modification of ICS’s technology resources set forth within this document. 
 
Any misuse, misappropriation, negligence, or deliberate disobedience concerning these policies and 
procedures will not be tolerated. It is up to each individual employee and affiliate of ICS to familiarize 
him/herself with the policies and procedures set forth prior to signing the agreement form associated to 
these policies and procedures.  
 
It is the purpose of the ICS Information Technology Department (ITD) to provide these policies and 
procedures in order to address potential situations and to provide steps to take during these situations. 
However, not all situations can ever be addressed so it is up to each individual employee and affiliate to 
use these policies and procedures as an example of what action to take.  
 
The ICS Information Technology Department does encourage all ICS employees and associates to err on 
the side of caution should a difficult or questionable situation present itself. Please contact the ITD if you 
require assistance or have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents 

Page 24 of 187



Overview   ………………………………………………………………………………………………….1 
Acceptable Use of Information Technology …..…………………………………………………………...3 
Unacceptable Use  ………………………………………………………………………………………….6 
Enforcement …....…………………………………………………………………………………………..7 
Password Policies and Procedures  ………………………………………………………………………...8 
Internet and Email Policy  ………………………………………………………………………………...10 
Equipment Configuration Policy  …………………………………………………………………………17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 187



Acceptable Use of Information Technology Resources 
 
Overview 
Inspire Charter Schools Acceptable Use of Information Technology Resources policy (AUP) provides for access 
to information technology (IT) resources and communications networks within a culture of openness, trust, and 
integrity. In addition, Inspire Charter School (ICS) is committed to protecting itself and its students, faculty, and 
staff from unethical, illegal, or damaging actions by individuals using these systems. 
 
ICS is committed to upholding important security, privacy, and safety regulations, protocols, and standards. 
Users of ICS devices, networks, accounts, and other resources must adhere to ICS policies. Users are 
expected to fully comply with local, state, and federal regulations. Failure to adhere to these policies or 
regulations may result in discipline, legal action, or other remedies determined to be within the rights of 
ICS.  Relevant regulations include (but are not limited to): 
 

● The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
● Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) 
● Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
● Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 
● Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
DEFINITIONS: 

1. ICS or School or Organization or We - Inspire Charter Schools and its subsidiaries, programs, 
and divisions 

2. ITD - Inspire Charter Schools Information Technology Department 
3. You or Your or I - employee of ICS and or signer of this Acceptable Use of Technology Policy 
4. Resources - devices, systems, services or networks owned, operated or issued by ICS 
5. User - any person(s) accessing or utilizing ICS resources that is not a resource operator 
6. AUP - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY 

 
 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to outline the ethical and acceptable use of information systems at Inspire Charter 
Schools. These rules are in place to protect students, faculty, and staff; i.e., to ensure that members of the Inspire 
Charter Schools community have access to reliable, current IT resources that are safe from unauthorized or 
malicious use. 

Insecure practices and malicious acts expose Inspire Charter Schools and individual students, faculty, and staff 
to risks including virus attacks, compromise of network systems and services, and loss of data or confidential 
information. Security breaches could result in legal action for individuals or the school. In addition, security 
breaches damage the schools reputation and could result in loss of services. Other misuses, such as excessive 
use by an individual, can substantially diminish resources available for other users. 

Scope 

Page 26 of 187



This outline is an integral part of IT security policies and applies to faculty, staff, and students as well as any 
other individuals or entities who use information and IT resources at Inspire Charter Schools. This policy applies 
to all IT resources owned or leased by Inspire Charter Schools and to any privately owned equipment connected 
to the schools network and includes, but is not limited to, computer equipment, software, operating systems, 
storage media, and the Internet. 

Securing and protecting these significant and costly resources from misuse or malicious activity is the 
responsibility of those who manage systems as well as those who use them. Effective security is a team effort 
involving the participation and support of every member of the ICS community who accesses and uses IT 
resources. Therefore, every user of Inspire Charter School IT resources is required to know the policies and to 
conduct their activities within the scope of the AUP, and the Policies, Standards, and Guidelines for IT 
Security (see Resources below). Failure to comply with this policy may result in disciplinary action. 

 
Acceptable Use Policy 
Unless otherwise specified in this policy or other ICS policies, use of school information technology resources 
is restricted to purposes related to the school’s mission.  Eligible individuals are provided access in order to 
support their job duties as employees, official business with the school, and other school-sanctioned activities. 
Individuals may not share with or transfer to others their user accounts including passwords, or other access 
codes that allow them to gain access to ICS Information Technology resources. The protection and privacy of 
our students and staff information is the highest priority and each staff member is expected to enact safe privacy 
measures according to current state and federal laws. Violation of this could result in disciplinary action or 
termination. 

Other administrative units have considerable latitude in developing complementary technology use policies and 
procedures, as long as they are consistent with this policy and any other applicable technology use policies of 
the school. For more information about developing technology policies and procedures, please contact the 
Information Technology Department (ITD). 

Incidental personal use of information technology resources must adhere to all applicable school policies. Under 
no circumstances may incidental personal use involve violations of the law, interfere with the fulfillment of an 
employee's school responsibilities, or adversely impact or conflict with activities supporting the mission of the 
school. 

Users are prohibited from engaging in any activity that is illegal under local, state, federal, or international law 
or in violation of school policy. The categories and lists below are by no means exhaustive, but attempt to provide 
a framework for activities that fall into the category of acceptable/unacceptable use. 

IT Resources include but are not limited to: 
● Computers 

○ Desktop Computers (if applicable), Mobile Devices, Laptops, etc. 
● Network Equipment 

○ Routers, Network and Communication Cabling, VoIP Phones, HotSpots, Cradlepoints, etc. 
● Audio/Video Equipment 

○ Projectors, Cameras, Copiers/Printers, Fax Machines, Security Cameras, TVs, etc 
● Software 

○ Operating Systems, Application Software 

Page 27 of 187



● Resources 
○ Group Drive File Storage, Website File Storage, Email Accounts, Social Networking 

Accounts, etc. 
 
The following activities provide a general roadmap to use ICS’s technology resources in an acceptable 
manner:   
 

1. You agree to, learn about and comply with all information outlined in this AUP document 
2. Persons to whom items are assigned are expected to exercise reasonable care to protect those items 

against damage, loss and theft. “Reasonable care” is defined as: 
○ Never leaving items unattended 
○ Never lending, giving or releasing items to a person other than an employee of the ITD 
○ Never removing protective accessories or features (e.g. cases, bumpers) 
○ Keeping items away from dangerous conditions (e.g. liquids, heat sources, unstable 

surfaces or items) and preventing actions which promote damage beyond normal wear and 
tear 

3. You must immediately report damaged, lost or stolen items/resources. Items reported stolen or 
missing will require a police report. 

4. You are expected to make a reasonable effort to protect your passwords, private information and 
data.  

5. Employees must use extreme caution when opening email attachments received from unknown 
senders 

6. All users should lock the workstation when unattended 
7. Upon termination of employment, all technology must be returned on your final day of 

employment. If any attempt to collect the items have failed, all  matters will be handled by local 
law enforcement. For more information, please contact the ICS Information Technology 
Department. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 187



Unacceptable Use 

Excessive Non-Priority Use of Computing Resources 

Priority for the use of IT resources is given to activities related to the school’s missions of teaching, learning, 
research, and outreach. ICS computer and resources are limited in capacity and are in high demand. To conserve 
IT resource capacity for all users, individuals should exercise restraint when utilizing computing and system 
resources. Individual users may be required to stop non-priority use of IT resources, such as recreational 
activities and non-academic, non-business services. 

Unacceptable system and network activities include: 

Engaging in or effecting security breaches or malicious use of system communication including, but not limited 
to: 

1. Obtaining configuration information about a network or system for which the user does not have 
administrative responsibility. 

 

Unauthorized Use of ICS Property 

Users are responsible for complying with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the dissemination and 
protection of data and information that is confidential, particularly with regards to the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA), the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), Children's 
Internet Protection Act (CIPA) , and any other applicable state and federal legislation dealing with information 
privacy. Violations include, but are not limited to: 

1. Except as provided by fair use principles, engaging in unauthorized copying, distribution, display, or 
publication of copyrighted material including, but not limited to, digitization and distribution of 
photographs from magazines, books, or other copyrighted sources; copyrighted music or video; and the 
installation of any copyrighted software without an appropriate license. 

2. Using, displaying, or publishing licensed trademarks, including Inspire Charter School's trademarks, 
without license or authorization or using them in a manner inconsistent with any terms of authorization. 

3. Exporting software, technical information, encryption software, or technology in violation of 
international or regional export control laws. 

Inappropriate or malicious use of IT systems includes: 

1. Setting up file sharing in which protected intellectual property is illegally shared. 
2. Intentionally introducing malicious programs into the system or server (e.g., viruses, worms, Trojan 

horses, email bombs, etc.). 
3. Inappropriate use or sharing of school-authorized IT privileges or resources. 
4. Changing another user's password, access, or authorizations. 
5. Using an Inspire Charter Schools computing asset to actively engage in displaying, or transmitting 

material that is in violation of sexual harassment policy or laws, hostile workplace laws, or other illegal 
activity. 

6. Using an Inspire Charter Schools computing asset for any private purpose or for personal gain. 
 

Page 29 of 187



Misuse of Electronic Communications 

Electronic communications are essential in carrying out the activities of the school and for individual 
communication among staff, faculty, students, and their correspondents. Individuals are required to know and 
comply with the school’s policy on Mass Email and Effective Electronic Communication (see Resources 
below). 

Key prohibitions include: 

1. Sending unsolicited messages, including "junk mail" or other advertising material, to individuals who 
did not specifically request such material, except as approved under the policy on Mass Email and 
Effective Electronic Communication. 

2. Engaging in harassment via electronic communications whether through language, frequency, or size 
of messages. 

3. Masquerading as someone else by using their email or internet address or electronic signature. 
4. Soliciting email from any other email address, other than that of the poster's account, with the intent to 

harass or to collect replies. 
5. Creating or forwarding "chain letters" or solicitations for business schemes. 
6. Using email originating from Inspire Charter School’s provided accounts for commercial use or 

personal gain.     
 
Enforcement 
The Acceptable Use of Information Technology Resources policy is enforced through the following 
mechanisms. Any user who discovers unauthorized access attempts or other improper usage of Inspire Charter 
School technology should report the infraction to the Information Technology Department, or other appropriate 
administrators. Management personnel are responsible for ensuring employees are aware of and trained in the 
provisions of this policy. 

Interim Measures 
The school may temporarily disable service to an individual or a computing device, when an apparent misuse of 
school computing facilities or systems has occurred, and the misuse: 

1. Is a violation of criminal law 
2. Has the potential to cause significant damage to or interference with school facilities or services 
3. May cause significant damage to another person 
4. May result in liability to the school 

An attempt will be made to contact the person responsible for the account or equipment prior to disabling service 
unless law enforcement authorities forbid it or Information Technology staff determine that immediate action is 
necessary to preserve the integrity of the school network. In any case, the user shall be informed as soon as 
possible so that they may present reasons in writing why their use is not a violation or that they have authorization 
for the use. 

Suspension of Services and Other Action 

Users may be issued warnings, may be required to agree to conditions of continued service, or may have their 
privileges suspended or denied if: 

Page 30 of 187



● After hearing the user's explanation of the alleged violation, an IT administrator or school administrator 
has made a determination that the user has engaged in a violation of this code, or 

● An employee disciplinary body has determined that the user has engaged in a violation of the code.   
 
Password Policies and Procedures 
 
Overview 
Passwords are an important aspect of computer security. They are the front line of protection for user 
accounts. A poorly chosen password may result in the compromise of Inspire Charter School's entire 
network. As such, all employees (including contractors and vendors with access to Inspire Charter Schools 
network) are responsible for taking the appropriate steps, as outlined below, to select and secure their 
passwords. The scope of this policy includes all personnel who have or are responsible for an account (or 
any form of access that supports or requires a password) on any system that resides at any ICS facility, has 
access to the ICS database, or stores any non-public information pertaining to ICS. The Password 
Protection Standards below also apply to the use of family accounts and should always be handled with 
care and common sense.  
 
 
Standards 
A. General Password Construction Guidelines  
Passwords are used for various purposes at Inspire Charter Schools. Some of the more common uses 
include: user-level accounts, web accounts, email accounts, screensaver protection,  voicemail password, 
and local router logins. Everyone should be aware of how to select strong passwords. 

1.   Poor, unacceptable passwords have the following characteristics: 

   The password contains fewer than ten characters 

   The password is a word found in a dictionary (English or foreign) 

   The password is a common usage word such as: 

● Names of family, pets, friends, coworkers, fantasy characters, etc. 
● Computer terms and names, commands, sites, companies, hardware, software 
● Acronyms for the agency or city. 
● Birthdays and other personal information such as addresses and phone numbers 
● Word or number patterns like aaabbb, qwerty, zyxwvuts, 123321, etc. 
● Any of the above spelled backwards 
● Any of the above preceded or followed by a digit (e.g., secret1, 1secret) 

 

2. Strong (acceptable) passwords have the following characteristics: 

   Contain both upper and lowercase characters (e.g., a-z, AZ) 

Page 31 of 187



   Have digits and punctuation characters as well as letters (e.g., 0-9, !@#$%^&*()_+|~-
=\`{}[]:”;í<>?,./) 

   Are at least ten alphanumeric characters long  

   Are not based on personal information, names of family, etc. 

   Try to create passwords that can be easily remembered. One way to do this is create a 
password based on a song title, affirmation, or other phrase. For example, the phrase might 
be: ?This May Be One Way To Remember? and the password could be: ?TmB1w2R!? or 
?Tmb1W> r~? or some other variation. 

                 NOTE: Do not use either of these examples as passwords! 

 

B. Password Protection Standards 
Do not use the same password for Inspire Charter School accounts as for other non Inspire Charter School 
access (e.g., personal ISP account, personal email accounts, etc.). 

Here is a list of "don'ts": 

     Don’t reveal a password over the phone to ANYONE. 

     Don’t reveal a password in an email message. 

    Don’t talk about a password in front of others. 

    Don’t hint at the format of a password (e.g., “my family name”). 

    Don’t reveal a password on questionnaires or security forms. 

    Don’t share a password with family members. 

    Don’t reveal a password to co-workers while on vacation. 

    Don’t write a password in an obvious place that is accessible to others. 

Do not share passwords with anyone, including passwords associated to ANY student accounts. All 
passwords are to be treated as sensitive, confidential ICS information. If a password is requested by a parent 

Page 32 of 187



or student, simply forward them an associated link to reset their password. We are not responsible for 
creating passwords for end-users. 
 
Disabling Login Password  
 

Internet and Email Policy 
 
Overview 
Voice mail, email, and internet usage assigned to an employee's computer or telephone extensions are solely 
for the purpose of conducting Inspire Charter Schools business. Most job responsibilities at ICS require 
access to the internet and the use of software. Only people appropriately authorized, for ICS purposes, may 
use the internet to access and download additional software. 
 
This authorization is generally exclusive to decisions that the ITD makes in conjunction with the need to 
perform your job duties and any request made from managers or directors. 
 

Software Access  
Software needed, in addition to the Google products, must be authorized by your manager and downloaded 
by the ITD staff. If you need access to software or websites, please talk with your manager and consult with 
the ITD to explain what you expect to receive from the product. 
All reasonable requests that are not considered a security risk will be considered for you and other 
employees. 

Internet Usage 
Internet use on Inspire Charter Schools time, using ICS-owned devices that are connected to the schools 
network, is authorized to conduct school business only. Internet use brings the possibility of breaches of 
the security of confidential information. Internet use also creates the possibility of contamination to our 
system via viruses or spyware. Spyware allows unauthorized people, outside of  ICS, potential access to 
ICS passwords and other confidential information. 
 
Removing such programs from the network requires IT staff to invest time and attention that is better 
devoted to making technological progress. For this reason, and to assure the use of work time appropriately 
for work, we ask staff members to limit internet use. 
 
Additionally, under no circumstances may ICS owned computers or other electronic equipment, including 
devices owned by the employee, be used on ICS time at work to obtain, view, or reach any pornographic, 
or otherwise immoral, unethical, or non-business-related internet sites. Doing so can lead to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination of employment. 

Social Media 

Page 33 of 187



We understand that part of what you do in social media is outreach that recruits new students and or 
employees and enhances our school brand. Many employees have social media responsibilities in their job 
description including the social media marketers, tech support, and School Growth/Public Relations staff.  
 
We strongly encourage you to limit the use of social media to work-related content and outreach during 
work hours. Additionally, you are prohibited from sharing any confidential or protected information that 
belongs to or is about ICS. You are strongly encouraged not to share disparaging information that places 
ICS or coworkers in an unfavorable light. 
 
The school's reputation and brand should be protected by all employees. The lives and actions of your 
coworkers should never be shared online. Please note the confidentiality of all students should be kept at 
all times.  
 
There are great advantages to the use of social media and disadvantages; those include but are not limited 
to: 
 

● The overuse and availability of bandwidth to all employees 
● Malware and network hijack 
● Decrease in work productivity 
●  

 
In social media participation from work devices or during working hours, social media content that 
discriminates against any protected classification including age, race, color, religion, gender, national 
origin, disability, or genetic information is prohibited. It is ICS’s policy to also recognize sexual preference 
as qualifying for discrimination protection. Any employee, who participates in social media, who violates 
this policy, will be dealt with according to the ICS harassment policy. 
 
 
Email Usage at ICS 
Email is to be used for ICS business only. ICS confidential information must not be shared outside of the 
school, without authorization, at any time. You are also not to conduct personal business using ICS 
computers or emails. 
Please keep this in mind, also, as you consider forwarding non-business emails to associates, family or 
friends. Non-business related emails waste time and attention. 
 
Viewing pornography, or sending pornographic jokes or stories via email, is considered sexual harassment 
and will be addressed according to our sexual harassment policy. Immediate termination is the most 
frequent disciplinary action. Please keep all email messaging appropriate and professional when 
communicating with co-workers and families.  
 
Mass Email and Effective Electronic Communication 
All electronic communications are expected to comply with federal and state laws, as well as school 
regulations and policies. 

Page 34 of 187



Permission to mail to a group is not needed if you are the authorized sender for the group or are conducting 
normal school business. Before using a list that someone else owns, you must ask permission to use it. 
Access to a list does not necessarily imply permission to use.  

If you wish to do a large mailing to a group you must get approval from a supervisor.  

Mass Email Checklist 
Before you send a large-scale mailing, you should ensure you can answer "yes" to each of the following 
questions: 

● Is email the best or appropriate method to get information to your intended audience? 
● Is the message relevant to the school's core missions? 
● Have you included in the content of the message: 

○ A "From:" address where replies will be received 
○ The office, organization, or individual sending the message 
○ Contact information if there is a question, comment, or complaint about the message 
○ An explanation of why the recipient is receiving the message 
○ Required information presented  
○ Pointers to our website or elsewhere for additional information 

● Do you have authorization to use the mailing list? 
● If your mailing will go to more than 1,000 recipients, do you have approval to do a mass mailing 

to your intended audience? 
Please note that Gmail has strict sending limits when sending bulk mail. Contact your ITD for more 
information about these limitations.  

 
Employee Email 
Keep in mind that ICS owns any communication sent via email or that is stored on ICS equipment. 
Management and other authorized staff have the right to access any material in your email or on your 
computer at any time. Please do not consider your electronic communication, storage or access to be private 
if it is created or stored on work devices. 

 
Emails That Discriminate 
Any email content that discriminates against any protected classification including age, race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin, disability, or genetic information is prohibited. Any employee who sends an email that 
violates this policy will be dealt with according to the harassment policy. Threatening or offensive emails 
are prohibited at Inspire Charter Schools.  
 
Phishing Emails are SCAMS 
Phishing is a type of attack carried out in order to steal usernames, passwords, credit card information, 
Social Security Numbers, and other sensitive data by masquerading as a trustworthy entity. Phishing is most 
often seen in the form of malicious emails pretending to be from credible sources. We ask that you do your 
due diligence to ensure the email is safe and coming from a reputable source. No institution, bank or 

Page 35 of 187



otherwise, will ever ask for private information via email.  It may not always be easy to tell whether an 
email or website is legitimate, but there are many ways to help: 

● In the body of an email, you might see questions asking you to “verify” or “update your account” 
or “failure to update your records will result in account suspension.” It is usually safe to assume 
that no credible organization will ever ask you to re-enter it, so do not fall for this trap. 

● Any email that asks for your personal or sensitive information should be seriously scoured and not 
trusted. Even if the email has official logos or text or even links to a legitimate website, it could 
easily be fraudulent. Never give out your personal information. 

● Do not respond to warning messages claiming you have a virus or have been hacked  
● Check the email address - ask yourself: “does it come from someone you know, are you expecting 

an email from that source, does it match or legitimize the organization it is tied to” 
● Hover over the link, don’t click it. (Look at the bottom left corner of your monitor to reveal the 

URL) 
● Never forward emails that aren’t work related. Emails with advertisements and/or suggestions to 

forward to someone else are usually a trap and could introduce viruses to all users  
 
If you suspect any malicious activity, please contact the ITD immediately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 187



Staff Equipment Policy 
 
Overview 
ICS attempts to provide sufficient equipment to allow employees to manage their duties efficiently. 
Equipment is usually assigned and issued immediately upon hire for all new employees. All new devices 
require a minimum of 1-3 weeks for delivery and configuration, therefore management is advised to notify 
the ITD immediately upon hiring a new staff member.  
 
This document provides Inspire Charter Schools (ICS) policy requirements to assure appropriate and 
equitable issuance to faculty and staff of basic computer technology equipment. This policy guides faculty 
and staff concerning utilization and support of computer and peripheral needs and basic network access, as 
well as personal responsibilities of the employee and supervisor.  
 
New Hire Details - When welcoming a new employee on board, it is required that management send the 
Information Technology Department (ITD) with the following details: 
 

● The employees full name 
● Supervisor or Director  
● Address (only necessary for staff that work off-site) 
● Title of position (please include department) 
● Start Date 
● Equipment needed (only if they require additional equipment) 
● Email address to be assigned  

 
Standard devices and equipment offered to all employees include, but are not limited to: 

1. HP Elitebook 15.6 - a fast 15.6 laptop which usually includes touchscreen 
2. Brother MFC-J985DW - wireless printer/scanner/fax machine 
3. 1 or 2 displays, keyboard, mouse, and dock (offered to office staff ONLY) 
4. Office phone (offered to office staff ONLY) 

 
Please note, all request should have prior approval from a supervisor or director and be made by submitting 
a ticket via helpdesk: tech-stafforders@inspireschools.org. For detailed instructions on placing orders, 
please see the Technology Ordering Policy. *All devices are subject to change without notice. 

ICS Owned Equipment 
Any device or computer including, but not limited to, desk phones, smartphones, tablets, laptops, desktop 
computers, and iPads that ICS provides for your use, should only be used for school business. Keep in mind 
that ICS owns the devices and the information in these devices. If you leave the school for any reason, ICS 
will require that you return the equipment on your last day of work. 
 
Staff Use of Equipment/Materials 
The equipment at ICS is for the benefit of staff and student instruction. The care of all devices is the 
responsibility of each staff member. If at any time there is an issue with a computing device, please contact 

Page 37 of 187

mailto:tech-help@inspireschools.org


the ITD for more instructions. Employees may use equipment for non-instructional and not-for-profit use, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. If school owned equipment is to be removed from it’s assigned location, prior approval must be 
given by management.  

2. The employee is responsible for the cost of repairing any damaged and lost item while in the 
employees possession. Please immediately contact your manager and the ITD with any reports of 
loss or damage.  

3. In no circumstance may equipment be used for private or personal business ventures, only school 
business. 

4. Upon departure from ICS all staff are asked to return their items on the last day. If all attempts to 
collect a device is unsuccessful, the matter will be handed over to local law enforcement. 

 
Pre-Purchase Review Requirements 
To ensure sound purchasing, supportability, appropriate pricing and assure security of the school's 
resources, the purchase of all ICS technology equipment and software, regardless of the source of funds, 
shall be approved by the ITD prior to purchase. If there is an item that is “out of the ordinary,” prior approval 
from a supervisor or director must be given.  
 
*Please note, the school has a large list of vendors or suppliers that support our organizational needs, 
therefore the lead time for items purchased through these vendors may vary.  
 
Software 
The school considers software piracy a serious offense. ICS abides by legal requirements for licensing 
software. Only licensed software will be installed on school owned equipment. The Information 
Technology Department will be responsible for purchasing licenses for applications that are appropriate 
and included as part of the standard configuration. 

We strongly discourage the purchase of licensing for individual and small groups, unless this is a part of 
your job duties. The Information Technology staff will not be liable for licensing issues when software is 
not in accordance with use for school related business and did not have prior authorization of purchase. 
Licensing purchases that have not been approved by management may be classified as a personal purchase 
and may not be reimbursed, this also applies to hardware. In order to provide a software recovery 
mechanism for individuals and small groups, each department is required to maintain the licensing 
documentation and original media of software purchases. 

Software purchased through the school shall not be installed on personally owned computers without 
approval.  

 
Security 
Providing technology to all staff and students opens up to a certain amount of threats and malicious activity. 
It is the responsibility of ICS to insure that we are compliant with local, state and federal laws prohibiting 
the unfair use and distribution of confidential information. Every member of the ICS community is 

Page 38 of 187



responsible for protecting the security of school information and information systems by adhering to the 
objectives and requirements stated within all ICS policies. If multiple policy statements or security 
standards are relevant for a specific situation, the most restrictive security standards will apply. 
 
Failure to comply with established policies and practices may result in loss of computing privileges and/or 
disciplinary action. 

Replacement Cycle and Redeployment 
Where possible every opportunity to reuse or find new uses for retired computers will be explored before 
equipment is retired. Redeployment and/or replacement is at the discretion of the department manager and 
ITD. All employees are asked to contact their manager prior to requesting a replacement device from the 
Information Technology Department. 

Disposal of Equipment 
The ICS ITD is solely responsible for the sale and disposal of all computing equipment and peripheral 
storage devices when they are deemed surplus. No department or individual may arrange for the sale or 
collect money for school owned equipment, computers, furniture, or other supplies/materials purchased 
with school funds, regardless of the source of funds. Departmental personnel may not gift or donate 
equipment, computers, cell phones, furniture, or other items without ICS approval. School owned 
equipment, computers, laptops, tablets, cell phones, furniture, and materials may not be removed from the 
school, converted to personal property, or retained for personal use when deemed excess.  

Equipment Configuration Policy 

Overview  
This policy has been established to create a standard configuration for all technology resources at ICS. 
Because of the variances between the types, makes, models, configurations, builds, versions, and brands of 
technology resources available, it is necessary to standardize all technology resources to make service and 
maintenance easier and also to help keep costs down.  

Policy  

All employees shall order and utilize equipment that is serviceable and recommended by the ICS IT 
Department. Since equipment availability changes over time, especially when referring to technology, a 
comprehensive list indicating appropriate hardware would be almost impossible to create. Because of this, 
any individual or department wishing to purchase technology equipment should first consult an ICS ITD 
staff member for current specifications for any given piece of equipment.  

This applies to any and all technology equipment including, but not limited to:   

● Computers (Servers, Desktop, Laptop, Tablets, Mobile Devices, etc.)   
● HDTVs,  Printers, scanners, copiers, fax machines, or all‐in‐one devices   

Page 39 of 187



● Projectors, and screens   
● VoIP phones   
● Digital cameras and camcorders   
● Software (Application, Operating System, Network‐Based, etc.)   

8x8 Virtual Office Phone System 
 
What is Virtual Office? 
Virtual Office is a secure, cloud-based service that integrates voice, messaging, and meetings all in one 
place. You can use your virtual office with a traditional desk phone or a computer based softphone 
application. Providing this software makes it easy and fun to receive and place calls. If you would like more 
instructions on how to use 8x8 Virtual Office, please contact your Information Technology Department for 
more details and instructions. 
 
*Do not provide your internal phone number or extension to the public, always use your external number 
and/or call queue extension. 
 
Student Equipment Policy 
 
Overview 
Use of technology is a privilege extended to students in order to enhance learning and exchange 
information. The use of available hardware and software (including both external and internal resources) is 
for the purpose of facilitating the best learning experience. All students and families are required to comply 
with the Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy and any accompanying protocols.  
 
 
Student Use of Equipment/Materials 
The care of all equipment is the responsibility of each student/parent/guardian. If at any time there is an 
issue with a computing device, please contact the ITD for more instructions. Access to ICS technology, 
resources, and support offers a wealth of educational benefits. To maintain these privileges, all users must 
agree to, learn about, and comply with all information within this AUP document. 
Students/parents/guardians are required to know and understand policies related to student/parent usage of 
ICS devices.   
 

1. Students are never allowed to leave a device unattended 
2. Never lend out or transfer devices to other ICS students unless given permission 
3. Keep all items away from dangerous conditions (e.g. liquids, heat sources, unstable surfaces or 

items) and keep away from conditions that would promote damage beyond normal wear and tear.  
4. You are obligated to notify ITD of continued access to resources beyond student departure (e.g. 

withdrawal, graduation, expulsion) in the event ITD has not contacted you to do so. 
5. The parent/guardian is expected to monitor and supervise device usage when their child is on the 

internet 
6. All damages are to be immediately reported to the ITD 

 

Page 40 of 187



All parents are given a copy of the Acceptable Use Policy in addition to any support documents and policies.  
 

Standard devices and equipment offered to all students include, but are not limited to: 
1. HP 255 G6 - 15.6 inch laptop or Macbook Air 13 inch 
2. Apple iMac 21 inch desktop 
3. Amazon Fire Tablets and Ipads (versions may vary)  
4. HP Officejet or Brother printers 

 
*All available devices are subject to change without notice. 
 
 
Equipment Transfer 
We do not allow students to transfer their devices to someone else, even those students that are currently 
enrolled in ICS without first contacting the Information Technology Department. There are times when 
exceptions can be made, depending on the circumstances. For instance, devices can be transferred within 
the same family from one sibling to another, however we must be informed of this transfer so all related 
records can be updated. If there are other circumstances, the device must be sent back to the ITD so it can 
properly re-assign, image, refurbish, wipe/clear all personal information and user-installed software. 

Damage Caused by Carelessness 
Much of the damage that occurs is the result of student carelessness. Damage caused by carelessness is not 
considered “Accidental Damage.” Tablet and accessory damage resulting from carelessness will be 
assessed. Examples of student carelessness would be: iPad (pens) that are noticeably damaged, latches that 
hold the lid closed being pulled out of the computer case, sticky devices from liquid spills, broken LCD 
screens that result from shutting the lid with objects still in the keyboard, and the continual loss of keys 
from the keyboard. When asked how the damage occurred, the answer “I don’t know,” or “it was fine when 
I put it in my bag” will be considered damage caused by carelessness. Habitual damage is considered abuse 
of school property.  
 
Individual school laptop computers and accessories must be returned to ICS at the end of each school year. 
Students who graduate early, are suspended or expelled, or terminate enrollment at ICS for any other reason 
must return their individual school technology on the date of termination or no later than 30 days after 
termination. Failure to return the computer will result in a theft report being filed with the local law 
enforcement. The student will also pay the replacement cost of the computer, or, if applicable, any insurance 
deductible. 
 
Furthermore, the student will be responsible for any damage to the computer, consistent with the Acceptable 
Use Policy and must return the computer and accessories to the ICS Technology Department in satisfactory 
condition. The student may be charged a fee for any needed repairs not to exceed the replacement cost of 
the device. 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 187



Multiple Device Replacements 
It is ICS policy to replace devices if there is a reasonable cause. Any technology purchased with the use of 
Instruction Funds is considered the property of Inspire Charter Schools. It is the parent/guardian’s 
responsibility to see that reasonable care is always taken when any item is loaned to a student. Therefore 
ICS prohibits loaning any equipment more than 3 times during a school year per student. If a student 
damages an item and request for a replacement more than the allotted privileges, those consecutive 
occurrences will be considered abuse of school property and no device will be given out to that 
family/student for the remaining year. Excessive abuse of school property will lead to further investigation. 
 

 

Technology Orders 
 
Overview 
Technology is an important part of our student’s learning environment. Making sure these resources are 
accessible is extremely important to the mission of Inspire Charter Schools. A reasonable attempt shall be 
made at all times to address the needs of our students and employees, particularly when those needs are due 
to an accessibility issue presented by a physical impairment or learning disability of some kind. The ICS 
IT Department shall make every effort to ensure that each and every student and or staff is presented with 
an equal or comparable environment technology resources.  
 
Policy 
This policy establishes the ordering guidelines for all ICS‐owned technology resources. The purpose of this 
policy is to ensure that every ICS student is presented with an equal opportunity to learn and that all 
employees can adequately use the required technology equipment for the purpose of their required 
occupation. There are state regulated requirements that must be met where any physical and/or learning 
impairment exists for any student or work limitation exists for any employee. Please refer to Work 
Limitations guideline to determine if there are any reasonable accommodations that must be met. Please 
note that, the ITD is prohibited from making orders for “out of the ordinary” items for Special Education 
(SPED) students. If you require assistance with a SPED order, please contact your local Director.  
 
Types of accessibility requirements include, but are not limited to, the following applications or devices. 
 

● Screen reading software 
● Stereo headsets or other sound devices 
● Touchscreen laptops 

 
 
Work Limitations/Reasonable Accommodations 
The California Fair Employment and Housing Act requires that employers of five or more employees to 
provide reasonable accommodations for individuals with a physical or mental disability to apply for jobs 

Page 42 of 187



and perform their essential job duties, unless it would cause an undue hardship. Reasonable 
accommodations include, but not limited to: 

1. Changing job duties 
2. Providing leave for medical care 
3. Changing work schedules 
4. Relocating the work area 
5. Providing mechanical and electrical aids 

 
Employers must initiate an “interactive process” when an applicant or employee requests reasonable 
accommodations. The ITD attempts to provide the most useful resources available to employees and 
students with a disability in a timely manner. If you want more information please contact the HR Director. 
 
 
 
Student Orders - Tech Store  
The Tech Centre is an integral solution for students to purchase items relevant to their specific needs. All 
student purchases should be made through the website. Employees that assist families with making 
technology purchases are expected to familiarize themselves with the use and function of the Tech Centre. 
To learn more about this great and easy way to place orders, please visit: techstore.inspireschools.org. 
 
 
Transferring Devices 
Swapping or transferring devices amongst enrolled family members is allowed. However there are some 
restrictions and standards that must be followed. In order to better track and update our student data, all 
technology transfers must first qualify before any transfer is approved.  

1. The student/family requesting to transfer their device must inform and update their assigned teacher 
2. The student/family or teacher must report the student as “Withdrawn” before a device can be 

transferred 
3. Transfers can ONLY exist amongst enrolled siblings. You can not transfer or loan a device to any 

other person(s) that is not a sibling currently enrolled with Inspire Charter Schools 
4. Any and all damages to the device will be the responsibility of the transferee 
5. No reimbursements will be made to the previous student’s account 
6. A helpdesk ticket must be submitted requesting to transfer a device to another student. Details must 

include the current student’s name, exit date, assigned teacher, technology serial and asset number 
and name of the related sibling 

The ICS tech department has a responsibility to update and track the inventory systems and data regularly. 
For safety regulations, it is important to always stay informed about the usage of each device. Properly 
updating information is apart of ensuring all safety precautions are taken at all times.  
 
 
Special Education Orders (SPED)  
(pending information) 
 
 

Page 43 of 187



Returns  
All items purchased using Instructional Funds must be returned and is the property of ICS. The return 
requirements are as followed: 
 
Full Refund/Credit 

● Returns qualifying for Full Refund or Credit 
○ Items eligible for a full refund/credit: 

■ Must be undamaged and same condition as received 
■ Must be complete with all accessories 
■ Working (i.e. non-defective) items may be returned within 30 days of receipt of 

item for full refund/credit. 
■ Defective items may be returned within 90 days of receipt. “Defects” are 

determined by manufacturer. Must not show signs of physical abuse, misuse or 
abnormal treatment for full refund/credit. 

Partial Refund/Credit 

Partial refunds / partial credit are given at the discretion of Inspire Charter Schools and may (or may not) 
be given for any reason. Worn, abused, misused or damaged items may or may not qualify for refund/credit.            
  

● Returns qualifying for Partial Refund or Credit 
○ Items eligible for partial refund/credit: 

■ Working items beyond 30 days 

■ Defective items beyond the 90 days 
 

 
Return Process for students 

Upon withdrawal, please check if the student has technology loaned/purchased through ICS and 
immediately initiate the return process. It is the policy of ICS that all students, once withdrawn from the 
school, must return any item within 30 days from their exit date. Please instruct students/parents to follow 
the return process below. You are also welcomed to return items on behave of a student, however, you will 
therefore be liable if an item is not returned. Students returning product due to damages must provide the 
damaged item before a replacement can be given. The IT Department will evaluate the severity of the 
damages and determine the best course of action thereafter. If damages are beyond normal wear and tear, 
applicable charges may be applied. 

 
To return an item for any reason, please: 

1. Contact our helpdesk: 
a. Email: tech-help@inspireschools.org 

b.  Call: (626) 433-8094 

2. Please include and have ready: 

Page 44 of 187

mailto:tech-help@inspireschools.org


a. Your reason for the return 

b. ICS Asset Tag number or Tech Centre order number 

c. Your mailing address 

d. Current phone number 

i. Please include the student name and associated email 

3. Return authorization will be given by a tech support agent 

4. A shipping label will be provided at no cost. Home pick-up services may also be available at no 
additional cost 

5. Item(s) will be returned to the Inspire Charter Schools Technology Department in Duarte, CA. 

a. Do not give your devices to anyone other than as instructed 

6. Once returned, the item will be evaluated 

7. A refund, credit, or replacement will be issued, if eligible 

8. If an item is not returned within the allotted time, local law enforcement will pursue the device on 
behave of ICS. Any missing technology will be noted in the student’s record by the Records 
Department. 

Note: If you support a student or family that requires a specialty device not provided by the Tech Centre, 
please contact the Enrichment Department in your location for more instructions. 

 

Stolen Technology 
ICS is proud to work with Absolute Software - a solution that allows for effective security technology and 
student safety programs that track, locate and recover your endpoints in the event of a theft, while ensuring 
safety for students. Absolute provides: 

o   Remote security to monitor and protect each device 
o   Reporting tools that give hardware and software information 
o   Remote device freeze with user verification messaging 
o   Track assets on Google Maps, including recent and historical locations 
o   Web filtering to protect students on and off school networks 
o   Adherence to CIPA regulations around internet security policies 
o   Thief investigation services, remediation and more 

  
The Recovery Investigation team will work with local law enforcement to recover any stolen device that is 
tracked through Absolute. They will attempt to collect the device up to 60 days. If they’re unsuccessful, 
ICS may be compensated up to $500 for that device. *Pricing may vary and is subject to change without 
notice and is not guaranteed. 
  

Page 45 of 187



The ICS ITD always tries to take the most cautious and diplomatic approach when attempting to recover 
any stolen items. If the student has withdrawn from the School and the return process has been initiated but 
failed, three attempts will be made to contact the family using all forms of communication. Once our 
attempts have been unsuccessful, a police report is established and all information is handed over to the 
Absolute Recovery Team for further investigation. Absolute will then continue their process by tracking 
the device, contact the person in question, communicate with local law enforcement and if found provide a 
warrant to search for the device. 
  
If a student has a lost or stolen device while still enrolled with the School, please report the device to local 
law enforcement and contact the ICS Technology Department to begin the investigation process. We will 
do our best to recovery and replace any device that has been reported as lost, stolen or missing. A police 
report must be provided prior to starting the investigation. **Please note that this does not apply to all 
devices. Exclusions include purchases made through a third party vendor, Amazon Tablets or any related 
Amazon purchase, Apple devices, and older computers without Absolute Software. For Apple device’s 
please contact the IT Department for more details.** 
  
For more details, please visit: www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute 
 
 

Personal Technology Policy 
 
Overview 
This policy will set forth the rules and regulations which will determine how the ICS faculty, staff and 
customer are to perform work on personally‐owned employee products.  The ITD does not service 
technology equipment for personal devices. It is strongly advised that no employee use their personal 
devices to access confidential school information unless otherwise given permission from a Director or the 
Information Technology staff. 
 
Policy 
The IT Department always strives to ensure that ICS employees, students, and affiliates receive the best 
possible technology assistance available.  However, this can leave something to be desired for non‐ICS, 
personally‐owned technology equipment owned by employees, students, and affiliates. 
 
This policy will set forth the rules, regulations, and guidelines for which the Information Technology 
Department staff may provide services for personally‐owned technology equipment.  
 
All personal technology work will be performed within the following restrictions:  
 
For Faculty and Staff 

● Personal technology work may be performed during regular business hours, only if such work does 
not directly interfere or delay the normal operations or job duties of the ICS employee.   

● No parts purchases for personal devices.   

Page 46 of 187

http://www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute
http://www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute


● ICS is not responsible for damages, repairs, placements or upgrades to any personally owned 
hardware or software 

● Access to confidential school information is prohibited on personally owned devices, and is only 
allowed on a case by case basis. Your Director must grant approval. 

 
For Students and Affiliates 

● The ITD is prohibited from installing software on personal devices unless it is strictly for school 
purposes. 

● Staff are prohibited from assisting with repairs or work on personal devices for customers (students 
and or/parents) 

○ This includes installing or assisting with software not purchased through Instructional 
Funds 

○ Guiding and directing the customer on how to fix or repair an issue 
● If a personally owned device doesn’t meet the needs necessary to complete an assignment, the ITD 

will offer to place a tech order for a new device that may fit their needs. Instructional Funds will 
be used for all technology purchases.  

 
**ICS ITD is prohibited from placing orders for students and/or staff with the use of personal funds. 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 187



 
 
 
 

Identification of Individuals for 504 Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with 
a disability shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits 
of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter School. Any 
student who has an objectively identified disability which substantially limits a major life activity 
including but not limited to learning, is eligible for accommodation by the Charter School. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Identification of 
Individuals for 504 Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Explain the Identification and Education Under Section 504 
2. Define the Terms and Phrases of the Identification and Education Under Section 504 
3. Identify the Referral, Identification, and Evaluation Process 
4. Establish Section 504 Services Plan and Placement 
5. Establish the Review and Reevaluation Process 
6. Identify the Procedural Safeguards  
7. Establish the Notification Process 
 

1. Identification and Education Under Section 504: The Governing Board believes that all 
children, including children with disabilities, should have the opportunity to learn in a safe and 
nurturing environment. The Executive Director or designee shall work to identify children with 
disabilities who reside within the jurisdiction of the Charter School in order to ensure that they 
receive educational and related services required by law. 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall provide qualified students with disabilities with a free 
and appropriate public education (FAPE), as defined under Section 504 of the federal 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Such students shall receive regular or special education and related 
aids and services designated to meet their individual educational needs as adequately as the 
needs of students without disabilities are met. 
 
In addition, qualified students with disabilities shall be provided an equal opportunity to 
participate in programs and activities that are integral components of the Charter School’s basic 
education program, including, but not limited to, extracurricular athletics, interscholastic 
sports, and/or other non-academic activities. 
 
The Charter School’s local control and accountability plan shall include goals and specific 
actions to improve student achievement and other outcomes of students with disabilities. At 
least annually, the Executive Director or designee shall assess the Charter School’s progress 

Page 48 of 187



in attaining the goals established for students with disabilities and shall report these results to 
the Board. (Education Code 52052, 52060)  
 
In providing services to students with disabilities under Section 504, the Executive Director or 
designee shall ensure the Charter School complies with the law, including providing the 
students and their parents/guardians with applicable procedural safeguards and required 
notification. Any dispute as to the identification, evaluation, or placement of any student with 
a disability shall be resolved in accordance with the processes specific in the “Procedural 
Safeguards” section of the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 

2. Definition of Terms and Phrases: The Student Support Team implements the requirements 
of Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973: For the purposes of implementing 
Section 504, the following terms and phrases shall have only the meanings specified below: 
 

• Free appropriate public education (FAPE) means the provision of regular or special 
education and related aids and services designed to meet the individual educational 
needs of a student with disabilities as adequately as the needs of students without 
disabilities are met, at no cost to the student or his/her parent/guardian except when a 
fee is specifically authorized by law for all students. 

 
• Student with a disability means a student who has a physical or mental impairment 

which substantially limits one or more major life activities. 
 

• Physical impairment means any physiological disorder, or condition, cosmetic 
disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more body systems, such as 
neurological, musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory (including speech 
organs), cardiovascular, reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary, immune, hemic, 
lymphatic, skin, and endocrine. (28 CFR 35.108) 

 
• Mental impairment means any mental or psychological disorder, such as intellectual 

disability, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning 
disability. (28 CFR 35.108) 

 
• Substantially limits major life activities means limiting a person’s ability to perform 

functions, as compared to most people in the general population, such as caring for 
himself/herself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, 
standing, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, 
thinking, writing, communicating, and working. Major life activities also includes 
major bodily functions such as functions of the immune system, special sense organs 
and skin, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, 
respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic, musculoskeletal, 
and reproductive functions, as well as the operation of an individual organ within a 
body system. The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a 
student’s major life activities shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects 
of mitigating measures other than ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses. Mitigating 
measures are measures that an individual may use to eliminate or reduce the effects of 
an impairment, including, but not limited to, medications, medical supplies or 
equipment, prosthetic devices, assistive devices, reasonable modifications or auxiliary 
aids or services, learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications, 

Page 49 of 187



psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy. (42 USC 12102; 28 CFR 
35.108).  

 
3. Referral, Identification, and Evaluation: Any action or decision to be taken by the Charter 

School involving the referral, identification, or evaluation of a student with disabilities shall 
be in accordance with the following procedures: 

 
i. A parent/guardian, teacher, other school employee, student success team, or community 

agency may refer a student to a 504 Coordinator for identification of a student with a 
disability under Section 504. 
 

ii. Upon receipt of any such referral, the 504 Coordinator, or other qualified individual with 
expertise in the area of the student’s suspected disability shall consider the referral and 
determine whether an evaluation is appropriate. This determination shall be based on a 
review of the student’s school records including those in academic and nonacademic areas 
of the school program; consultation with the student’s teacher(s), other professionals, and 
the parent/guardian, as appropriate; and analysis of the student’s needs. If it is determined 
that an evaluation is unnecessary, the 504 Coordinator shall inform the parents/guardians 
in writing of this decision and of the procedural safeguards available, as described in the 
“Procedural Safeguards” section below. 
 

iii. If the student needs or is believed to need special education or related services under 
Section 504, the Charter School shall conduct an evaluation of the student prior to his/her 
initial placement. 

 
Prior to conducting an initial evaluation of a student for eligibility under Section 504, the 
Charter School shall obtain written parent/guardian consent. 
 

The Charter School’s evaluation procedures shall ensure that the tests and other evaluation 
materials: 
a. Have been validated and are administered by trained personnel in conformance with 

the instruction provided by the test publishers. 
 

b. Are tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and are not merely designed to 
provide a single general intelligence quotient 

 
c. Reflect the student’s aptitude or achievement or whatever else the tests purport to 

measure rather than his/her impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, except where 
those skills are the factors that the tests purport to measure. 

 
4. Section 504 Services Plan and Placement: Services and placement decisions for students 

with disabilities shall be determined as follows: 
i. A multidisciplinary 504 team shall be convened to review the evaluation data in order 

to make placement decisions. The 504 team shall consist of a group of persons 
knowledgeable about the student, the meaning of the evaluation data, and the placement 
options. 
 
In interpreting evaluation data and making placement decisions, the team shall draw 
upon information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement tests, 

Page 50 of 187



teacher recommendations, physical condition, social or cultural background, and 
adaptive behavior. The team shall also ensure that information obtained from all such 
sources is documented and carefully considered. 
 

ii. If, upon evaluation, a student is determined to be eligible for services under Section 
504, the team shall meet to develop a written 504 services plan which shall specify the 
types of services necessary to ensure that the student receives FAPE. 
 
The parents/guardians shall be invited to participate in the meeting and shall be given 
an opportunity to examine all relevant records. 

 
iii. If the 504 team determines that no services are necessary for the student, the record of 

the team’s meeting shall reflect whether or not the student has been identified as a 
person with a disability under Section 504 and shall state the basis for determination 
that no special services are presently needed. The student’s parent/guardian shall be 
informed in writing of his/her rights and procedural safeguards, as described in the 
“Procedural Safeguards” section below. 
 

iv. The student shall be placed in the regular educational environment, unless the Charter 
School can demonstrate that the education of the student in the regular environment 
with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. The 
student shall be educated with those who are not disabled to the maximum extent 
appropriate to his/her individual needs. 

 
v. The Charter School shall complete the identification, evaluation, and placement 

process within a reasonable time frame. The Charter School shall adhere to this time 
frame regardless of any extended school breaks or times that school is otherwise not in 
session. 

 
vi. A copy of the student’s Section 504 services plan shall be kept in his/her student record. 

The student’s teacher(s) and any other staff who provide services to the student shall 
be informed of the plan’s requirements. 

 
If a student transfers to another school, the charter school shall ensure that the new 
school receives a copy of the plan. 

 
5. Review and Reevaluation: The 504 team shall monitor the progress of the student and, at 

least annually, shall review the effectiveness of the student’s Section 504 services plan to 
determine whether the services are appropriate and necessary and whether the student’s needs 
are being met as adequately as the needs of students without disabilities are met. In addition, 
each student with a disability under Section 504 shall be reevaluated at least once every three 
years. 
 
A reevaluation of the student’s needs will be conducted before any subsequent significant 
change in placement. 

 
6. Procedural Safeguards: The administrator or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of 

students with disabilities of all actions and decisions by the Charter School regarding the 
identification, evaluation, or educational placement of their children. He/she also shall notify 

Page 51 of 187



the parents/guardians of all the procedural safeguards available to them if they disagree with 
the Charter School’s action or decision, including an opportunity to examine all relevant 
records and an impartial hearing in which they shall have the right to participate. 
 
If a parent/guardian disagrees with any Charter School action or decision regarding the 
identification, evaluation or educational placement of his/her child under Section 504, he/she 
may request a Section 504 due process hearing within 30 days of that action or decision. 
Prior to requesting a Section 504 due process hearing, the parent/guardian may, at his/her 
discretion, but within 30 days of the Charter School’s action or decision, request an 
administrative review of the action or decision. The Coordinator shall designate an appropriate 
administrator to meet with the parent/guardian to attempt to resolve the issue and the 
administrative review shall be held within 14 days of receiving the parent/guardian request. If 
the parent/guardian is not satisfied with the resolution of the issue, or if the parent/guardian 
did not request an administrative review, he/she may request a Section 504 due process 
hearing. 
 
A Section 504 due process hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the following 
procedures: 

 
i. The parent/guardian shall submit a written request to the Coordinator within 30 days 

of receiving the Charter School’s decision or, if an administrative review is held, within 
14 days of the completion of the review. The request for the due process hearing shall 
include: 

a. The specific nature of the decision with which he/she disagrees. 
b. The specific relief he/she seeks 
c. Any other information he/she believes is pertinent to resolving the 

disagreement. 
 

ii. Within 30 days of receiving the parent/guardian’s request, the Executive Director or 
designee shall select an impartial hearing officer. This 30-day deadline may be 
extended for good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

iii. Within 45 days of the selection of the hearing officer, the Section 504 due process 
hearing shall be conducted and a written decision mailed to all parties. This 45-day 
deadline may be extended for good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
iv. The parties to the hearing shall be afforded the right to: 

a. Be accompanied and advised by legal counsel and by individuals with special 
knowledge or training related to the problems of students with disabilities under 
Section 504 

b. Present written and oral evidence 
c. Question and cross-examine witnesses 
d. Receive written findings by the hearing officer stating the decision by a federal 

court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
If desired, either party may seek a review of the hearing officer’s decision by a federal court of 
competent jurisdiction. 
 

Page 52 of 187



7. Notifications: The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that the Charter School has 
taken appropriate steps to notify students and parents/guardians of the Charter School’s duty 
under Section 504. 

 
 

Page 53 of 187



 
 
 
 

Identification and Evaluation for Special Education Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to actively seeking out and evaluating the Charter School’s 
residents from birth to age 21 who have disabilities in order to provide them with appropriate 
educational opportunities in accordance with state and federal law. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Identification and 
Evaluation for Special Education Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Procedures for Identifying and Evaluating Individuals Eligible for Special 
Education.  

2. Establish the Procedures for Notifying Parents of Individuals Eligible for Special 
Education.  

 
1. Identification and Evaluation: The Executive Director or designee shall establish a 

comprehensive system that includes procedures for the identification, screening, referral, and 
regular and triennial assessment of individuals eligible for special education, as well as 
procedures for the planning, implementation, and review of the education and related services 
provided to such individuals. (Education Code 56301) 
 
The charter's identification procedures shall include methods for utilizing referrals from 
parents/guardians, teachers, appropriate professionals, and others, and shall be coordinated 
with procedures for the referral of students whose needs cannot be met with modifications to 
the regular instructional program.  (Education Code 56302) 

 
2. Notification: The Executive Director or designee shall notify parents/guardians, in writing, of 

their rights related to identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning, 
implementation, and review, including the right to consent to any assessment concerning their 
child.  In addition, the Executive Director or designee shall notify parents/guardians of 
procedures for initiating a referral for assessment to identify individuals who need special 
education services.  (Education Code 56301) 

 

Page 54 of 187



 
 
 
 

Individual Education Program Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to identifying and serving students who have exceptional 
needs and are eligible to receive special education supports and services. Our commitment is based 
on the belief that all students shall have access to a high quality public education. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Individual Education 
Program Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Administrative Regulations Regarding for an Individualized Education 
Program 

2. Identify A Foster Parent’s Rights  
 
1. Administrative Regulation: The Executive Director or designee shall develop administrative 

regulations regarding the appointment of the individualized education program (IEP) team, the 
contents of the IEP, and the development, review, and revision of the IEP. 
 

2. Rights of a Foster Parent: To the extent permitted by federal law, a foster parent shall have 
the same rights relative to his/her foster child's IEP as a parent/guardian.  (Education Code 
56055) 
 

 
 

Page 55 of 187



 
 
 
 

Individual Education Program Administrative Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to identifying and serving students who have exceptional 
needs and are eligible to receive special education supports and services. Our commitment is based 
on the belief that all students shall have access to a high quality public education. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Individual Education 
Program Administrative Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Define an Individualized Education Program.  
2. Identify the Members of an IEP Team 
3. Outline the Circumstances When an Individual Can be Invited to the IEP Meeting 
4. Outline the Contents of the IEP 
5. Outline the Procedures for the Development of the IEP 
6. Outline the Provision of Special Education and Related Services 
7. Outline the Process to Review and Revise the IEP 
8. Outline the Use of Audio Recordings at an IEP Team Meeting  
9. Identify Parent/Guardian Participation and Other Rights 
10. Identify Parent/Guardian Consent for Provision of Special Education and Services 
11. Outline the Procedures for Transfer Students 
 

1. Individual Education Program: At the beginning of each school year, the charter shall have 
an individualized education program (IEP) in effect for each student with a disability within 
Charter School jurisdiction.  The IEP shall be a written statement designed by the IEP team to 
meet the unique educational needs of a student with a disability.  (Education Code 56344; 34 
CFR 300.323) 

 
2. Members of the IEP Team: The IEP team for any student with a disability shall include the 

following members: (Education Code 56341, 56341.5; 20 USC 1414(d)(1); 34 CFR 300.321) 
 
1. One or both of the student's parents/guardians and/or a representative selected by them 

 
2. If the student is or may be participating in the regular education program, at least one 

of the student's regular education teachers designated by the Executive Director or 
designee to represent the student's teachers.  

 
The regular education teacher shall, to the extent appropriate, participate in the 
development, review, and revision of the student's IEP, including assisting in the 
determination of appropriate positive behavioral interventions, supports, and other 

Page 56 of 187



strategies for the student, and supplementary aids and services, program modifications, 
and supports for school personnel that will be provided for the student, consistent with 
34 CFR 300.320.  (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414(d)(3)(C); 34 CFR 300.324) 
 

3. At least one of the student's special education teachers or, where appropriate, special 
education providers 

 
4. A representative of the Charter School who is: 

a.  Qualified to provide or supervise the provision of specially designed 
instruction to meet the unique needs of students with disabilities 
 

b. Knowledgeable about the general education curriculum 
 

c.  Knowledgeable about the availability of Charter School and/or special 
education local plan area (SELPA) resources 

 
5. An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of assessment results. 

This individual may already be a member of the team as described in items #2-4 above 
or in item #6 below. 
 

6. At the discretion of the parent/guardian or the Executive Director or designee, other 
individuals who have knowledge or special expertise regarding the student, including 
related services personnel, as appropriate. The determination of whether the individual 
has knowledge or special expertise regarding the student shall be made by the party 
who invites the individual to be a member of the IEP team. 
 

7. Whenever appropriate, the student with a disability 
 
In the development, review, or revision of his/her IEP, the student shall be allowed to 
provide confidential input to any representative of his/her IEP team.  (Education Code 
56341.5) 
 
When the student is suspected of having a specific learning disability, at least one 
individual who is qualified to conduct individual diagnostic examinations of the student 
such as a school psychologist, speech language pathologist, or remedial reading teacher 
 
In accordance with 34 CFR 300.310, at least one team member other than the student's 
regular education teacher shall observe the student's academic performance and 
behavior in the areas of difficulty in his/her learning environment, including in the 
regular classroom setting.  If the child is younger than five years or not enrolled in 
school, a team member shall observe the child in an environment appropriate for a child 
of that age. 

 
3. Invitation of Specified Individuals: In the following circumstances, the Executive Director 

or designee shall invite other specified individuals to an IEP team meeting: 
 

1. When the student has been placed in a group home by the juvenile court, a 
representative of the group home shall be invited to attend IEP team 
meetings.  (Education Code 56341.2) 

Page 57 of 187



 
2. Whenever the IEP team is meeting to consider the student's postsecondary goals and 

the transition services needed to assist him/her in reaching the goals as stated in 
Education Code 56345(a)(8), the following individuals shall be invited to attend: (34 
CFR 300.321) 

 
a. The student, regardless of his/her age.  

 
If the student does not attend the IEP team meeting, the Executive Director or 
designee shall take other steps to ensure that the student's preferences and 
interests are considered. 
 

b.To the extent appropriate, and with the consent of the parent/guardian, a 
representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for providing 
or paying for the transition services 
 

3. If the student was previously served under the Early Education for Individuals with 
Exceptional Needs (Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early Intervention 
Services Act (Government Code 95000-95004), and upon request of the student's 
parent/guardian, the Executive Director or designee shall invite the Infant and Toddlers 
with Disabilities Coordinator or other representative of the early education or early 
intervention system to the initial IEP team meeting to assist with the smooth transition 
of services.  (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(D); 34 CFR 300.321) 
 

4. A member of the IEP team shall not be required to attend an IEP team meeting, in 
whole or in part, if the parent/guardian and the Charter School agree, in writing, that 
the attendance of the member is not necessary because the member's area of the 
curriculum or related services is not being modified or discussed at the meeting.  Even 
if the meeting involves a discussion of the IEP team member's area of the curriculum 
or related service, the member may be excused from the meeting if the parent/guardian, 
in writing, and the Charter School consent to the excusal after conferring with the 
member and the member submits to the parent/guardian and team written input into the 
development of the IEP prior to the meeting.  (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 
1414(d)(1)(C); 34 CFR 300.321) 

 
4. The Contents of the IEP: The IEP shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: 

(Education Code 56043, 56345, 56345.1; 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(A); 34 CFR 300.320) 
 

1. A statement of the present levels of the student's academic achievement and functional 
performance, including: 
 

2. The manner in which the student's disability affects his/her involvement and progress 
in the general education curriculum (i.e., the same curriculum as for nondisabled 
students) 

 
3. For a student with a disability who takes alternate assessments aligned to alternate 

achievement standards, a description of benchmarks or short-term objectives 
 

Page 58 of 187



4. A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, 
designed to: 

 
a. Meet the student's needs that result from his/her disability in order to enable the 

student to be involved in and progress in the general education curriculum 
 

b.Meet each of the student's other educational needs that result from his/her 
disability 

 
5. A description of the manner in which the student's progress toward meeting the annual 

goals described in item #2 above will be measured and when the Charter School will 
provide periodic reports on the progress the student is making toward meeting the 
annual goals, such as through the use of quarterly or other periodic reports, concurrent 
with the issuance of report cards 
 

6. A statement of the special education instruction and related services and supplementary 
aids and services, based on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable, to be 
provided to the student or on behalf of the student, and a statement of the program 
modifications or supports for school personnel that will be provided to enable the 
student to: 

 
a.  Advance appropriately toward attaining the annual goals 

 
b. Be involved and make progress in the general education curriculum in 

accordance with item #1 above and to participate in extracurricular and other 
nonacademic activities 

 
c.  Be educated and participate with other students with disabilities and 

nondisabled students in the activities described in the IEP 
 
7. An explanation of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with 

nondisabled students in the regular class and in extracurricular and other nonacademic 
activities described in the IEP 
 

8. A statement of any appropriate individual accommodations necessary to measure the 
academic achievement and functional performance of the student on state and school 
assessments 

 
If the IEP team determines that the student shall take an alternate assessment instead of 
a particular regular state or Charter Schoolwide assessment, the student's IEP also shall 
include a statement of the reason that he/she cannot participate in the regular 
assessment and the reason that the particular alternate assessment selected is 
appropriate for him/her. 

 
9. The projected date for the beginning of the services and modifications described in item 

#4 above and the anticipated frequency, location, and duration of those services and 
modifications 
 

Page 59 of 187



10. Beginning not later than the first IEP to be in effect when the student is 16 years of age, 
or younger if determined appropriate by the IEP team, and updated annually thereafter, 
the following: 

 
a. Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate 

transition assessments related to training, education, employment, and where 
appropriate, independent living skills 
 

b.The transition services, including courses of study, needed to assist the student 
in reaching those goals 

 
11. Beginning at least one year before the student reaches age 18, a statement that the 

student has been informed of his/her rights, if any, that will transfer to him/her upon 
reaching age 18, pursuant to Education Code 56041.5 
 

12. Where appropriate, the IEP shall also include: (Education Code 56345) 
 

a. For a student in grades 7-12, any alternative means and modes necessary for the 
student to complete the Charter School's prescribed course of study and to meet 
or exceed proficiency standards required for graduation 
 

b.Linguistically appropriate goals, objectives, programs, and services for a 
student whose native language is not English 

 
c. Extended school year services when the IEP team determines, on an individual 

basis, that the services are necessary for the provision of a free appropriate 
public education (FAPE) 

 
d.Provision for transition into the regular education program if the student is to 

be transferred from a special class or center or nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
into a regular education program in a public school for any part of the school 
day, including descriptions of activities intended to: 

 
i. Integrate the student into the regular education program, including 

indications of the nature of each activity and the time spent on the 
activity each day or week 
 

ii. Support the transition of the student from the special education program 
into the regular education program 

 
iii. Specialized services, materials, and equipment for a student with low 

incidence disabilities, consistent with the guidelines pursuant to 
Education Code 56136 

 
5. Development of the IEP: Within 30 days of a determination that a student needs special 

education and related services, the Executive Director or designee shall ensure that a meeting 
to develop an initial IEP is conducted.  (34 CFR 300.323) 
 

Page 60 of 187



Any IEP required as a result of an assessment of a student shall be developed within 60 days 
from the date of receipt of the parent/guardian's written consent for assessment, unless the 
parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an extension.  Days between the student's regular school 
sessions, terms, or vacation of more than five school days shall not be counted.  In the case of 
school vacations, the 60-day time limit shall commence on the date that the student's school 
days reconvene.  (Education Code 56344) 
 
However, when the IEP is required as a result of an assessment of a student for whom a referral 
has been made 30 days or less prior to the end of the preceding regular school year, the IEP 
shall be developed within 30 days after the commencement of the subsequent regular school 
year.  (Education Code 56344) 
In developing the IEP, the IEP team shall consider all of the following: (Education Code 
56341.1, 56345; 20 USC 1414(d)(3)(A); 34 CFR 300.324) 
 

1. The strengths of the student 
 

2. The concerns of the parents/guardians for enhancing the education of their child 
 
3. The results of the initial or most recent assessment of the student 
 
4. The academic, developmental, and functional needs of the student 
 
5. In the case of a student whose behavior impedes his/her learning or that of others, the 

use of positive behavioral interventions and supports and other strategies to address 
that behavior 

 
6. In the case of a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the 

student as such needs relate to the student's IEP 
 
7. In the case of a student who is blind or visually impaired, the need to provide for 

instruction in Braille and instruction in the use of Braille. However, such instruction 
need not be included in the IEP if the IEP team determines that instruction in Braille or 
the use of Braille is not appropriate for the student.  This determination shall be based 
upon an assessment of the student's reading and writing skills, his/her future needs for 
instruction in Braille or the use of Braille, and other appropriate reading and writing 
media. 

 
8. The communication needs of the student and, in the case of a student who is deaf or 

hard of hearing, the student's language and communication needs, opportunities for 
direct communications with peers and professional personnel in the student's language 
and communication mode, academic level, and full range of needs, including 
opportunities for direct instruction in the student's language and communication mode 

 
9. The team shall also consider the related services and program options that provide the 

student with an equal opportunity for communication access, as described in Education 
Code 56345. 

 
a. Whether the student requires assistive technology devices and services 

 
Page 61 of 187



10. If, in considering the special factors in items #1-9 above, the IEP team determines that 
the student needs a particular device or service, including an intervention, 
accommodation, or other program modification, in order to receive FAPE, the team 
shall include a statement to that effect in the student's IEP.  (Education Code 56341.1) 

 
6. Provision of Special Education and Related Services: The Charter School shall ensure that, 

as soon as possible following development of the IEP, special education services and related 
services are made available to the student in accordance with his/her IEP.  (Education Code 
56344; 34 CFR 300.323) 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that the student's IEP is accessible to each 
regular education teacher, special education teacher, related service provider, and any other 
service provider who is responsible for its implementation.  The Executive Director or 
designee also shall ensure that such teachers and providers are informed of their specific 
responsibilities related to implementing the IEP and the specific accommodations, 
modifications, and supports that must be provided to the student in accordance with the IEP. 
(34 CFR 300.323) 

 
7. Review and Revision of the IEP: The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that the 

IEP team reviews the IEP periodically, but at least annually, in order to: (Education Code 
56043, 56341.1, 56380; 20 USC 1414(d)(4); 34 CFR 300.324) 

1. Determine whether the annual goals for the student are being achieved 
 

2. Revise the IEP, as appropriate, to address: 
 

a.  Any lack of expected progress toward the annual goals and in the general 
education curriculum, where appropriate 
 

b. The results of any reassessment conducted pursuant to Education Code 56381 
 

c. Information about the student provided to or by the parents/guardians regarding 
review of evaluation data pursuant to 34 CFR 300.305(a)(2) and Education 
Code 56381(b) 

 
d.The student's anticipated needs 

 
e. Any other relevant matter 

 
3. Consider the special factors listed in items #5-9 above under "Development of the IEP," 

when reviewing the IEP of any student with a disability to whom one of those factors 
may apply 

 
The IEP team shall also meet at any other time upon request by the student's parent/guardian 
or teacher to review or revise the IEP.  (Education Code 56343) 

 
When a parent/guardian requests an IEP team meeting to review the IEP, the team shall meet 
within 30 days of receiving the parent/guardian's written request, not counting days between 
the student's regular school sessions or terms or days of school vacation in excess of five school 
days. If a parent/guardian makes an oral request, the Charter School shall notify the 

Page 62 of 187



parent/guardian of the need for a written request and the procedure for filing such a 
request.  (Education Code 56043, 56343.5) 

 
A regular education or special education teacher may request a review of the classroom 
assignment of a student with a disability by submitting a written request to the Executive 
Director or designee.  The Executive Director or designee shall consider the request within 20 
days of receiving it, not counting days when school is not in session or, for year-round schools, 
days when the school is off track.  If the review indicates a need for change in the student's 
placement, instruction, and/or related services, the Executive Director or designee shall 
convene an IEP team meeting, which shall be held within 30 days of the Executive Director or 
designee review, not counting days when school is not in session or days when school is off 
track, unless the student's parent/guardian consents in writing to an extension of time. 

 
If a participating agency other than the Charter School fails to provide the transition services 
described in the student's IEP, the team shall reconvene to identify alternative strategies to 
meet the transition service objectives set out for the student in the IEP.  (Education Code 
56345.1; 20 USC 1414(d); 34 CFR 300.324) 

 
If a student with a disability residing in a licensed children's institution or foster family home 
has been placed by the Charter School in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school, the Executive 
Director or designee shall conduct an annual evaluation as part of the IEP process of whether 
the placement is the least restrictive environment that is appropriate to meet the student's 
needs.  (Education Code 56157) 

 
To the extent possible, the Executive Director or designee shall encourage the consolidation of 
reassessment meetings and other IEP team meetings for a student.  (20 USC 1414(d)(3)(A); 34 
CFR 300.324) 

 
When a change is necessary to a student's IEP after the annual IEP team meeting for the school 
year has been held, the parent/guardian and the Executive Director  or designee may agree not 
to convene an IEP team meeting for the purpose of making the change and instead may develop 
a written document to amend or modify the student's current IEP.  The IEP team shall be 
informed of any such changes.  Upon request, the Executive Director or designee shall provide 
the parent/guardian with a revised copy of the IEP with the incorporated amendments.  (20 
USC 1414(d)(3)(D); 34 CFR 300.324) 
 

8. Audio Recording of IEP Team Meetings: Parents/guardians and the Executive Director or 
designee shall have the right to audio record the proceedings of IEP team meetings, provided 
members of the IEP team are notified of this intent at least 24 hours before the meeting.  If the 
Executive Director or designee gives notice of intent to audio record a meeting and the 
parent/guardian objects or refuses to attend because the meeting would be audio recorded, the 
meeting shall not be audio recorded.  Parents/guardians also have the right to: (Education Code 
56341.1) 
 

1. Inspect and review the audio recordings 
 

2. Request that an audio recording be amended if they believe it contains information that 
is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy rights or other rights 

 
Page 63 of 187



3. Challenge, in a hearing, information that the parents/guardians believe is inaccurate, 
misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy rights or other rights 

 
9. Parent/Guardian Participation and Other Rights: The Executive Director or designee shall 

take steps to ensure that one or both of the parents/guardians of the student with a disability 
are present at each IEP team meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate. These steps 
shall include notifying the parents/guardians of the meeting early enough to ensure that they 
will have the opportunity to attend and scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time 
and place.  (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall send parents/guardians notices of IEP team meetings 
that: (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 
 

1. Indicate the purpose, time, and location of the meeting 
 

2. Indicate who will be in attendance at the meeting 
 
3. Inform them of: 
 

a. Their right to bring to the meeting other individuals who have knowledge or 
special expertise about the student, pursuant to Education Code 56341(b)(6) 
 

b.The provision of Education Code 56341(i) relating to the participation of the 
Infant and Toddlers with Disabilities Coordinator at the initial IEP team 
meeting, if the student was previously served under Early Education for 
Individuals with Exceptional Needs (Education Code 56425-56432) or the 
California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95004) 

 
4. In addition, when the IEP team meeting is to consider the development, review, or 

revision of the IEP of a student with a disability who is 16 years of age or older, or 
younger than 16 if deemed appropriate by the IEP team, the Executive Director or 
designee notice to the student's parents/guardians shall include the following: 
(Education Code 56341.5) 
 

a.  An indication that a purpose of the meeting will be the consideration of 
postsecondary goals and transition services for the student pursuant to 
Education Code 56345.1, 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(A)(i)(VIII), and 34 CFR 
300.320(b) 
 

b. An indication that the student is invited to the IEP team meeting 
 

c.  Identification of any other agency that will be invited to send a representative 
 
At each IEP team meeting convened by the charter, the school administrator or specialist on 
the team shall inform the parent/guardian and student of the federal and state procedural 
safeguards included in the notice of parental rights provided pursuant to Education Code 
56321.  (Education Code 56500.1) 
 

Page 64 of 187



The parent/guardian shall have the right and opportunity to examine all of his/her child's school 
records upon request, before any IEP meeting, and in connection with any hearing or resolution 
session on matters affecting his/her child, including, but not limited to, initial formal 
assessment, procedural safeguards, and due process.  Upon receipt of an oral or written request, 
the Executive Director or designee shall provide complete copies of the records within five 
business days. (Education Code 56043, 56504) 

 

The parent/guardian shall have the right to present information to the IEP team in person or 
through a representative and the right to participate in meetings that relate to eligibility for 
special education and related services, recommendations, and program planning.  (Education 
Code 56341.1) 

 
If neither parent/guardian can attend the meeting, the Executive Director or designee shall use 
other methods to ensure parent/guardian participation, including video conferences or 
individual or conference telephone calls.  (Education Code 56341.5; 20 USC 1414(f); 34 CFR 
300.322) 
 
At each IEP team meeting convened by the charter, the school administrator or specialist on 
the team shall inform the parent/guardian and student of the federal and state procedural 
safeguards included in the notice of parental rights provided pursuant to Education Code 
56321.  (Education Code 56500.1) 

 

The parent/guardian shall have the right and opportunity to examine all of his/her child's school 
records upon request, before any IEP meeting, and in connection with any hearing or resolution 
session on matters affecting his/her child, including, but not limited to, initial formal 
assessment, procedural safeguards, and due process.  Upon receipt of an oral or written request, 
the Executive Director or designee shall provide complete copies of the records within five 
business days. (Education Code 56043, 56504) 

 

The parent/guardian shall have the right to present information to the IEP team in person or 
through a representative and the right to participate in meetings that relate to eligibility for 
special education and related services, recommendations, and program planning.  (Education 
Code 56341.1) 

 
If neither parent/guardian can attend the meeting, the Executive Director or designee shall use 
other methods to ensure parent/guardian participation, including video conferences or 
individual or conference telephone calls.  (Education Code 56341.5; 20 USC 1414(f); 34 CFR 
300.322) 
 
An IEP team meeting may be conducted without a parent/guardian in attendance if the 
Executive Director or designee is unable to convince the parent/guardian that he/she should 
attend.  In such a case, the Executive Director or designee shall maintain a record of the 
attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place for the meeting, including: 
(Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 
 

1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls 
 

Page 65 of 187



2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received 
 
3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian's home or place of employment 

and the results of those visits 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall take any action necessary to ensure that the 
parents/guardians understand the proceedings of the meeting, including arranging for an 
interpreter for parents/guardians with deafness or whose native language is not 
English.  (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall give the parents/guardians of a student with a 
disability a copy of his/her child's IEP at no cost.  (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

  
10. Parent/Guardian Consent for Provision of Special Education and Services: Before 

providing special education and related services to any student, the Executive Director or 
designee shall seek to obtain informed consent of the student's parent/guardian pursuant to 20 
USC 1414(a)(1).  The Charter shall not provide services by utilizing the due process hearing 
procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415(f) if the parent/guardian refuses to consent to the 
initiation of services.  If the parent/guardian does not consent to all of the components of the 
IEP, then those components to which the parent/guardian has consented shall be implemented 
so as not to delay providing instruction and services to the student.  (Education Code 56346) 
 
If the Executive Director or designee determines that a part of a proposed IEP to which the 
parent/guardian does not consent is necessary in order to provide the student with FAPE, a due 
process hearing shall be initiated in accordance with 20 USC 1415(f).  While the due process 
hearing is pending, the student shall remain in the current placement unless the parent/guardian 
and the Executive Director or designee agree otherwise.  (Education Code 56346) 
 
If at any time subsequent to the initial provision of services, the student's parent/guardian, in 
writing, revokes consent for the continued provision of special education services, the 
Executive Director or designee shall provide prior written notice within a reasonable time 
before ceasing to provide services to the student.  The Executive Director or designee shall not 
request a due process hearing or pursue mediation in order to require an agreement or ruling 
that services be provided to the student.  (Education Code 56346; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503) 
 
When the Charter School ceases to provide special education services in response to the 
parent/guardian's revocation of consent, the student shall be classified as a general education 
student. 

 
11. Transfer Students: To facilitate the transition of a student with a disability who is transferring 

into the Charter School, the Executive Director or designee shall take reasonable steps to 
promptly obtain the student's records, including his/her IEP and the supporting documents 
related to the provision of special education services.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 
300.323) 
 
If the student transfers into the charter from another school Charter School within the same 
SELPA during the school year, the Charter School shall continue to provide services 
comparable to those described in the student's existing IEP, unless his/her parent/guardian and 

Page 66 of 187



the Charter School agree to develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP that is consistent with 
state and federal law.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 
 
If the student transfers into the charter from a school district outside of the Charter School’s 
SELPA during the school year, the Charter School shall provide the student with FAPE, 
including services comparable to those described in the previous district's IEP. Within 30 days, 
the Executive Director or designee shall, in consultation with the student's parents/guardians, 
adopt the previous district's IEP or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP that is 
consistent with state and federal law.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 
 
If the student transfers into the Charter School from an out-of-state district during the school 
year, the Charter School shall provide the student with FAPE, including services comparable 
to the out-of-state district's IEP, in consultation with the parent/guardian, until such time as the 
Executive Director or designee conducts an assessment, if it determines that such an 
assessment is necessary, and develops, adopts, and implements a new IEP, if 
appropriate.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67 of 187



 
 
 
 

Parent-Student Information Technology  
Acceptable Use Policy 

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to providing our students with access to technology, 
information, and digital resources while fostering safe, responsible, and ethical learning 
environments. The Charter School is committed to upholding important security, privacy, and 
safety regulations, protocols, and standards. Users of the Charter School’s devices, networks, 
accounts, and other resources must adhere to the Charter School’s policies. Users are also expected 
to fully comply with local, state, and federal regulations. Failure to adhere to these policies or 
regulations may result in discipline, legal action, or other remedies determined to be within the 
rights of the Charter School.  Relevant regulations include (but are not limited to): 

● The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
● Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) 
● Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
● Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 
● Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Parent-Student 
Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Define Technology Use Terms and Phrases 
2. Identify the User Responsibility 
3. Outline Acceptable Use of Resources  
4. Outline Unacceptable Use of Resources  
5. Outline the Expectation of Privacy 
6. Define Cyberbullying  
7. Outline Stolen Technology Procedures  
8. Outline the Student Departure Procedures 
9. Identify the Disclaimers and Acknowledgements  
10. Establish the User Agreement  

 
1. Definitions:  

• School or Organization or We – the Charter School and its subsidiaries, programs, and 
divisions 

• ITD - Inspire Charter Schools Information Technology Department 
• You or Your or I - the parent/guardian, student, and signer of this Acceptable Use of 

Page 68 of 187



Technology Policy 
• Resources - devices, systems, services or networks owned, operated or issued by the 

Charter School.  
• User - any person(s) accessing or utilizing the Charter School’s resources that is not a 

resource operator 
• AUP – Parent-Student Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy 

 
2. User Responsibilities: Access to the Charter School’s technology, resources, and support is a 

privilege which offers a wealth of educational benefits. To maintain these privileges, all users 
must agree to, learn about, and comply with all information within this AUP document. 

• You agree to, learn about and comply with all information outlined in this AUP 
document 
 

• Persons to whom items are assigned are expected to exercise reasonable care to protect 
those items against damage, loss and theft. “Reasonable care” is defined as: 

o Never leaving items unattended 
o Never lending, giving or releasing items to a person other than an employee of 

the ITD or Charter School 
o Never removing protective accessories or features (e.g. cases, bumpers) 
o Keeping items away from dangerous conditions (e.g. liquids, heat sources, 

unstable surfaces or items) and preventing actions which promote damage 
beyond normal wear and tear 
 

• You must immediately report damaged, lost, or stolen items/resources. Items reported 
stolen or missing will require a police report. 
 

• Parents/guardians are expected to provide supervision and monitor device/Internet 
access and usage.  
 

• You are expected to make a reasonable effort to protect your passwords, information 
and data.  

 
• You are obligated to notify the ITD of continued access to resources beyond student 

departure (e.g. withdrawal, graduation, expulsion) in the event the ITD has not 
contacted you to do so.  

 
• Items, devices and resources issued by the Charter School are School property 

and must be returned or relinquished to the Charter School upon request.  
 
3. Acceptable Use of Resources:  

• All of the Charter School-issued accounts are intended solely for use by the person 
authorized to use the account. 

Page 69 of 187



 
• When sharing or exposing personal information or data online, extreme caution should 

be exercised. 
 

• Any information or communication accessible via any of the Charter School networks 
should be assumed private property. 

 
• The Charter Schools reserves the right to verify whether specific uses of the Charter 

School technology or networks are consistent with this acceptable use policy. 
 

• The Charter School is bound by certain licensing agreements. Users are expected to 
comply with those agreements. 

 
• Educational and instructional use as related to the Charter School only 

 

4. Unacceptable Use of Resources: 
• All commercial or personal for-profit usage is prohibited. 

• The access, use or transmission of objectionable material (e.g. materials that are 
obscene, bullying, profane, lewd, threatening, disrespectful, hateful, pornographic) is 
prohibited.  
 

• Violation of any local, state, or federal laws as well as School, board or administrative 
policies are prohibited. (e.g. Federal copyright laws - Title 17, USC) 

 
• Any attempt to circumvent of the Charter School’s security measures, content filters or 

access restricted resources is prohibited. 
 

• All malicious and nefarious activities are prohibited. Examples include (1) 
unauthorized trespassing or infiltration of a network or device, (2) the intentional 
distribution of malware, (3) any attempt to deny a remote service. Malicious actors may 
also be in violation of California’s unauthorized computer access law, Penal Code 
502(c) PC. 

 
• The intentional collection, mining, or uncovering of personal information, files, 

passwords belonging to a user other than yourself is prohibited.  
 

• Impersonation of any user other than yourself is prohibited. 
 

• Unauthorized falsification or modification of any school records is prohibited. 
  

Page 70 of 187

https://www.copyright.gov/title17/


• The collection or transmission of personal information (e.g. home address, phone 
number, personal email) which may be useable to identify an individual without written 
consent is prohibited. 

 
• Political lobbying or advertising is prohibited. 

 
• Unauthorized maintenance, service, repairs, or upgrades are prohibited. The Charter 

School’s owned or operated resources must be maintained by the ITD or authorized 
third parties.  

 
5. Expectation of Privacy: For email, networks, systems, and other resources owned or operated 

by the Charter School, users should have no expectation of privacy. The Charter School 
reserves the right to manage and monitor all aspects of its own resources. The following are 
examples of actions which may be performed for reasons deemed legitimate by the Charter 
School:  
 

• Obtain emails, messages, and their attachments transmitted to or through the Charter 
School’s owned or operated email systems 
 

• Monitor an individual's use of the Charter School’s owned resources 
 
• Locate or track the location of the Charter School’s owned resource 
 
• Confiscate, search, disable, or wipe any of the Charter School’s owned device, item or 

their contents/data 
 
Personal devices are private. The Charter School must obtain permission to access personal 
devices.  
 

6. Cyberbullying: Cyberbullying is the use of technology resources to willfully harm either a 
person or persons through electronic systems (e.g. texts, photos, videos. messages, social 
media).  Examples of this behavior include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Transmitting false, cruel, hateful, or embarrassing information or media targeting 
others 
 

• Creating posts or websites that have stories, cartoons, pictures or jokes ridiculing others 
 
• Unauthorized access to any resource (e.g. social media, email) for purposes of 

downloading or transmitting vicious or embarrassing materials 
 

• Engaging someone in electronic communication, tricking that person into revealing 
sensitive personal information, and transmitting that information or media to others 

 

Page 71 of 187



• Posting of a student picture without their permission. 
 
• The use of derogatory comments, including those regarding race, age, gender, sexual 

orientation, religion, ability, political persuasion, body type, physical or mental health. 
 

7. Stolen Technology: The Charter School is proud to work with Absolute Software - a solution 
that allows for effective security technology and student safety programs that track, locate and 
recover your endpoints in the event of a theft, while ensuring safety for students. Absolute 
provides: 
 

• Remote security to monitor and protect each device  
 

• Reporting tools that give hardware and software information  
 

• Remote device freeze with user verification messaging  
 
• Track assets on Google Maps, including recent and historical locations 
 
• Web filtering to protect students on and off school networks 
 
• Adherence to CIPA regulations around internet security policies 
 
• Thief investigation services, remediation and more 
 

The Recovery Investigation team will work with local law enforcement to recover any stolen 
device that is tracked through Absolute. They will attempt to collect the device up to 60 days. 
If they are unsuccessful, the Charter School may be compensated up to $500 for that device. 
Pricing may vary and is subject to change without notice and is not guaranteed. 
 
The Charter School’s ITD always tries to take the most cautious and diplomatic approach when 
attempting to recover any stolen items. Three attempts will be made to contact the employee 
using all forms of communication. Once our attempts have been unsuccessful, a police report 
is established and all information is handed over to the Absolute Recovery Team for further 
investigation. Absolute will then continue their process by tracking the device, contact the 
person in question, communicate with local law enforcement and if found provide a warrant to 
search for the device.  
 
If a student has a lost or stolen device while still enrolled with the School, please report the 
device to local law enforcement and contact the Technology Department to begin the 
investigation process. ITD will do their best to recovery and replace any device that has been 
reported as lost, stolen, or missing. A police report must be provided prior to starting the 
investigation.  
 
For more details, please visit: www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute 
 

Page 72 of 187

http://www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute


8. Student Departure: Upon student departure (e.g. withdrawal, graduation, or expulsion) from 
the Charter School, all issued items must be returned within 30 days. Prepaid return labels and 
pick up services may be provided at no cost. Please review the Charter School’s Tech Centre 
and Issued Technology Agreement for complete details regarding returns.  
 
If all attempts to collect a device are unsuccessful, the matter will be handed over to local law 
enforcement and pursued on behalf of the Charter School. Any missing technology will also 
be added to the student’s records. 
For information regarding technology returns, please review the Charter School’s Tech Centre 
and Issued Technology Agreement or contact ITD. 
 

9. Disclaimer & Acknowledgements:  
• The Charter School reserves the right to modify its policies and rules at any time. 

 
• ALL DEVICES, ITEMS AND SOFTWARE ISSUED BY THE CHARTER SCHOOL 

ARE SCHOOL PROPERTY. YOU ARE REQUIRED TO RETURN ALL ITEMS 
ISSUED TO YOU UPON REQUEST BY OR DEPARTURE FROM THE CHARTER 
SCHOOL. We reserve the right to issue penalties (e.g. denial of access to resources, withholding 
of transcripts) or seek legal remedies in response to non-compliance. 

 
• Access to the Charter School’s technology, resources and support is a privilege, not a right. 

These privileges are offered at the discretion of the Charter School.  
 

• The Charter School will not be held liable for the information or data retrieved, stored, or 
transmitted by means of the Charter School owned or operated resources, devices, 
networks, or systems 
 

• Users should not have an expectation of privacy in the use of the Charter School’s 
resources, email, systems, networks 
 

• Illegal activities performed using the Charter School’s devices, networks, and systems will 
be reported to the proper authorities when discovered 
 

• The Charter School will not be held responsible for losses or damages suffered by any user, 
including loss of data, interruption of service, delays, or non-deliveries 
 

• The Charter School’s issued property reported as lost, missing, or stolen may be remotely 
tracked, located and/or disabled at the discretion of the Charter School.  
 

• The Charter School may confiscate and search any of the Charter School’s resource for 
any reason deemed reasonable by the Charter School including in response to violation of 
school policies or government regulations 
 

• The Charter School is not in any way an Internet Service Provider 
Page 73 of 187



 
10. User Agreement Statement: I have read, understand, and will abide by the PARENT-

STUDENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY when using 
any of the Charter School’s technology and other electronic resources issued, owned or 
operated by the Charter School. I further understand that any violation of the policies above 
are considered unethical and in some cases may constitute a criminal offense. Should I violate 
any of the policies outlined in this agreement, I understand my access to any of the Charter 
School’s technology resource may be limited, revoked or returned and disciplinary and or legal 
action may be taken. 
 
________________________________ 
STUDENT NAME (please print) 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
PARENT/GUARDIAN SIGNATURE   Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 74 of 187



 
 
 
 

Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for  
Special Education Policy 

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to protecting the rights of students with disabilities in 
accordance with the procedural safeguards set forth in state and federal law.  Parents/guardians 
shall receive written notice of their rights in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Procedural 
Safeguards for Special Education Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Charter School’s Representation in a Due Process Hearing  
2. Establish the Complaint Procedures for Special Education 
 

1. Charter School’s Representation in a Due Process Hearing: The Executive Director or 
designee shall represent the Charter School in any due process hearing conducted with regard 
to the Charter School’s students and shall inform the Board about the result of the hearing. 
 

2. Complaint Procedures for Special Education: The Executive Director or designee shall 
address a complaint concerning compliance with state or federal law regarding special 
education in accordance with the Charter School’s uniform complaint procedures. 

 
 
 

Page 75 of 187



 
 
 
 

Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special 
Education Students Administrative Regulation  

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to protecting the rights of students with disabilities in 
accordance with the procedural safeguards set forth in state and federal law.  Parents/guardians 
shall receive written notice of their rights in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Procedural 
Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education Students Administrative Regulation is to 
accomplish the following:    
 

1. Define Reasonable Time for Written Notice 
2. Identify What is Included in Written Notice 
3. Outline the Procedures for Procedural Safeguard Notice  
4. Outline the Format for Parent/Guardian Notice  
5. Outline the Procedures for a Due Process Complaint  
6. Outline the Charter School’s Response to Due Process Complaints 
7. Outline the Informal Process/Pre-Hearing Mediation Conference 
 

1. Reasonable Time for Written Notice: The Executive Director or designee shall send to the 
parents/guardians of any student with disabilities a prior written notice within a reasonable 
time: (20 USC 1415(c); 34 CFR 300.102, 300.300, 300.503; Education Code 56500.4, 
56500.5) 
 

• Before the charter initially refers the student for assessment 
 

• Before the charter proposes to initiate or change the student's identification, 
assessment, educational placement, or the provision of a free appropriate public 
education (FAPE) to the student 

 
• Before the charter refuses to initiate or change the student's identification, assessment, 

or educational placement or the provision of FAPE to the student 
 
• Before the student graduates from high school with a regular diploma thus resulting in 

a change in placement 
 

Page 76 of 187



• Upon receipt of the parent/guardian's written revocation of consent for the continued 
provision of special education and related services to his/her child 

 
2. Written Notice: This notice shall include: (20 USC 1415(c); 34 CFR 300.503; Education Code 

56500.4) 
 

• A description of the action proposed or refused by the charter 
 

• An explanation as to why the charter proposes or refuses to take the action 
 

• A description of each assessment procedure, test, record, or report the charter used as 
a basis for the proposed or refused action 

 
• A statement that the parents/guardians of the student have protection under procedural 

safeguards and, if this notice is not an initial referral for assessment, the means by 
which a copy of the description of procedural safeguards can be obtained 

 
• Sources for parents/guardians to obtain assistance in understanding these provisions 
 
• A description of any other options that the individualized education program (IEP) 

team considered and why those options were rejected 
 
• A description of any other factors relevant to the charter's proposal or refusal 

 
3. Procedural Safeguards Notice: A procedural safeguards notice shall be made available to 

parents/guardians of students with disabilities once each school year and: (20 USC 1415(d)(1); 
34 CFR 300.504; Education Code 56301) 
 

• Upon initial referral or parent/guardian request for assessment 
 

• Upon receipt of the first state compliance complaint in a school year 
 

• Upon receipt of the first due process hearing request in a school year 
 
• In accordance with the discipline procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 300.530(h), when a 

decision is made to remove a student because of a violation of a code of conduct 
constituting a change of placement 

 
• Upon request by a parent/guardian 

 
The procedural safeguards notice shall include a full explanation of all of the procedural 
safeguards available under 34 CFR 300.148, 300.151-300.153, 300.300, 300.502-300.503, 
300.505-300.518, 300.520, 300.530-300.536, and 300.610-300.625 relating to: (20 USC 
1415(d)(2); 34 CFR 300.504; Education Code 56301) 
 

• Independent educational evaluation 
 

• Prior written notice 
Page 77 of 187



 
• Parental consent, including a parent/guardian's right to revoke consent, in writing, to 

his/her child's continued receipt of special education and related services 
 
• Access to educational records 
 
• Opportunity to present complaints and resolve complaints through the due process 

complaint and state compliance complaint procedures, including the time period in 
which to file a complaint, the opportunity for the charter to resolve the complaint, and 
the difference between a due process complaint and the state compliance complaint 
procedures, including the jurisdiction of each procedure, what issues may be raised, 
filing and decisional timelines, and relevant procedures 

 
• The availability of mediation 
 
• The student's placement during the pendency of any due process complaint 
 
• Procedures for students who are subject to placement in an interim alternative 

educational setting 
 
• Requirements for unilateral placement by parents/guardians of students in private 

schools at public expense 
 
• Hearings on due process complaints, including requirements for disclosure of 

assessment results and recommendations 
 
• State-level appeals 
 
• Civil actions, including the time period in which to file those actions 
 
• Attorney's fees 

 
This notice shall also include the rights and procedures contained in Education Code 56500-
56509, including information on the procedures for requesting an informal meeting, prehearing 
mediation conference, mediation conference, or due process hearing; the timelines for 
completing each process; whether the process is optional; the type of representative who may 
be invited to participate; the right of the parent/guardian and/or the Charter School to 
electronically record the proceedings of IEP meetings in accordance with Education Code 
56341; and information regarding the state special schools for students who are deaf, hard of 
hearing, blind, visually impaired, or deaf-blind.  (Education Code 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6) 
 
A copy of this notice shall be attached to the student's assessment plan and referred to at each 
IEP meeting.  (Education Code 56321, 56321.5) 
 
The charter may place a copy of the procedural safeguards notice on the charter's web site.  (20 
USC 1415(d)) 
 

Page 78 of 187



A parent/guardian of a student with disabilities may elect to receive the prior written notice or 
procedural safeguards notice by an electronic mail communication.  (34 CFR 300.505) 

 
4. Format of Parent/Guardian Notices: The parents/guardians of a student with a disability 

shall be provided written notice of their rights in a language easily understood by the general 
public and in their native language or other mode of communication used by them, unless to 
do so is clearly not feasible.  (34 CFR 300.503; Education Code 56341, 56506) 
 
If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent/guardian is not a written 
language, the charter shall take steps to ensure that: (34 CFR 300.503) 
 

• The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent/guardian in his/her native 
language or other mode of communication. 
 

• The parent/guardian understands the contents of the notice. 
 

• There is written evidence that items #1 and #2 have been satisfied. 
 
5. Due Process Complaints: A parent/guardian and/or the Charter School may initiate due 

process hearing procedures whenever: (20 USC 1415(b); Education Code 56501) 
 

• There is a proposal to initiate or change the student's identification, assessment, or 
educational placement or the provision of FAPE to the student. 
 

• There is a refusal to initiate or change the student's identification, assessment, or 
educational placement or the provision of FAPE to the student. 

 
• The parent/guardian refuses to consent to an assessment of his/her child. 
 
• There is a disagreement between a parent/guardian and the charter regarding the 

availability of a program appropriate for the student, including the question of financial 
responsibility, as specified in 34 CFR 300.148. 

 
Prior to having a due process hearing, the party requesting the hearing, or the party's attorney, 
shall provide the opposing party a due process complaint, which shall remain confidential, 
specifying: (20 USC 1415(b); 34 CFR 300.508; Education Code 56502) 
 

• The student's name 
 

• The student's address or, in the case of a student identified as homeless pursuant to 42 
USC 11434, available contact information for that student 

 
• The name of the school the student attends 

 
• A description of the nature of the student's problem relating to the proposed or refused 

initiation or change, including facts relating to the problem 
 

Page 79 of 187



• A proposed resolution to the problem to the extent known and available to the 
complaining party at the time 

 
Parties filing a due process complaint shall file their request with the Executive Director of 
Public Instruction or designated contracted agency.  (Education Code 56502) 
 

 
6. The Charter School’s Response to Due Process Complaints: If the Charter School has sent 

prior written notice to the parent/guardian regarding the subject matter of the parent/guardian's 
due process complaint, the Charter School shall, within 10 days of receipt of the complaint, 
send a response specifically addressing the issues in the complaint. (20 USC 1415(c)(1); 34 
CFR 300.508) 
 
If the charter has not sent a prior written notice to the parent/guardian regarding the subject 
matter contained in the parent/guardian's due process complaint, the Charter School shall send 
a response to the parent/guardian within 10 days of receipt of the complaint containing: (20 
USC 1415(c)(1); 34 CFR 300.508): 
 

• An explanation of why the Charter School’s proposed or refused to take the action 
raised in the complaint 
 

• A description of other options that the IEP team considered and the reasons that those 
options were rejected 

 
• A description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record, or report the charters 

used as the basis for the proposed or refused action 
 
• A description of the factors that are relevant to the Charter School’s proposal or refusal 

 
Upon the filing of a due process complaint by either party or upon request of the 
parent/guardian, the Charter School shall inform the parent/guardian of any free or low-cost 
legal and other relevant services available in the area.  (34 CFR 300.507) 

 
7. Informal Process/Pre-Hearing Mediation Conference: Prior to or upon initiating a due 

process hearing, the Executive Director or designee and a parent/guardian may, if the party 
initiating the hearing so chooses, agree to meet informally to resolve any issue(s) relating to 
the identification, assessment, education and placement, or provision of FAPE for a student 
with disabilities.  The Executive Director or designee shall have the authority to resolve the 
issue(s). In addition, either party may file a request with the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction for a mediation conference to be conducted by a person under contract with the 
California Department of Education.   (Education Code 56502) 
 
If resolution is reached that resolves the due process issue(s), the parties shall enter into a 
legally binding agreement that satisfies the requirements of Education Code 
56500.3.  (Education Code 56500.3) 
 
Attorneys may attend or otherwise participate only in those mediation conferences that are 
scheduled after the filing of a request for due process hearing.  (Education Code 56500.3, 
56501) 

Page 80 of 187



 
 
 
 

Staff Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to empowering our staff with access to technology, 
information, and digital resources while fostering safe, responsible, and ethical working and 
learning environments. The Charter School is committed to upholding important security, privacy, 
and safety regulations, protocols, and standards. Users of the Charter School’s devices, networks, 
accounts, and other resources must adhere to the Charter School’s policies. Users are expected to 
fully comply with local, state, and federal regulations. Failure to adhere to these policies or 
regulations may result in discipline, legal action, or other remedies determined to be within the 
rights of the Charter School.  Relevant regulations include (but are not limited to): 

● The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
● Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) 
● Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
● Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 
● Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Staff Information 
Technology Acceptable Use Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Define Technology Use Terms and Phrases 
2. Identify the User Responsibility 
3. Outline Acceptable Use of Resources  
4. Outline Unacceptable Use of Resources  
5. Outline the Expectation of Privacy 
6. Define Cyberbullying  
7. Outline Stolen Technology Procedures  
8. Outline the Staff/Employee Departure Procedures 
9. Identify the Disclaimers and Acknowledgements  
10. Establish the User Agreement  

 
1. Definitions:  

• School or Organization or We – the Charter School and its subsidiaries, programs, and 
divisions 

• ITD - Inspire Charter Schools Information Technology Department 
• You or Your or I - employee of the Charter School and or signer of this Acceptable Use of 

Technology Policy 
Page 81 of 187



• Resources - devices, systems, services or networks owned, operated or issued by the 
Charter School.  

• User - any person(s) accessing or utilizing the Charter School’s resources that is not a 
resource operator 

• AUP- Staff Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy 
 
2. User Responsibilities: Access to the Charter School’s technology, resources, and support 

offers a wealth of educational benefits and work efficiencies. To maintain access to these tools 
and resources, all users must agree to, learn about, and comply with all information within this 
AUP document. 

• You agree to, learn about and comply with all information outlined in this AUP 
document 
 

• Persons to whom items are assigned are expected to exercise reasonable care to protect 
those items against damage, loss and theft. “Reasonable care” is defined as: 

o Never leaving items unattended 
o Never lending, giving or releasing items to a person other than an employee of 

the ITD or school administration  
o Never removing protective accessories or features (e.g. cases, bumpers) 
o Keeping items away from dangerous conditions (e.g. liquids, heat sources, 

unstable surfaces or items) and preventing actions which promote damage 
beyond normal wear and tear 
 

• You must immediately report damaged, lost or stolen items/resources. Items reported 
stolen or missing will require a police report. 
 

• You are expected to make a reasonable effort to protect your passwords, information 
and data.  

 
• The Charter School employees may be held liable, financially, punitively or otherwise, 

for lost, stolen, missing, damaged equipment. 
 

• You are obligated to notify the ITD of continued access to technology resources beyond 
departure from the Charter School (e.g. resignation, termination, administrative leave) 
in the event the ITD has not contacted you.  

 
• Items, devices and resources issued by the Charter School are School property 

and must be returned or relinquished to the Charter School upon request or 
departure 

 
3. Acceptable Use of Resources:  

• All of the Charter School-issued accounts are intended solely for use by the person 
Page 82 of 187



authorized to use the account. 
 

• When sharing or exposing personal information or data online, extreme caution should 
be exercised. 

 
• Any information or communication accessible via any of the Charter School networks 

should be assumed private property. 
 

• The Charter Schools reserves the right to verify whether specific uses of the Charter 
School technology or networks are consistent with this acceptable use policy. 

 
• The Charter School is bound by certain licensing agreements. Users are expected to 

comply with those agreements. 
 
• Educational and instructional use as related to the Charter School only 

 

4. Unacceptable Use of Resources: 
• All commercial or personal for-profit usage is prohibited. 

• The access, use or transmission of objectionable material (e.g. materials that are 
obscene, bullying, profane, lewd, threatening, disrespectful, hateful, pornographic) is 
prohibited.  
 

• Violation of any local, state or federal laws as well as School, board or administrative 
policies are prohibited. (e.g. Federal copyright laws - Title 17, USC) 

 
• Any attempt to circumvent of the Charter School’s security measures, content filters or 

access restricted resources is prohibited. 
 

• All malicious and nefarious activities are prohibited. Examples include (1) 
unauthorized trespassing or infiltration of a network or device, (2) the intentional 
distribution of malware, (3) any attempt to deny a remote service. Malicious actors may 
also be in violation of California’s unauthorized computer access law, Penal Code 
502(c) PC. 

 
• The intentional collection, mining or uncovering of personal information, files, 

passwords belonging to a user other than yourself is prohibited.  
 

• Impersonation of any user other than yourself is prohibited. 
 

• Unauthorized falsification or modification of any school records is prohibited. 
  

Page 83 of 187

https://www.copyright.gov/title17/


• The collection or transmission of personal information (e.g. home address, phone 
number, personal email) which may be useable to identify an individual without written 
consent is prohibited. 

 
• Political lobbying or advertising is prohibited. 

 
• Unauthorized maintenance, service, repairs or upgrades are prohibited. ICS owned or 

operated resources must be maintained by the ITD or authorized third parties.  
 
5. Expectation of Privacy: For email, networks, systems and other resources owned or operated 

by the Charter Schools, users should have no expectation of privacy. The Charter School 
reserves the right to manage and monitor all aspects of its own resources. The following are 
examples of actions which may be performed for reasons deemed legitimate by the Charter 
School:  
 

• Obtain emails, messages and their attachments transmitted to or through the Charter 
School’s owned or operated email systems 
 

• Monitor an individual's use of the Charter School’s owned resources 
 
• Locate or track the location of the Charter School’s owned resource 
 
• Confiscate, search, disable or wipe any of the Charter School’s owned device, item or 

their contents/data 
 
Personal devices are private. The Charter School must obtain permission to access personal 
devices. However, when the Charter School resources are accessed with a personal device, 
data, information and transmissions which come into contact with those resources cannot be 
guaranteed. 
 

6. Cyberbullying: Cyberbullying is the use of technology resources to willfully harm either a 
person or persons through electronic systems (e.g. texts, photos, videos. messages, social 
media).  Examples of this behavior include but are not limited to: 
 

• Transmitting false, cruel, hateful or embarrassing information or media targeting others 
 

• Creating posts or websites that have stories, cartoons, pictures or jokes ridiculing others 
 
• Unauthorized access to any resource (e.g. social media, email) for purposes of 

downloading or transmitting vicious or embarrassing materials 
 

• Engaging someone in electronic communication, tricking that person into revealing 
sensitive personal information and transmitting that information or media to others 

 
• Posting of a student or staff member picture without their permission  

Page 84 of 187



 
• The use of derogatory comments, including those regarding race, age, gender, sexual 

orientation, religion, ability, political persuasion, body type, physical or mental health 
 

7. Stolen Technology: The Charter School is proud to work with Absolute Software - a solution 
that allows for effective security technology and student safety programs that track, locate and 
recover your endpoints in the event of a theft, while ensuring safety for students and staff. 
Absolute provides: 
 

• Remote security to monitor and protect each device  
 

• Reporting tools that give hardware and software information  
 

• Remote device freeze with user verification messaging  
 
• Track assets on Google Maps, including recent and historical locations 
 
• Web filtering to protect students on and off school networks 
 
• Adherence to CIPA regulations around internet security policies 
 
• Thief investigation services, remediation and more 
 

The Recovery Investigation team will work with local law enforcement to recover any stolen 
device that is tracked through Absolute. They will attempt to collect the device up to 60 days. 
If they are unsuccessful, the Charter School may be compensated up to $500 for that device. 
Pricing may vary and is subject to change without notice and is not guaranteed. 
 
The Charter School’s ITD always tries to take the most cautious and diplomatic approach when 
attempting to recover any stolen items. Three attempts will be made to contact the employee 
using all forms of communication. Once our attempts have been unsuccessful, a police report 
is established and all information is handed over to the Absolute Recovery Team for further 
investigation. Absolute will then continue their process by tracking the device, contact the 
person in question, communicate with local law enforcement and if found provide a warrant to 
search for the device.  
 
If a staff member has a lost or stolen device while still employed with the Charter School, 
please report the device to local law enforcement and contact the ITD to begin the investigation 
process. ITD will do their best to recovery and replace any device that has been reported as 
lost, stolen or missing. A police report must be provided prior to starting the investigation.  
 
For more details, please visit: www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute 
 

Page 85 of 187

http://www.absolute.com/en/about/legal/agreements/absolute


8. Staff / Employee Departure: Upon employee departure (e.g. resignation, termination, layoff, 
non-renewal, administrative leave) from the Charter School, all issued items must be returned 
immediately. Prepaid return labels and pick up services may be provided at no cost.  
 

9. Disclaimer & Acknowledgements:  
 
• The Charter School reserves the right to modify its policies and rules at any time. 

 
• ALL DEVICES, ITEMS AND SOFTWARE ISSUED BY THE CHARTER SCHOOL 

ARE SCHOOL PROPERTY. YOU ARE REQUIRED TO RETURN ALL ITEMS 
ISSUED TO YOU UPON REQUEST BY OR DEPARTURE FROM THE CHARTER 
SCHOOL.  
 

• We reserve the right to seek reimbursement, docked pay or legal remedies in response to 
non-compliance 
 

• Access to the Charter School’s technology, resources and support are offered at the 
discretion of the Charter School.  
 

• The Charter School will not be held liable for the information or data retrieved, stored, or 
transmitted by means of the Charter School owned or operated resources, devices, 
networks, or systems 
 

• Users should not have an expectation of privacy in the use of the Charter School’s 
resources, email, systems, networks 
 

• Illegal activities performed using the Charter School’s devices, networks, and systems will 
be reported to the proper authorities when discovered 
 

• The Charter School will not be held responsible for losses or damages suffered by any user, 
including loss of data, interruption of service, delays or non-deliveries 
 

• The Charter School’s issued property reported as lost, missing or stolen may be remotely 
tracked, located and/or disabled at the discretion of the Charter School.  
 

• The Charter School may confiscate and search any of the Charter School’s resource for 
any reason deemed reasonable by the Charter School including in response to violation of 
school policies or government regulations 
 

• The Charter School is not in any way an Internet Service Provider 
 
10. User Agreement Statement: I have read, understand, and will abide by the STAFF 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY when using any of the 

Page 86 of 187



Charter School’s technology and other electronic resources issued, owned or operated by the 
Charter School. I further understand that any violation of the policies above are considered 
unethical and in some cases may constitute a criminal offense. Should I violate any of the 
policies outlined in this agreement, I understand my access to any of the Charter School’s 
resource may be limited, revoked or returned and disciplinary and or legal action may be taken. 
 
________________________________ 
EMPLOYEE NAME (please print) 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE   Date 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 87 of 187



 
 
 
 

Suicide Prevention Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed protecting the health and well-being of all Mission Vista 
Academys students, including vulnerable youth populations, by having procedures in place to 
prevent, assess the risk of, intervene in, and respond to suicide and self-harming behavior. 
Vulnerable youth populations include LGBTQ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, questioning) 
youth, youth living with mental and/or substance use disorders, youth who engage in self-harm or 
have attempted suicide, youth in out-of-home settings, youth experiencing homelessness, 
American Indian/Alaska Native youth or youth that identify with other racial minority groups, 
youth bereaved by suicide and youth living with medical conditions and disabilities.   
 
California Education Code (EC) Section 215, as added by Assembly Bill 2246, (Chapter 642, 
Statutes of 2016) mandates that the Governing Board of any local educational agency (LEA) that 
serves pupils in grades seven to twelve, inclusive, adopt a policy on pupil suicide prevention, 
intervention, and postvention. The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, 
including suicide awareness and prevention training for teachers, and ensure that a school 
employee acts within the authorization and scope of the employee’s credential or license. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Suicide Prevention 
Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Explain the Purpose for The Suicide Prevention Policy  
2. Identify Parental Involvement in Suicide Prevention  
3. Outline Key Terms and Definitions of Suicide Prevention  
4. Identify Risk Factors and Protective Factors  
5. Outline the Warning Signs of Suicide 
6. Outline How to Respond to the Warning Signs of Suicide  
7. Explain Suicide Discussion/Communication for Parents and Children.  
8. Outline the Process for Assessment and Referral 
9. Outline the Process for Implementing the Policy  
10. Provide Resources for Parents, Students, and Staff Members on Suicide Prevention  

     
1. Purpose: Mission Vista Academy recognizes that: 

a) physical, behavioral, and emotional health is an integral component of a student’s 
educational outcome,    

b) further recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among young people,  
  

Page 88 of 187



c) the has an ethical responsibility to take a proactive approach in preventing deaths by suicide, 
and  

d) acknowledges the school’s role in providing an environment which is sensitive to individual 
and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and one which helps to foster 
positive youth development. 

In recognition of the need to protect the health, safety and welfare of its students, to promote 
healthy development, to safeguard against the threat or attempt of suicide among school aged 
youth, and to address barriers to learning, Mission Vista Academy -South hereby adopts a 
policy, which corresponds with and supports other federal, state and local efforts to provide 
youth with prevention education, early identification and intervention, and access to all local 
resources to promote health and prevent personal harm or injury.  
 
With the intention of creating a safe and nurturing educational entity that minimizes suicidal 
ideation in students, we also recognize our duty to protect the health, safety, and welfare of our 
students, and aim to safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other 
trauma associated with suicide. These safeguards include ensuring adequate supports for 
students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. Because the emotional 
wellness of students greatly impacts learning, motivation,  and educational success, the current 
policy shall be paired with other policies that support the emotional and behavioral wellness 
of students. Our policy is based on research and best practices in suicide prevention, and has 
been adopted with the understanding that suicide prevention activities decrease suicide risk, 
increase help-seeking behavior, identify those at risk of suicide, and decrease suicidal 
behaviors. Empirical evidence refutes a common belief that talking about suicide can increase 
risk or “place the idea in someone’s mind.” 
 

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the school 
has developed strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, and the 
identification of the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and 
behavior. These strategies shall include professional development for parents/guardians, 
caregivers, students, and school personnel who regularly interact with students or serve in a 
position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide.    
      

2. Parental/Guardian Involvement: Parents and guardians play a key role in youth emotional and 
behavioral health, including suicide prevention. This policy is meant to be used as a tool for 
parents/guardians to be informed and actively involved in decisions regarding a child’s 
welfare. Parents/guardians who learn the warning signs and risk factors for suicide are better 
equipped to connect with professional help when necessary. The school encourages and 
advises parents/guardians to take every statement regarding suicide or personal harm seriously 
and avoid assuming that a child is simply seeking attention.      

Parents and guardians can also contribute to factors and conditions that reduce vulnerability to 
suicidal and self harming behavior, for vulnerable youth populations. Feeling accepted by 
parents or guardians is a critical protective factor for vulnerable youth populations. As 
educators, Mission Vista Academy - South faculty and staff can help protect vulnerable youth 
populations by ensuring that parents and guardians have adequate resources regarding family 
acceptance and the essential role it plays in students’ behavioral and emotional health. 

Page 89 of 187



 

3. Key Terms and Definitions:  

• At Risk A student who is defined as high risk for suicide is one who has made a suicide 
attempt, has the intent to die by suicide, or has displayed a significant change in behavior 
suggesting the onset or deterioration of a mental health condition. The student may have 
thought about suicide including potential means of death and may have a plan. In addition, 
the student may exhibit feelings of isolation, hopelessness, helplessness, and the inability 
to tolerate any more pain. This situation would necessitate a referral, as documented in the 
following procedures. 

• Crisis Team A multidisciplinary team of primarily administrative, mental health, safety 
professionals, and support staff whose primary focus is to address crisis preparedness, 
intervention/response, and recovery. These professionals have been specifically trained in 
crisis preparedness through recovery and take the leadership role in developing crisis plans, 
ensuring school staff can effectively execute various crisis protocols, and may provide 
mental health services for effective crisis interventions and recovery supports. 

• Mental Health A state of mental and emotional being that can impact choices and actions 
that affect wellness. Mental health problems include mental and substance use disorders. 

• Postvention Suicide postvention is a crisis intervention strategy designed to reduce the risk 
of suicide and suicide contagion, provide the support needed to help survivors cope with a 
suicide death, address the social stigma associated with suicide, and disseminate factual 
information after the suicide death of a member of the school community. 

• Risk Assessment An evaluation of a student  who may be at risk for suicide, conducted 
by the appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist or school counselor). This 
assessment is designed to elicit information regarding the student’s intent to die by suicide, 
previous history of suicide attempts, presence of a suicide plan and its level of lethality and 
availability, presence of support systems, and level of hopelessness and helplessness, 
mental status, and other relevant risk factors. 

• Risk Factors for Suicide Characteristics or conditions that increase the chance that a 
person may try to take his or her life. Suicide risk tends to be highest when someone has 
several risk factors at the same time. Risk factors may encompass biological, 
psychological, and or social factors in the individual, family, and environment. 

• Self-Harm Behavior that is self-directed and deliberately results in injury or the potential 
for injury to oneself. Can be categorized as either non-suicidal or suicidal. Although self-
harm often lacks suicidal intent, youth who engage in self-harm are more likely to attempt 
suicide. 

• Suicide Death caused by self-directed injurious behavior with any intent to die as a result 
of the behavior. Note: The coroner’s or medical examiner’s office must first confirm that 
the death was a suicide before any school official may state this as the cause of death. 

• Suicide Attempt A self-injurious behavior for which there is evidence that the person had 
at least some intent to kill himself or herself. A suicide attempt may result in death, injuries, 

Page 90 of 187



or no injuries. A mixture of ambivalent feelings such as wish to die and desire to live is a 
common experience with most suicide attempts. Therefore, ambivalence is not a sign of a 
less serious or less dangerous suicide attempt. 

• Suicidal Behavior Suicide attempts, intentional injury to self associated with at least some 
level of intent, developing a plan or strategy for suicide, gathering the means for a suicide 
plan, or any other overt action or thought indicating intent to end one’s life. 

• Suicide Contagion The process by which suicidal behavior or a suicide influences an 
increase in the suicidal behaviors of others. Guilt, identification, and modeling are each 
thought to play a role in contagion. Although rare, suicide contagion can result in a cluster 
of suicides. 

• Suicidal Ideation Thinking about, considering, or planning for self-injurious behavior 
which may result in death. A desire to be dead without a plan or intent to end one’s life is 
still considered suicidal ideation and should be taken seriously. 

4. Risk Factors and Protective Factors:  

Risk Factors are characteristics or conditions that increase the chance that a person may try to 
take her or his life or participate in self-harming behaviors. These risks tend to be highest when 
someone has several risk factors at the same time.  

The most frequently cited risk factors for suicide are:     

1. Major depression (feeling down in a way that impacts your daily life) or bipolar 
disorder (severe mood swings)       

2. Problems with alcohol or drugs 
3. Unusual thoughts and behavior or confusion about reality 
4. Personality traits that create a pattern of intense, unstable relationships or trouble with 

the law 
5. Impulsivity and aggression, especially along with a mental disorder 
6. Previous suicide attempt or family history of a suicide attempt or mental disorder 
7. Serious medical condition and /or pain 

It is important to bear in mind that the large majority of people with mental disorders or 
other suicide risk factors do not engage in suicidal behavior.   

Protective Factors are characteristics or conditions that may help to decrease a person’s risk 
of suicide or self-harming behaviors. While these factors do not eliminate the possibility of 
suicide, especially in someone with risk factors, they may help to reduce that risk. Protective 
factors for suicide have not been studied as thoroughly as risk factors, so less is known about 
them.   

The most frequently cited protective factors of suicide include: 

1. Receiving effective mental health care 
2. Positive connections to family, peers, community, and social institutions such as 

marriage and religion that foster resilience 
3. The skills and ability to solve problems 

Page 91 of 187



It is important for school districts to be aware of student populations that are at elevated 
risk of suicidal or self-harming behavior based on various factors: 

1. Youth living with mental and/or substance use disorders. While the large majority of 
people with mental disorders do not engage in suicidal behavior, people with mental 
disorders account for more than 90 percent of deaths by suicide. Mental disorders, in 
particular depression or bipolar (manic-depressive) disorder, alcohol or substance 
abuse, schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders, borderline personality disorder, 
conduct disorders, and anxiety disorders are important risk factors for suicidal behavior 
among your people. The majority of people suffering from these mental disorders are 
not engaged in treatment, therefore school staff may play a pivotal role in recognizing 
and referring the student to treatment that may reduce risk. 

2. Youth who engage in self-harm or have attempted suicide. Suicide risk among those 
who engage in self-harm is significantly higher than the general population. Whether 
or not they report suicidal intent, people who engage in self harm are at elevated risk 
for dying by suicide within 10 years. Additionally, a previous suicide attempt is a 
known predictor of suicide death. Many adolescents who have attempted suicide do not 
receive necessary follow up care. 

3. Youth in out-of-home settings. Youth involved in the juvenile justice or child welfare 
systems have a high prevalence of many risk factors of suicide. Young people involved 
in the juvenile justice system die by suicide at a rate about four times greater than the 
rate among youth in the general population. Though comprehensive suicide data on 
youth in foster care does not exist, one research found that youth in foster care were 
more than twice as likely to have considered suicide and almost four times more likely 
to have attempted suicide than their peers not in foster care. 

4. Youth experiencing homelessness. For youth experiencing homelessness, rates of 
suicide attempts are higher than those of the adolescent population in general. These 
young people also have higher rates of mood disorders, conduct disorders, and post-
traumatic stress disorder. 

5. American Indian/Alaska Native youth. In 2009, the rate of suicide among American 
Indian / Alaska Native youth ages 15-19 was more than twice that of the general youth 
population. Risk factors that can affect this group include substance use, 
discrimination, lack of access to mental health care, and historical trauma. 

6.  LGBTQ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning) youth. The CDC finds 
that LGBTQ youth are four times more likely, and questioning youth are three times 
more likely, to attempt suicide as their straight peers. The American Association of 
Suicidology reports that nearly half of young transgender people have seriously 
considered taking their lives and one quarter report having made suicide attempt. 
Suicidal behavior among LGBTQ youth can be related to experiences of 
discrimination, family rejections, harassment, bullying, violence and victimization. For 
those youth with baseline risk for suicide (especially those with a mental disorder), 
these experiences can place them at increased risk. It is these societal factors, in concert 
with other individual factors such as mental health history, and not the fact of being 
LGBTQ that will elevate the risk of suicidal behavior for LGBTQ youth. 

7.  Youth bereaved by suicide. Studies show that those who have experience suicide loss, 
through the death of a friend or loved one, are at increased risk for suicide themselves. 

8.  Youth living with medical conditions and disabilities. A number of physical conditions 
are associated with an elevated risk for suicidal behavior. Some of the conditions 
include chronic pain, loss of mobility, disfigurement, cognitive styles that make 
problem-solving a challenge, and other chronic limitations. Adolescents with asthma 

Page 92 of 187



are more likely to report suicidal ideation and behavior than those without asthma. 
Additionally, studies show that suicide rates are significantly higher among people with 
certain types of disabilities, such as those with multiple sclerosis or spinal cord injuries.  

5. Warning Signs of Suicide: It is vital to suicide prevention that individuals are equipped to 
recognize the warning signs of someone who is seriously contemplating suicide. Behaviors 
that may mean a person is at immediate risk for suicide and thus prompt you to take action 
right away include: 

• Talking about wanting to die or to kill one’s self  

• Looking for a way to kill one’s self, such as a new or sudden interest in buying a gun  

• Talking about feeling hopeless or like there’s no point in living or carrying on  

• Unusual or unexpected visits or calls to family and friends to say “goodbye” as if they 
will not be seen again  

• Sudden efforts to get one’s affairs in order, e.g., making a will out of the blue or giving 
away prized possessions  

• A sudden sense of calm and happiness; though this might sound contradictory, if an 
extremely depressed person suddenly seems calm or happy, this can mean the person 
has made a decision to commit suicide. Do not assume a person expressing a desire to 
die is joking. Ask if they are serious. And make sure to follow up. Someone might say 
they are only joking when in fact the “joke” is motivated by a sincere desire to die. 
Suicide is not a joking matter; do not treat it as such. Less immediate, but still 
concerning, warning signs of suicidal ideation include:  

• Feeling anxious or agitated  

• Sudden reckless behavior  

• Significant changes in sleep behavior (hardly sleeping, sleeping too much)  

• Withdrawing or isolating from others  

• Talking about feeling trapped  

• Talking about pain feeling unbearable  

• Talking about being a burden to others  

• Increased use/abuse of alcohol or drugs  

Page 93 of 187



• Extreme mood swings  

The above behaviors do not necessarily indicate suicidal ideation in and of themselves. 
However, when combined with other factors (like a recent, painful loss or public moment of 
humiliation), they should take on a new sense of urgency to intervene with help. 

6. Responding to the Warning Signs: The most important thing you can do is take the person 
seriously. Do not judge them; do not make them feel bad; do not make a joke about it even if 
it makes you feel uncomfortable. Above all, do not assume the person is only seeking attention. 
That is not your judgment to make and you making it could be a life-threatening mistake. Be 
there, support them, and take immediate action. That immediate action should include, at the 
very minimum, the following: 

• Talk to the person. Let them know you care about them.  

• Listen without judging. This means you need to set aside whatever religious or 
theological beliefs you have about suicide in the abstract. This moment is about helping 
the human being in front of you who needs support.  

• Try not to act/appear shocked. The person is already in distress; an overwhelming 
display of emotions on your part could only further distress them and make them feel 
they should not talk to you.  

• Ask the person directly, “Are you thinking of ending your life?” or “Are you 
considering killing yourself?” Though it might make you uncomfortable, remember 
these four concrete questions: Suicidal? Method? Have what you need to follow 
through with plan?  When?  

The more information you know, the better you can help the suicidal person as well as the 
professionals that need to get involved. Also, asking these questions can help you determine 
how significant the risk. The more developed the person’s suicidal plan, the higher the risk. 
For example, if the person has a method and a time in mind, the risk is extremely high. 

• If the person says, “No,” continue to be with the person and give support and stay in 
touch for the next few days, repeating the above process.  

• If the person says, “Yes,” and has a plan and access to lethal means, do not leave the 
person alone. Get a professional involved. Immediately contact a local mental health 
professional, law enforcement, a local hospital emergency department, and/or the 
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (1–800–273-8255).  

• Provide any relevant information you may have about the person to those who are 
managing the crisis.  

• Keep in contact with the person after the crisis and provide ongoing care and support. 

• Draw on other leaders and volunteers in your home and school community to provide 
support   

Page 94 of 187



• If a person ever asks you to keep their suicidal feelings or thoughts secret, refuse. The 
most loving response to someone feeling suicidal is getting them the help they need. A 
life is at risk. If the risk of chronic/not immediate:  Sometimes people may display 
warning signs of suicide or feel suicidal but not have any plans to actually commit 
suicide. Their risk may be low, but their suicidal feelings or thoughts are still causing 
significant distress in their lives. Even though their risk of actually attempting suicide 
is low, you should still reach out and do your best to support them. Here are some ways 
you can do so:  

• Ask them directly about their feelings and thoughts. You’d be surprised how willing 
some people are to talk about their suicidal urges. It might even be a relief for them to 
have someone to talk to about those urges. The Help Guide gives the following 
suggestions for starting such a conversation: 

o Help Guide, “Suicide Prevention: How to Help Someone who is Suicidal,” 
http://www.helpguide.org/articles/suicide-prevention/suicide-prevention-helping-
someone-who-is- suicidal 

 Ways to start a conversation about suicide: I have been feeling concerned 
about you lately. Recently, I have noticed some differences in you and 
wondered how you are doing. I wanted to check in with you because you 
haven’t seemed yourself lately. 

 Questions you can ask: When did you begin feeling like this? Did something 
happen that made you start feeling this way?  How can I best support you 
right now? Have you thought about getting help? 

 What you can say that helps: You are not alone in this. I’m here for you. 
You may not believe it now, but the way you’re feeling will change. I may 
not be able to understand exactly how you feel, but I care about you and 
want to help. When you want to give up, tell yourself you will hold off for 
just one more day, hour, minute—whatever you can manage. 

Educate yourself about suicide. Study more about suicide, its causes, and how to show love to 
someone who struggles with it.  

Do not talk about suicidal people as if they are “crazy” or “insane.” Use words that will not 
make them feel like isolating themselves even more. Most suicidal people are not clinically 
psychotic. They might be grief-stricken or depressed, but do not make them feel like they 
should be locked up in an asylum.  

Help the person find professional assistance. Offer to help them find a counselor or therapist; 
offer to help fill out forms for applying to your county or state’s mental health care system.  

Encourage positive lifestyle changes, such as exercising more. Start small: for example, invite 
the person to going for a walk or hiking with you on the weekend.  

Page 95 of 187



Help the person make a safety plan. Help the person develop a set of concrete and specific-
steps they promise to follow if they feel particularly suicidal. The plan should include things 
they promise to avoid (alcohol, drugs, etc.) and things they promise to do instead (call you, 
call another friend or therapist, etc.).  

If necessary, have the person temporarily give you anything that they could use to commit 
suicide, such as unneeded, extra medications, razors, knives, etc.  

Continue to stay in touch and support the person over the long-term. Repeat the above steps as 
needed.  

7. For Parents- Suicide Discussion/Communication: Talking to your Children: Here are 
some suggestions to help you with introducing the subject: 
 

• Be courageous: There is no shame in admitting that suicide is a scary issue. As parents, 
you probably want to protect your kids from all sorts of scary things. But you also have 
an obligation to teach them how to face reality and equip them to deal with all the scary 
things reality can bring. Here’s the truth: your kids are going to learn about suicide one 
way or another. So would you rather that they learn about it from the media or a friend 
who suddenly kills himself, or would you rather that you have the opportunity to 
educate them in advance? So face those fears and dive right in. 

• Pick a time where you can have an uninterrupted conversation: Start the 
conversation when you have the best chance of having your child’s attention. A car 
ride, for example, ensures that your child will have fewer distractions than at home 
with the TV on. While you want to make sure your child gives you their attention, also 
make sure they don’t feel trapped. Remember: if talking about suicide makes you 
uncomfortable, it can also make your child feel uncomfortable. So make sure you not 
only have their attention, but that you do so in an environment that feels non-
threatening and open.  

• Plan in advance: Think about what you want to say and make sure you have the right 
information to talk to your child accurately and helpfully about suicide. Make notes or 
plan a script if you want. 

• Tailor the conversation to your child’s age: When talking about suicide (or any big, 
serious topic, for that matter), make sure that you keep the conversation at a level that 
is appropriate for that child’s developmental level. For younger children, your 
descriptions can be shorter and simpler. For older children, give longer and more 
detailed answers. Additionally, older children will likely have many questions. If you 
don’t know the answer to a question, don’t be afraid to say that. You can make it into 
a learning experience and research the answer with your child together. That’s much 
better than inaccurate or misleading information. 

• Explain suicide in a way that dispels common myths: Let your children know not 
only the facts about suicide, but also what depression is and how it can make people 
feel suicide is their only escape. Let them know that suicide is never a necessity and 
that there is always hope. Let them know that they are not bad if they feel sad or upset 
and that it’s ok to tell you if they do feel this way.  Make sure they feel safe in your 

Page 96 of 187



home and that they do not have to pretend to always be happy. Let them know you will 
not judge them if they are feeling down and that you love them no matter how happy 
or sad they are. 

• Encourage them to talk to trusted adults: Let your kids know that they can talk to 
you if they are feeling depressed or suicidal. Or let them know that if they ever feel 
uncomfortable talking to you about depression or suicide, that they can always talk to 
another trusted family member or adult in your community. The important thing is that 
they do not hold their feelings inside until they become so unbearable they feel like 
they are going to explode. 

• Let your child speak: Ask your child what they think about the topic. Just be direct, 
e.g., “Have you thought about suicide? What do you think about it? Do your friends 
think about it? Do you know who you can talk to if you’re feeling these feelings?” 

• Listen to your child: If you ask your child what they think, make sure to be silent and 
give them the space to talk. If they say something that is inaccurate or that worries you, 
definitely be honest but do not interrupt them. Wait until they are done, affirm that you 
heard what they said and appreciate that they shared their thoughts with you, and then 
address whatever issues you feel need to be corrected. 

• Seeking Assistance: There are differing situations where your child’s distress may 
become apparent. Your child may reveal their suicidal thoughts to you, a friend, or a 
trusted adult. Whoever becomes aware of your child’s distress must immediately seek 
assistance. In seeking assistance, your child’s safety is the first consideration. The child 
should never be left alone during this crisis. If your child has a physician or therapist, 
call to alert them of the situation.  

 

For the Child/ Student: School can be an exciting time, filled with new experiences, but at 
times you might feel as though it is more of a struggle. This information is meant to help you 
as you work through a tough time. 

Life can be stressful. Between the friend drama, packed schedules, classes, clubs, relationships, 
sports, jobs, parental expectations, figuring out who you are, uncertainty over things, and not 
getting enough sleep, life can occasionally get you down and feel overwhelming. That is 
normal. 

What is not normal is struggling through each day, feeling like things will only get worse. 
Maybe you feel like you have lost control, that nothing matters, or that you are alone. These 
feelings may indicate a condition that requires professional help, such as depression, anxiety 
or other mental health conditions. 

Not everyone experiences mental health conditions in the same way, but everyone struggling 
with their mental health deserves help. Depression is among the most common conditions 
experienced. It is a complex medical illness that significantly interferes with an individual’s 
ability to function, enjoy life, and feel like themselves. 

Page 97 of 187



A number of factors may contribute to a person becoming depressed; genetic predisposition 
and stressful life events can certainly play a role, but sometimes depression can occur without 
an obvious cause. This means that anyone can become depressed, even those who seemingly 
have every reason to be happy. 

Depression commonly affects your thoughts, your emotions, your behaviors, and your overall 
physical health. Experiencing any one of these symptoms on its own does not constitute 
depression; a diagnosis of depression requires several of these symptoms to occur for at least 
two weeks. Here are some of the most common symptoms that point to the presence of 
depression: 

• Feelings: 

o Sadness  

o Hopelessness  

o Guilt  

o Moodiness  

o Angry outbursts  

o Loss of interest in friends, family, and favorite activities  

• Thoughts:  

o Trouble concentrating  

o Difficulty making decisions  

o Trouble remembering  

o Thoughts of harming oneself  

o Delusions and/or hallucinations can also occur in cases of severe depression 

• Behaviors:  

o Withdrawing from people  

o Substance abuse  

o Missing work, school, or other commitments  

o Attempts to harm oneself (e.g., cutting)  

• Physical/Somatic Problems: 

o Tiredness or lack of energy  

Page 98 of 187



o Unexplained aches and pains  

o Changes in appetite  

o Weight loss or gain  

o Changes in sleep – sleeping too little or too much  

If you are experiencing symptoms of depression, it is important to talk to a trusted adult 
(parent, teacher, counselor, coach, or clergy) or doctor so that you can get the help you need. 
Depression does not go away on its own, but with the appropriate help it can be treated. 
Studies show that more than 80% of people with depression can feel better with talk therapy 
(counseling) and/or medication. Maybe you have noticed that your friend has not been acting 
like themselves lately and you are worried about whether or not they are really “fine” after all. 
If you think a friend may be depressed, show them you care by reaching out. Give yourself 
time to talk in a private, comfortable place. Honestly share what you have noticed (changes in 
behavior, things they have said or done) and ask them how they are feeling. Let them know 
that you are asking them because you care, because you want them to feel better, and because 
there is help. Let them know that there is hope and help available, and support them to get the 
help they need. If you don’t feel comfortable asking your friend, share your concerns with a 
trusted adult who can. Talking about mental health can be difficult, but reaching out and getting 
help for depression is one of the most courageous, important things you can do for yourself or 
for a friend. It might even save a life.  

• Resources at home or outside school:  

o Talk to a parent or older relative  

o Call your pediatrician or physician  

o Talk to a trusted adult, teacher, or guidance counselor  

o National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: 800-273-8255 

o If someone is in immediate danger, call 911. Getting help does not mean that you 
have failed, it demonstrates courage, hope, and means you’ve allowed others to 
show they care.  

8. Assessment and Referral: When a student is identified by a staff person as potentially 
suicidal, e.g., verbalizes about suicide, presents overt risk factors such as agitation or 
intoxication, the act of self-harm occurs, or a student self-refers, the student will be seen by a 
school employed mental health professional within the same school day to assess risk and 
facilitate referral. If there is no mental health professional available, a school nurse or 
administrator will fill this role until a mental health professional can be brought in. 
 

• School staff will continuously supervise the student to ensure their safety. 
 
• The designated mental health and suicide prevention coordinator (s) will be made 

aware of the situation as soon as reasonably possible. 
 

Page 99 of 187



• The mental health professional/coordinator will contact the student’s parent or 
guardian, and will assist the family with urgent referral. When appropriate, this may 
include calling emergency services or bringing the student to the local hospital 
emergency department, but in most cases will involve setting up an outpatient mental 
health or primary care appointment and communicating the reason for referral to the 
healthcare provider. 

 

• Staff will ask the student’s parent or guardian for written permission to discuss the 
student’s health with outside care, if appropriate. 

 

Protecting the health and well-being of all students is of utmost importance. A suicide 
prevention policy serves to assist and protect all students through the following steps: 
 

• Students should be made aware of and informed about recognizing and responding to 
warning signs of suicide in peers and friends, using coping skills, using support 
systems, and seeking help for themselves and friends.  

 
• Mission Vista Academy – South will designate a suicide prevention coordinator to 

serve as a point of contact for students in crisis and to refer students to appropriate 
resources. 

 
• When a student is identified as being at risk, they will be assessed by a school employed 

mental health professional who will work with the parents, staff, and student, and help 
connect them to appropriate local resources. 

 

• Students will have access to national resources which they can contact for additional 
support.  

 

• All students will be expected to help create a school culture of respect and support in 
which students feel comfortable seeking help for themselves or friends. Students are 
encouraged to tell an adult (e.g.teacher, parent) if they, or someone they know,  is  
feeling suicidal or in need of help. 

 

• Students should also know that because of the life or death nature of these matters, 
confidentiality or privacy concerns are secondary to seeking help for students in crisis.
      

Coping Skills/Healthy Behaviors: These are positive actions and behaviors that a student 
engages in to help them through their struggles on a daily basis. Some coping strategies include 
activities that students can do in order to regulate his/her emotions; ask the student for input, 
and teach him/her additional strategies if necessary. Strategies may include: slow breathing, 
yoga, play basketball, draw, write in journal, take a break from school activities to drink water, 
listen to music.     

Places I Feel Safe: These are places that the student feels most comfortable. It should be a 
safe, healthy, and generally supportive environment. This can be a physical location, an 
imaginary happy place, or in the presence of safe people. Help students identify a physical 

Page 100 of 187



and/or emotional state of being. Places may include: my being with my friends, youth group at 
church, imagining I am on a beach watching the waves.      

School Support: Any school staff member or administrator can check in with a student 
regularly (regardless of whether or not the student seeks out help). Notify student’s teacher(s) 
and request monitoring and supervision of the student (keeping in mind not to share 
confidential information). 

Adult Support: It is important that a student also feel connected with healthy adults at home 
or in their community. The student should trust these adults and feel comfortable asking for 
help during a crisis. Identify how student will communicate with these individuals and include 
a phone number. Some adults may include: family (e.g., grandparent, aunt, uncle, adult sister); 
clergy (e.g. youth pastor); or neighbor.  

9. Prevention: School Policy Implementation: A suicide prevention coordinator shall be 
designated by the Mission Vista Administration.  This may be an existing staff person, such as 
a School Counselor or School Psychologist.  The suicide prevention coordinator will be 
responsible for planning and coordinating implementation of suicide prevention for the school. 

The school suicide prevention coordinator will act as a point of contact in the school for issues 
relating to suicide prevention and policy implementation. All staff members shall report 
students they believe to be at elevated risk for suicide to the school mental health/suicide 
prevention coordinator.  

Providing a safe, positive, and welcoming school climate; and ensuring that students have 
trusting relationships with adults serves as the foundation for effective suicide prevention 
efforts. Bullying and suicide-related behaviors have a number of shared risk factors including 
mental health challenges (e.g., depression, hopelessness, and substance use/abuse). Youth who 
report frequently bullying others and those who report being frequently bullied are at increased 
risk for suicidal thoughts and behavior. Bully-victims (those who report both bullying others 
and being bullied) are at the highest risk for suicidal thoughts and behaviors. Keep in mind the 
relationship between bullying and suicide is more complex and less direct than it might appear. 
While bullying may be a precipitating event, there are often many other contributing factors, 
including underlying mental illness. 

Prevention efforts should also address non-suicidal self-injury (NSSI or "cutting"). While the 
behavior is typically not associated with suicidal thinking, it is a red flag that someone is 
distressed and does increase the risk for suicidal thinking and behaviors. It is important that 
school staff learn to recognize the signs of NSSI, including cuts, burns, scratches, scabs, and 
scrapes, especially those that are recurrent and if explanations for the injuries are not credible. 
Suicide risk assessment should always be a part of intervention with the student who displays 
NSSI. 

Staff Professional Development: All staff will receive annual professional development on 
risk factors, warning signs, protective factors, response procedures, referrals, post-vention, and 
resources regarding youth suicide prevention. The professional development will include 
additional information regarding groups of students at elevated risk for suicide, including those 
living with mental and/or substance use disorders, those who engage in self-harm or have 
attempted suicide, those in out-of-home settings, those experiencing homelessness, American 
Indian/Alaska Native student, LGBTQ students, students bereaved by suicide and those with 

Page 101 of 187



medical conditions or certain types of disabilities. Additional professional development in risk 
assessment and crisis intervention will be provided to school employed mental health 
professionals and school nurses. 

Identification and Intervention: Early identification and intervention are critical to 
preventing suicidal behavior. When a parent/caregiver or school staff become aware of a 
student exhibiting potential suicidal behavior, they should immediately and contact a member 
of the school's crisis response team for a suicide risk assessment and support. If the appropriate 
staff is not available, 911 should be called. Typically, it is best to inform the student what you 
are going to do every step of the way. Under no circumstances should the student be left alone 
(even in a bathroom/ restroom). Reassure and supervise the student until a 24/7 caregiving 
resource (e.g., mental health professional or law enforcement representative) can assume 
responsibility. 

Designated members of the school crisis team should conduct a suicide risk assessment. 
The purpose of the assessment is to determine the level of risk and to identify the most 
appropriate actions to ensure the immediate and long-term safety and well-being of the student. 
This should be done by a team that includes a school-employed mental health professional. 

Caregiver notification is a vital part of suicide prevention. The appropriate caregiver(s) 
must always be contacted when signs of suicidal thinking and behavior are observed. Typically 
this is the student's parent(s); however, when child abuse is suspected protective services 
should be contacted. Even if a child is judged to be at low risk for suicidal behavior, schools 
may ask caregivers to sign a form to indicate that relevant information has been provided. 
Regardless, all caregiver notifications must be documented. Caregivers also provide critical 
information in determining level of risk. Whether a student is in imminent danger or not, it is 
strongly recommended that lethal means are (e.g., guns, poisons, medications, and sharp 
objects) are removed or made inaccessible. 

Refer to community services if warranted. Referral options to 24 hour community-based 
services should be identified in advance. It is best to obtain a release from the primary caregiver 
to facilitate the sharing of information between the school and community agency.  

Help the parent/caregiver and/or school staff to develop with the student a safety plan. 
Helping the student to develop a written list of coping strategies and sources of support that 
can be of assistance when he or she is having thoughts of suicide (e.g., a safety plan) is 
recommended. Suicide prevention hotlines (e.g., 800-273-TALK) and the app MY3 
(my3app.org) can be helpful elements of such a plan. 

Schools are legally responsible for documenting every step in the assessment and 
intervention process. A documentation form for support personnel and crisis response team 
members should be developed to record all suicide intervention actions and caregiver 
communication. Student information must be kept confidential but there are exceptions to 
FERPA when safety is of concern. Staff responsible for the safety and welfare of the student 
should be provided with the information necessary to work with the student and preserve the 
safety. School staff members do not need clinical information about the student or a detailed 
history of his or her suicidal risk or behavior. Discussion among staff should be restricted to 
the student's treatment and support needs. 

Page 102 of 187



Keep tabs on the rumor mill (including social media). If you hear or see something credible, 
refer the student to a school-employed mental health professional or crisis response team 
member. At the same time, gossip about particular incidents and students should also be 
discouraged.  

Please Remember: 

If it seems that an individual is in immediate danger of hurting himself or herself: Take the 
person to a hospital Emergency Room to be evaluated by a health professional. 

If the person refuses help: Call 9-1-1 for police evaluation of the individual. If the person is a 
danger to self or others, the officer can transport the person to a hospital where he or she may 
be held.  

Postvention. Following a suicide, school communities must strike a delicate balance. Students 
should have an opportunity to grieve, but in a way that does not glorifying, romanticizing or 
sensationalizing suicide, which may increase suicide risk for other students. 

Confirm facts. Confirm the facts related to the death with the family and/or police. Inform 
other schools in the district with students related or close to the deceased. Contact the family 
to offer condolences, ask what the school can do to help, offer resources, and to discuss 
communication with the school community. Protect and gather the personal effects of the 
deceased for the family and/or the police. Pay close attention to other students (and staff) who 
may also be at risk of suicidal behavior. 

Resources needed. In some situations, schools may have adequate resources to handle the 
aftermath of a suicide. However, it is critical that schools assess the impact of the suicide on 
the school community to determine the level of postvention support needed. Factors to consider 
include how well known the student was, if the suicide was public (e.g., occurred at a school 
event), and/or if the deceased had shared his/her suicidal intentions with others (particularly to 
large numbers of other students via social media). These factors generally increase the impact 
and thus the potential postvention needs of members of the school community. 

Contagion. Suicide contagion occurs when suicidal behavior is imitated. The effect is 
strongest among adolescents: they appear to be more susceptible to imitative suicide than 
adults, largely because they may identify more readily with the behavior and qualities of their 
peers. Guilt, identification, and modeling are each thought to play a role in contagion. 
Sometimes suicide contagion can result in a cluster of suicides. Studies indicate that 1-5% of 
all suicides within this age group are due to contagion (100-200 teenage cluster suicides per 
year). 

Suicide postvention strategies designed to minimize contagion include avoiding 
sensationalism or giving unnecessary attention to the suicide, avoiding glorifying or vilifying 
of suicide victims, and minimizing the amount of detail about the suicide shared with students. 

If there appears to be contagion, school administrators should consider taking additional steps 
beyond the basic crisis response, including stepping up efforts to identify other students who 
may be at heightened risk of suicide, collaborating with community partners in a coordinated 
suicide prevention effort, and possibly bringing in outside experts. 

Page 103 of 187



Memorials. Memorials in particular run the risk of glamorizing suicide and should thus be 
implemented with great care. Living memorials are recommended such as making donations 
to a local crisis center, participating in an event that raises awareness about suicide prevention, 
or providing opportunities for service activities in the school that emphasize the importance of 
student's taking care of each other. 

Care for the caregiver. It is important that administrators and crisis team members not 
underestimate the potential impact that a suicide can have on school staff members. School 
leaders should promote a culture in which both the students and the adults in the building feel 
comfortable asking for help and/or to take a break. Providing contact information and 
encouraging staff to meet their own mental health needs is an important first step in ensuring 
that staff are adequately supported. 

Grief. Understanding the nature of grief can help us better cope with loss. Grief is a natural, 
healthy process that enables us to recover from terrible emotional wounds. Grief can affect our 
thinking, behavior, emotions, relationships, and health. People may experience sleeplessness, 
exhaustion, indigestion, lack of appetite, or memory lapses. Recognizing that these are 
common reactions to grief can help us minimize them by reaching out to friends, or joining a 
community support group.  

The journey through grief has four phases: 

• Shock – In the days and weeks immediately following a devastating loss, common 
feelings include numbness and unreality, like being trapped in a bad dream.  

• Reality – As the fact of the loss takes hold, deep sorrow sets in, accompanied by 
weeping and other forms of emotional release. Loneliness and depression may also 
occur. 

• Reaction – Anger, brought on by feelings of abandonment and helplessness, may be 
directed toward family, friends, doctors, and the one who died or deserted us. Other 
typical feelings include listlessness, apathy, and guilt over perceived failures or 
unresolved personal issues.  

• Recovery – Finally, there is a gradual, almost imperceptible return to normalcy. This 
is a time of adjustment to the new circumstances in life. 

These phases vary in duration for each person, so the school  should not impose a timetable 
upon anyone. Some people need a year or two, while others may take less time. Holidays, 
anniversaries, and birthdays can trigger intense grief, especially the first year. Everyone 
grieves differently – depending on personality, religious beliefs, maturity, emotional 
stability, and cultural traditions. 

10. Resources for Parents, Students and Staff Members on Suicide Prevention:  

• Parents as Partners: A Suicide Prevention Guide for Parents is a booklet that 
contains useful information for parents/guardians/caregivers who are concerned that 
their children may be at risk for suicide. It is available from Suicide Awareness Voices 

Page 104 of 187



of Education (SAVE). See the SAVE Web page at 
https://www.save.org/product/parents-as-partners/ 

• Sources of Strength: https://sourcesofstrength.org 

• Know the Signs: http://www.suicideispreventable.org 

• National Mental Health and Suicide Support Services: The following are just a few 
places you can access listings for local mental health services in your area. Please call 
or visit their websites for details. 

• National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: 1 (800) 273-TALK (800-273-8255) 

• Mental Health America (MHA): www.mentalhealthamerica.net 1-800-969-6642 

• Mental Health Services Locator: www.mentalhealth.samhsa.gov/databases 

• American Foundation for Suicide Prevention www.afsp.org 

• American Association for Suicide Prevention www.suicidology.org 

• Center for Disease Control & Prevention www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention/suicide 

• Healthy Place -  www.healthyplace.com 

• Jed Foundation - www.jedfoundation.org 

• National Federation of Families for Children’s Mental Health www.ffcmh.org 

• National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) www.nami.org 1-800-950-NAMI 
(6264) 

• The Trevor Lifeline - www.thetrevorproject.org 1-866-488-7386 

• National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH) - www.nimh.nih.gov 

• Strength of US- www.strengthofus.org 

• Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) 
www.samhsa.gov/prevention/suicide.aspx 

• Suicide Awareness Voices of Education (SAVE) www.save.org 

• Suicide Prevention Action Network USA - www.spanusa.org 

• Suicide Prevention Resource Center (SPRC) - www.sprc.org 

Book Resources for Parents: Mental Health and Resilience 

• Beardslee, William. Out of the Darkened Room: When a Parent is Depressed: Protecting 
the Children and Strengthening the Family. 2002. 

Page 105 of 187

https://www.save.org/product/parents-as-partners/
https://sourcesofstrength.org/
http://www.suicideispreventable.org/
http://www.mentalhealth.samhsa.gov/databases
http://www.afsp.org/
http://www.suicidology.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention/suicide
http://www.healthyplace.com/
http://www.ffcmh.org/
http://www.nimh.nih.gov/
http://www.strengthofus.org/
http://www.samhsa.gov/prevention/suicide.aspx
http://www.save.org/
http://www.spanusa.org/


• Rapee, Ronald et al. Helping your anxious child: A step by step guide. 2000. 

• Manassis, Katharina & Levac, Anne Marie. Helping your teenager beat depression: A 
problem-solving approach for families. 2004. 

• Lezine, DeQuincy and Brent, David. Eight Stories Up: An Adolescent Chooses Hope over 
Suicide. 2008.  

• Bourne, Edward. The Anxiety & Phobia Workbook. 2005. 

• Riera, Michael. Uncommon Sense for Parents with Teenagers. 2004. 

• Phelan, Thomas. Surviving Your Adolescents: How to Manage and Let Go of Your 13-18 
year olds.1998.  

• Sachs, Brad. The Good Enough Child: How to Have an Imperfect Family and Be Totally 
Satisfied. 2001.  

• Apter,Terri. The Confident Child: Raising Children to Believe in Themselves. 1997. 

• Book Resources for Teens: Mental Health and Resilience 

• Hipp, Earl. Fighting Invisible Tigers: A Stress Management Guide for Teens. 2008. 

• Fox, Annie. Too Stressed to Think? A Teen Guide to Staying Sane When Life Makes You 
Crazy. 2005  

• Seaward, Brian. Hot Stones and Funny Bones: Teens Helping Teens Cope with Stress and 
Anger. 2002.  

• Espeland, Pamela. Life Lists for Teens: Tips, Steps, Hints, and How-To’s for Growing Up, 
Getting Along, Learning, and Having Fun. 2003. 

• Covey, Sean. The 7 Habits of Highly Effective Teens. 1998. 

• Kay Redfield Jamison, Night Falls Fast: Understanding Suicide 

• Andrew Slaby and Lili Frank Garfinkle, No One Saw My Pain: Why Teens Kill Themselves  

• Beverly Cobain and Jean Larch, Dying to Be Free: A Healing Guide for Families after a 
Suicide 

• Linda H. Kilburn , Reaching Out After Suicide: What’s Helpful and What’s Not 

• Judith Herman, Trauma and Recovery: The Aftermath of Violence–from Domestic Abuse 
to Political Terror 

• Laura Van Dernoot Lipsky and Connie Burk, Trauma Stewardship: An Everyday Guide to 
Caring for Self While Caring for Others 

• Pema Chodron, The Places that Scare You: A Guide to Fearlessness in Difficult Times  
Page 106 of 187



• Pete Walker, The Tao of fully feeling: Harvesting forgiveness out of blame. 

• Peter A. Levine, Waking the Tiger: Healing Trauma 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 107 of 187



 
 
 
 

Suspension and Expulsion Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to promoting learning and protecting the safety and well-
being of all students at the Charter School. In creating this policy, the Charter School has reviewed 
Education Code Section 48900 et seq. which describes the non-charter schools’ list of offenses 
and procedures to establish its list of offenses and procedures for suspensions and expulsions.  The 
language that follows closely mirrors the language of Education Code Section 48900 et seq. The 
Charter School is committed to annual review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions 
and expulsions and, as necessary, modification of the lists of offenses for which students are 
subject to suspension or expulsion. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Suspension and 
Expulsion Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Responsibility of the Charter School 
2. Identify the Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students  
3. Identify Enumerated Offenses 
4. Outline Suspension Procedures 
5. Outline the Authority to Expel  
6. Outline Expulsion Procedures 
7. Outline Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery 

Offenses 
8. Identify the Record of Hearing 
9. Identify the Presentation of Evidence 
10. Outline the Written Notice to Expel 
11. Outline the Maintenance of Disciplinary Records 
12. Identify a Student’s Right to Appeal 
13. Outline Expelled Students/Alternative Education 
14. Outline Rehabilitation Plans 
15. Outline the Readmission Process  

 
1. Responsibility of the Charter School: When the policy is violated, it may be necessary to 

suspend or expel a student from the Charter School. This policy shall serve as the Charter 
School’s policy and procedures for student suspension and expulsion and it may be amended 
from time to time without the need to amend the charter so long as the amendments comport 
with legal requirements. Charter School staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures 
fairly and consistently among all students. This Policy and its Procedures will be printed and 
distributed as part of the Parent-Student Handbook and will clearly describe discipline 
expectations. Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any 

Page 108 of 187



student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the 
infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal punishment does 
not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, 
students, staff, or other persons or to prevent damage to school property. 
 
The Charter School administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are 
notified in writing upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures. 
 
Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities 
unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.  
 
A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom the Charter School has a 
basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Improvement Act of 2004 (“IDEIA”) or who is qualified for services under Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) is subject to the same grounds for 
suspension and expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to 
general education students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different 
procedures. The Charter School will follow all applicable federal and state laws including but 
not limited to the California Education Code, when imposing any form of discipline on a 
student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom the Charter School has a basis 
of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or 
protections in according due process to such students. Additional detail follows below.  
 

2. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students: A student may be suspended or 
expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school activity or school attendance 
occurring at any time including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) while going 
to or coming from school; c) during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus; 
d) during, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity.  
 

3. Enumerated Offenses:  
• Discretionary Suspension Offenses. Students may be suspended for any of the 

following acts when it is determined the student: 

o Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another 
person. 
 

o Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 
 

o Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence 
of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, 
alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. 

 
o Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as 

defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or 
intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person 
another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, 
alcoholic beverage or intoxicant. 

Page 109 of 187



 
o Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 
o Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. 

 
o Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 

 
o Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, 

including but not limited, to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, 
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit 
the use of his or her own prescription products by a student.  

 

o Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 
 

o Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any 
drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 

 

o Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 
supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school 
personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 

o Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 
 

o Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially 
similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person 
to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

 

o Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 
Sections 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined 
in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 

o Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or 
witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that 
student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a 
witness. 

 

o Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug 
Soma. 

 

o Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing.  For the purposes of this subdivision, 
“hazing” means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization 
or body, whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an 
educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal 

Page 110 of 187



degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, 
or prospective student.  For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include 
athletic events or school-sanctioned events. 

 

o Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  For purposes 
of this section, “terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or 
oral, by a person who willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in 
death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in excess of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken 
as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face 
and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, 
immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose 
and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person 
reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her 
immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school property, or the personal 
property of the person threatened or his or her immediate family. 

 

o Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5.  For 
the purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be 
considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be 
sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual’s 
academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational 
environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate 
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code.  This 
section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to 
the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially 
disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading student rights by 
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This section shall 
apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by 
means of an electronic act.   

 
1) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, 

including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, 
and including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students 
which would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, 
which are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably 
predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: 

 
i. Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not 

limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, 
Page 111 of 187



skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a 
person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of 
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property. 

ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental 
effect on his or her physical or mental health. 

iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with 
his or her academic performance. 

iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with 
his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, 
or privileges provided by the Charter School. 

 

2) “Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, 
including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless 
communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but 
not limited to, any of the following: 

i. A message, text, sound, or image. 
ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited 

to: 
(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet 

Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects 
as listed in subparagraph (1) above. 

(b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the 
purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph 
(1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to knowingly and 
without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying 
the student and such that another student would reasonably believe, 
or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who 
was impersonated. 

(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the 
effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a 
profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or 
attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the 
false profile. 

iii. Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall 
not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been 
transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet. 

 

o A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the 
infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject 
to suspension, but not expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a 
juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical 
violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury 
shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1). 

 
o Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession 

of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess 
the item from a certificated school employee, with the Director or designee’s 
concurrence. 

Page 112 of 187



 
• Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended 

for expulsion for any of the following acts when it is determined the student: 
 

o Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous 
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had 
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school 
employee, with the Director or designee’s concurrence. 

 
• Discretionary Expellable Offenses:  Students may be recommended for expulsion for any 

of the following acts when it is determined the student: 
 

o Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another 
person. 

 

o  Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 
 

o Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence 
of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-
11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. 

 

o Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as 
defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or 
intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person 
another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, 
alcoholic beverage or intoxicant. 

 

o Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 
 

o Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. 
 

o Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 
 

o Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, 
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, 
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit 
the use of his or her own prescription products by a student. 

 

o Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 
 

o Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any 
drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 

 
Page 113 of 187



o Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 
supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school 
personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 

o Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 
 

o Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially 
similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person 
to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

o Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 
Sections 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined 
in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 

o Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or 
witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that 
student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a 
witness. 

 

o Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug 
Soma. 

 

o Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing.  For the purposes of this subdivision, 
“hazing” means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization 
or body, whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an 
educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal 
degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, 
or prospective student.  For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include 
athletic events or school-sanctioned events. 

 

o Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  For purposes 
of this section, “terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or 
oral, by a person who willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in 
death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in excess of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken 
as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face 
and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, 
immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose 
and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person 
reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her 
immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school property, or the personal 
property of the person threatened or his or her immediate family. 

 

o Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5.  For 
the purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be 
considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be 

Page 114 of 187



sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual’s 
academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational 
environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate 
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code.  This 
section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to 
the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially 
disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading student rights by 
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This section shall 
apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

o Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by 
means of an electronic act.  

 

1) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, 
including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, 
and including acts one or more acts committed by a student or group of students 
which would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, 
which are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably 
predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: 

 
i. Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not 

limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, 
skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a 
person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of 
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property. 

ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental 
effect on his or her physical or mental health. 

iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with 
his or her academic performance. 

iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with 
his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, 
or privileges provided by the Charter School. 

 

2) “Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, 
including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless 
communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but 
not limited to, any of the following: 

i. A message, text, sound, or image. 
ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited 

to: 

Page 115 of 187



(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet 
Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects 
as listed in subparagraph (1) above. 

(b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the 
purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph 
(1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to knowingly and 
without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying 
the student and such that another student would reasonably believe, 
or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who 
was impersonated. 

(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the 
effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a 
profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or 
attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the 
false profile. 

iii. Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall 
not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been 
transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet. 
 

o A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the 
infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject 
to suspension, but not expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a 
juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical 
violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury 
shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1). 

 
o Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession 

of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess 
the item from a certificated school employee, with the Director or designee’s 
concurrence. 

 
• Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students must be recommended for expulsion 

for any of the following acts when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that 
the student: 

 

o Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous 
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had 
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, 
with the Director or designee’s concurrence. 

 
If it is determined by the Board of Directors that a student has brought a fire arm or 
destructive device, as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, on to 
campus or to have possessed a firearm or dangerous device on campus, the student shall 
be expelled for one year, pursuant to the Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994. 
 
The term “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is 
designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; 

Page 116 of 187



(B) the frame or receiver of any such weapon; (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; 
or (D) any destructive device. Such term does not include an antique firearm. 
 
The term “destructive device” means (A) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, 
including but not limited to: (i) bomb, (ii) grenade, (iii) rocket having a propellant charge 
of more than four ounces, (iv) missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more 
than one-quarter ounce, (v) mine, or (vi) device similar to any of the devices described in 
the preceding clauses. 

 
4. Suspension Procedure: Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following 

procedures:  
• Conference: Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by 

the Director or the Director’s designee with the student and his or her parent and, 
whenever practical, the teacher, supervisor or Charter School employee who referred 
the student to the Director or designee.  
 
The conference may be omitted if the Director or designee determines that an 
emergency situation exists. An “emergency situation” involves a clear and present 
danger to the lives, safety or health of students or Charter School personnel. If a 
student is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student 
shall be notified of the student’s right to return to school for the purpose of a 
conference.  
 
At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary 
action and the evidence against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to 
present his or her version and evidence in his or her defense. This conference shall be 
held within two school days, unless the student waives this right or is physically 
unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or 
hospitalization. No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student’s 
parent or guardian to attend a conference with Charter School officials. Reinstatement 
of the suspended student shall not be contingent upon attendance by the student’s 
parent or guardian at the conference.  
 

• Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, an administrator or 
designee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or 
in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in 
writing of the suspension and the date of return following suspension. This notice 
shall state the specific offense committed by the student. In addition, the notice may 
also state the date and time when the student may return to school. If Charter School 
officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the 
suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests 
without delay.  
 

• Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion: Suspensions, when not 
including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive 
school days per suspension. Upon a recommendation of Expulsion by the Director or 

Page 117 of 187



Director’s designee, the student and the student’s guardian or representative will be 
invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the student should be 
extended pending an expulsion hearing. This determination will be made by the 
Director or designee upon either of the following: 1) the student’s presence will be 
disruptive to the education process; or 2) the student poses a threat or danger to 
others. Upon either determination, the student’s suspension will be extended pending 
the results of an expulsion hearing.  

5. Authority to Expel: A student may be expelled either by the Charter School Board 
following a hearing before it or by the Charter School Board upon the recommendation of an 
Administrative Panel to be assigned by the Board as needed. The Administrative Panel 
should consist of at least three members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the 
student or a Board member of the Charter School’s governing board. The Administrative 
Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an expellable 
offense.  
 

6. Expulsion Procedures: Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to 
determine whether the student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the 
hearing shall be held within thirty (30) school days after the Director or designee determines 
that the Student has committed an expellable offense.  

 
In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the 
Board for a final decision whether to expel. The hearing shall be held in closed session 
(complying with all student confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the Student makes a 
written request for a public hearing three (3) days prior to the hearing.  
 
Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s 
parent/guardian at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing 
the notice, it shall be deemed served upon the student. The notice shall include:  

1. The date and place of the expulsion hearing; 
2. A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed 

expulsion is based; 
3. A copy of the Charter School’s disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation; 
4. Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information 

about the student’s status at the Charter School to any other school district or school to 
which the student seeks enrollment; 

5. The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person or 
to employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor; 

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing; 
7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing; 
8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary 

evidence on the student’s behalf including witnesses. 
 

7. Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses: 
The Charter School may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the disclosure of either 
the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would subject 
the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this determination, 

Page 118 of 187



the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations 
that shall be examined only by the Charter School or the hearing officer. Copies of these sworn 
declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made available to 
the student.  
 

• The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a 
copy of the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to (a) receive five 
days’ notice of his/her scheduled testimony, (b) have up to two (2) adult support 
persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing at the time he/she testifies, which 
may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed 
while testifying.  
 

• The Charter School must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room 
for the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony.  

 
• At the discretion of the entity conducting the expulsion hearing, the complaining 

witness shall be allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination 
during which he or she may leave the hearing room.  

 
• The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the 

hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.  
 
• The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the 

testimony of the complaining witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there 
is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours.  

 
• Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that 

the hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the 
hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting 
the hearing. The entity conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support 
persons for the complaining witness to accompany him or her to the witness stand.  

 
• If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Charter School must present 

evidence that the witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful 
to the Charter School. The person presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness 
to stay unless it is established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the 
complaining witness would be influenced by the support person, in which case the 
presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or 
influence the witness in any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from 
exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom he or she 
believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness.  

 
• The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the 

complaining witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom 
during that testimony.  

Page 119 of 187



 
• Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be 

conducted in public at the request of the student being expelled, the complaining 
witness shall have the right to have his/her testimony heard in a closed session when 
testifying at a public meeting would threaten serious psychological harm to the 
complaining witness and there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened 
harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or 
contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing room by 
means of closed-circuit television.  

 
• Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is 

presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a determination by the person 
conducting the hearing that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence 
be heard. Before such a determination regarding extraordinary circumstance can be 
made, the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition to 
the introduction of the evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the 
complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or 
other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of 
the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.  

 
8. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any 

means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written 
transcription of the proceedings can be made.  
 

9. Presentation of Evidence: While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion 
hearings, evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on 
which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the 
Administrative Panel to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student 
committed an expellable offense. Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the 
hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on 
hearsay. Sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Board 
or Administrative Panel determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing 
may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  

 
If, due to a written request by the expelled student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and 
the charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual 
battery as defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right 
to have his or her testimony heard in a session closed to the public.  
 
The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a 
written recommendation to the Board who will make a final determination regarding the 
expulsion. The final decision by the Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following 
the conclusion of the hearing.  
 
If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student shall immediately 
be returned to his/her educational program.  

Page 120 of 187



 
10. Written Notice to Expel: The Director or designee, following a decision of the Board to expel, 

shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings of 
fact, to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the following: (a) Notice 
of the specific offense committed by the student; and (b) Notice of the student’s or 
parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of 
the student’s status with the Charter School.  
 
The Director or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the 
authorizer. This notice shall include the following: (a) The student’s name; and (b) The specific 
expellable offense committed by the student. 
 

11. Disciplinary Records: The Charter School shall maintain records of all student suspensions 
and expulsions at the Charter School. Such records shall be made available to the authorizer 
upon request.  
 

12. Right to Appeal: Per AB 1360, a student being expelled or suspended will be provided “oral 
or written notice of the charges against the student,”  “an explanation of the evidence that 
supports the charges and an opportunity for the student to present his or her side of the story,” 
and/or the opportunity for “a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable 
number of days at which the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and 
witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the 
right to bring legal counsel or an advocate.” Moreover, for any non-voluntary removal, the 
student’s parent or guardian will be given written notice of intent to remove the student no less 
than 5 school days in advance, and the parent/guardian will be given the right to challenge the 
non-voluntary removal under the same procedures as an expulsion. 

 
13. Expelled Students/Alternative Education: Students who are expelled shall be responsible 

for seeking alternative education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the 
County or their school district of residence. The Charter School shall work cooperatively with 
parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district of residence to 
assist with locating alternative placements during expulsion.  
 

14.  Rehabilitation Plans: Students who are expelled from the Charter School shall be given a 
rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order, 
which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of 
review for readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year 
from the date of expulsion when the student may reapply to the Charter School for readmission. 
 

15.  Readmission: The decision to readmit a student or to admit a previously expelled student 
from another school district or charter school shall be in the sole discretion of the Board 
following a meeting with the Director or designee and the student and guardian or 
representative to determine whether the student has successfully completed the rehabilitation 
plan and to determine whether the student poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to the 
school environment. The Director or designee shall make a recommendation to the Board 
following the meeting regarding his or her determination. The student’s readmission is also 

Page 121 of 187



contingent upon the Charter School’s capacity at the time the student seeks readmission. 
 

 

 

Page 122 of 187



 
 
 
 

Teacher Certification Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to providing a high-quality educational program is 
dependent upon the employment of certificated staff who are adequately prepared and have 
demonstrated proficiency in basic skills and in the subject matter to be taught. The Executive 
Director designee shall ensure that persons employed to fill positions requiring certification 
qualifications possess the appropriate credential, permit, or other certification document from the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) and fulfill any additional state, federal, or the 
Charter School requirements for the position. 
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Teacher Certification 
Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Support to Teachers Holding Preliminary Credentials 
2. Identify the Procedures for Hiring Based on Unavailability of Credentialed Teacher 
3. Outline the Declaration of Need Requirements  
4. Establish the Procedures for Employing Non-Credentialed Teachers  

 
1. Support for Teachers Holding Preliminary Credentials: The Executive Director or 

designee shall provide assistance and support to teachers holding preliminary credentials to 
enable them to meet the qualifications required for the clear credential. 

 
2. Hiring Based on Unavailability of Credentialed Teacher: The Executive Director or 

designee shall make reasonable efforts to recruit a fully prepared teacher for each assignment. 
Whenever a teacher with a clear or preliminary credential is not available, the Executive 
Director or designee shall make reasonable efforts to recruit an individual for the assignment 
in the following order: (Education Code 44225.7) 

 
1. A candidate who enrolls in an approved intern program in the region of the Charter School 

and possesses an intern credential 
2. A candidate who is scheduled to complete preliminary credential requirements within six 

months and who holds a provisional internship permit (PIP) or short-term staff permit 
issued by the CTC 

3. The Board shall approve, as an action item at a public Board meeting, a notice of its intent 
to employ a PIP applicant for a specific position. (5 CCR 80021.1) 

4. An individual who holds an emergency permit or for whom a credential waiver has been 
granted by the CTC 

 

Page 123 of 187



Prior to requesting that the CTC issue an emergency permit pursuant to item #3 above or a 
limited assignment permit which allows a fully credentialed teacher to teach outside of his/her 
area of certification while working toward an added or supplementary authorization, the Board 
shall annually approve a Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators. The Declaration 
of Need shall be approved by the Board as an action item at a regularly scheduled public Board 
meeting, with the entire Declaration of Need being included in the Board agenda. (Education 
Code 44225, 44225.7; 5 CCR 80023.2, 80026, 80027, 80027.1) 
 

3. The Declaration of Need: The Declaration of Need shall certify that there is an insufficient 
number of certificated persons who meet the Charter School’s specified employment criteria 
for the position(s) and that the Charter School has made reasonable efforts to recruit individuals 
who meet the qualifications specified in items #1-2 above. The Declaration of Need shall also 
indicate the number and type of emergency permits that the Charter School estimates it will 
need during the valid period of the Declaration of Need, based on the previous year's actual 
needs and projections of enrollment. Whenever the actual number of permits needed exceeds 
the estimate by 10 percent, the Board shall revise and resubmit the Declaration of Need. (5 
CCR 80026) 
 

4. Non-Credentialed Teachers: Whenever it is necessary to employ non-credentialed teachers 
to fill a position requiring certification qualifications, the Executive Director or designee shall 
provide support and guidance in accordance with law to ensure the quality of the instructional 
programs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124 of 187



 
 
 
 

The Charter School Documents Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy recognizes the importance of securing and retaining the Charter School’s 
documents.  The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that the Charter School’s records are 
developed, maintained, and disposed of in accordance with law and Board policy. 
  
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Charter School 
Documents Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Management of Business and Non-Instructional Operations Documents  
2. Identify the Procedures during a Breach of Security  
3. Identify the Procedures for The Safe at Home Program  

 
1. Management of Business and Non-Instructional Operations Documents: The Executive 

Director or designee shall consult with the Charter School legal counsel, site administrators, 
the Charter School information technology staff, personnel department staff, and others as 
necessary to develop a secure document management system that provides for the storage, 
retrieval, archiving, and destruction of the Charter School documents, including electronically 
stored information such as email.  This document management system shall be designed to 
comply with state and federal laws regarding security of records, record retention and 
destruction, response to "litigation hold" discovery requests, and the recovery of records in the 
event of a disaster or emergency. 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall ensure the confidentiality of records as required by 
law and shall establish regulations to safeguard data against damage, loss, or theft. 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that employees receive information about the 
Charter School's document management system, including retention and confidentiality 
requirements and an employee's obligations in the event of a litigation hold established on the 
advice of legal counsel. 

 
2. Breach of Security: If the Charter School discovers or is notified that a breach of security of 

the Charter School records containing unencrypted personal information has occurred, the 
Executive Director or designee shall notify every individual whose personal information was, 
or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an unauthorized person. Personal 
information includes, but is not limited to, a social security number, driver's license or 
identification card number, medical information, health insurance information, or an account 
number in combination with an access code or password that would permit access to a financial 
account. (Civil Code 1798.29) 

Page 125 of 187



 
The Executive Director or designee shall provide the notice in a timely manner either in writing 
or electronically, unless otherwise provided in law. The notice shall include the material 
specified in Civil Code 1798.29, be formatted as required, and be distributed in a timely 
manner, consistent with the legitimate needs of law enforcement to conduct an uncompromised 
investigation or any measures necessary to determine the scope of the breach and restore 
reasonable integrity of the data system. (Civil Code 1798.29) 

 
3. Safe at Home Program: The Charter School’s public records shall not include the actual 

addresses of students, parents/guardians, or employees when a substitute address is designated 
by the Secretary of State pursuant to the Safe at Home program.  (Government Code 6206, 
6207) 
 
When a substitute address card is provided pursuant to this program, the confidential, actual 
address may be used only to establish the Charter School residency requirements for 
enrollment and for school emergency purposes. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126 of 187



 
 
 
 

Transportation for Students with Disabilities Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to meeting the transportation needs of students with 
disabilities to enable them to benefit from special education and related services. The Charter 
School shall provide appropriate transportation services for a student with disabilities when 
transportation services are required by his/her individualized education program (IEP) or Section 
504 accommodation plan, as determined by the team.  
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Transportation for 
Students with Disabilities Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Establish the Procedures for Determining the Students Transportation Needs.  
2. Establish the Charter School’s Provision of Transportation Services Specified in an IEP 
3. Identify the Procedures for Alternative Transportation 
4. Establish the Financial Agreement for Contracting with a Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School 

or Agency  
5. Establish the Procedures for Transportation Schedules for Students with Disabilities  
6. Establish the Compatibility of Mobile Seating Devices 
7. Identify the Procedures for a Service Animal and Transportation  

 
1. Determination of Transportation Needs: The specific needs of the student shall be the 

primary consideration when an IEP team is determining the student's transportation 
needs.  Considerations may include, but are not limited to, the student's health needs, travel 
distances, physical accessibility and safety of streets and sidewalks, accessibility of public 
transportation systems, midday or other transportation needs, extended-year services, and, as 
necessary, implementation of a behavioral intervention plan.  
 
The Executive Director or designee shall provide IEP teams with information about the Charter 
School’s transportation services in order to assist them in making decisions as to the mode, 
schedule, and location of transportation services that may be available to each student with 
disabilities. 

 
2. Providing Transportation Services: Transportation services specified in a student's IEP or 

Section 504 plan shall be provided.  
 
When transportation is not specifically required by the IEP or Section 504 plan of a student 
with disabilities, the student shall be subject to the rules and policies regarding regular 
transportation offerings within the Charter School. 

 
Page 127 of 187



3. Alternative Transportation: If a student whose IEP or accommodation plan specifies 
transportation needs is excluded from school bus transportation for any reason, such as 
suspension, expulsion, or other reason, the Charter School shall provide alternative 
transportation at no cost to the student or parent/guardian.  (Education Code 48915.5) 

 
4. Financial Agreement for Contracting: When contracting with a nonpublic, nonsectarian 

school or agency to provide special education services, the Executive Director or designee 
shall ensure that the contract includes general administrative and financial agreements related 
to the provision of transportation services if specified in the student's IEP.  (Education Code 
56366) 

 
5. Transportation Schedules: The Executive Director or designee shall arrange transportation 

schedules so that students with disabilities do not spend an excessive amount of time on buses 
compared to other students. 

 
6. Mobile Seating Devices: The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that any mobile 

seating devices used on the Charter School’s buses are compatible with bus securement 
systems required by 49 CFR 571.222.  (Education Code 56195.8) 

 
7. Service Animal: As necessary, a student with disabilities may be accompanied on school 

transportation by a service animal, as defined in 28 CFR 35.104, including a specially trained 
guide dog, signal dog, or service dog.  (Education Code 39839; Civil Code 54.1-54.2; 28 CFR 
35.136) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128 of 187



 
 
 
 

Universal Complaint Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy recognizes that the Charter School has the primary responsibility to ensure 
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve 
complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of 
complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative 
regulation.  
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Universal Complaint 
Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Identify the Complaints Subject to the Universal Complaint Policy  
2. Establish the Alternative Dispute Resolution Process  
3. Establish the Prohibition of Retaliation  
4. Identify the Maintenance of Universal Complaints 
5. Identify the Complaints not Subject to Universal Complaint Policy 

 
1. Complaints Subject to the Universal Complaint Policy: The Charter School’s uniform 

complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following complaints: 
 

• Any complaint alleging the Charter School violation of applicable state or federal law 
or regulations governing adult education programs, After School Education and Safety 
programs, agricultural vocational education, American Indian education centers and 
early childhood education program assessments, bilingual education, peer assistance 
and review programs for teachers, career technical and technical education and training 
programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, 
compensatory education, consolidated categorical aid programs, Economic Impact 
Aid, English learner programs, federal education programs in Title I-VII, migrant 
education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, school safety plans, special 
education programs, State Preschool Programs, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 
programs, and any other Charter School-implemented program which is listed in 
Education Code 64000(a) 
 

• Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, or 
other person participating in the Charter School programs and activities, including, but 
not limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit 
from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived 

Page 129 of 187



characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, 
immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, 
parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic 
identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 
422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of 
these actual or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
• Any complaint alleging the Charter School noncompliance with the requirement to 

provide reasonable accommodation to a lactating student at a school event or location 
to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related 
needs of the student (Education Code 222) 

 
• Any complaint alleging the Charter School noncompliance with the prohibition against 

requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational 
activities (5 CCR 4610) 

 
• Any complaint alleging the Charter School noncompliance with legal requirements 

related to the implementation of the local control and accountability plan (Education 
Code 52075) 

 
• Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging 

noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding 
placement decisions, the responsibilities of the Charter School’s educational liaison to 
the student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another 
school or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
• Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a 

former juvenile court school student, or a child of a military family as defined in 
Education Code 49701 who transfers into the Charter School after his/her second year 
of high school, alleging the Charter School noncompliance with any requirement 
applicable to the student regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily 
completed in another school or the Charter School or the grant of an exemption from 
Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
• Any complaint alleging the Charter School noncompliance with the requirements of 

Education Code 51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student in grades 
9-12 to a course without educational content for more than one week in any semester 
or to a course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting 
specified conditions (Education Code 51228.3) 

 
• Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to 
this policy 

 
2. Alternative Dispute Resolution: The Charter School recognizes that alternative dispute 

resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations, offer a process to reach a 

Page 130 of 187



resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all parties. ADR such as mediation may be 
offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, 
mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or 
where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to 
participate. The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR is consistent 
with state and federal laws and regulations. 

 
3. Retaliation: The Charter School shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In 

investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as 
required by law. For any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Executive Director or designee shall 
keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different 
from the complainant, confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the 
complaint process is maintained. 

 
4. Maintenance of Universal Complaints: The Executive Director or designee shall maintain 

records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those complaints in accordance with 
applicable law and the Charter School policy. 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall provide training to the Charter School staff to ensure 
awareness and knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and 
timelines specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
5. Complaints not Subject to Universal Complaint Policy: When an allegation that is not 

subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the Charter School shall refer the non-UCP 
allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve 
the UCP-related allegation(s) through the Charter School's UCP. Non-Universal Complaint 
Policy Complaints:  

 
• Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County 

Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the 
appropriate law enforcement agency. 
 

• Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 
shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for 
licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional 
administrator. 

 
• Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance 

Branch of the California Department of Education. 
 
• Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated 

and resolved by the Charter School in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 
4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. 

 
• Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency 

or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or 
staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in 

Page 131 of 187



accordance with the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint 
Procedures.  (Education Code 35186) 

 
 
 

Page 132 of 187



 
 
 
 

Universal Complaint Administrative Regulation 
 
Mission Vista Academy may otherwise specifically provide in other policies, these uniform 
complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified 
in the Universal Complaint Board Policy.  
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Universal Complaint 
Administrative Regulation is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Identify the Compliance Officers   
2. Outline the Notification Process of the Universal Complaint Process  
3. Outline the Cost for Copies of the Charter School's UCP 
4. Outline the Charter School’s Responsibilities  
5. Outline the Procedures for Filing of Complaints  
6. Outline the Procedures for Mediation  
7. Outline the Procedures for Investigating a Complaint  
8. Outline the Procedures for the Report of Findings  
9. Outline the Procedures for Notice of the Final Written Decision  
10. Outline the Corrective Actions  
11. Outline the Process for Appeals to the California Department of Education 

 
1. Compliance Officers: The Charter School designates the individual(s) identified below as the 

employee(s) responsible for coordinating the Charter School's response to complaints and for 
complying with state and federal civil rights laws. The individual(s) are also listed in the 
Whistleblower Policy as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints regarding unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying). The 
individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure 
compliance with law. 
 
Director of Human Resources 
1740 Huntington Dr. # 205, Duarte CA 91010 
888-215-3040 
hr@inspireschools.org 
 
The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the 
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the 
complaint. 
 

Page 133 of 187



In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias 
or conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the 
complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the 
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed 
with the Executive Director or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be 
investigated. 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and 
resolve complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at 
issue in the complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees shall 
cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable 
processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable 
standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective 
measures.  Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the 
Executive Director or designee. 
 
The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether 
interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If interim 
measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall 
consult with the Executive Director, the Executive Director's designee, or, if appropriate, the 
regional or department director to implement one or more interim measures. The interim 
measures shall remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer 
necessary or until the Charter School issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first. 

 
2. Notifications: The Charter School's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted 

in all school offices, including staff lounges.  (Education Code 234.1) 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall annually provide written notification of the Charter 
School's UCP to students, employees, parents/guardians of students, advisory committee 
members, appropriate school officials or representatives, and other interested parties. The 
notification shall include information regarding the prohibition of discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, and bullying; unlawful student fees; local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
requirements; and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, homeless 
students, former juvenile court school students, and children of military families.  (Education 
Code 262.3, 48853, 48853.5, 49010-49013, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622) 
 
The notice shall: 

• Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints 
 

• Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her 
under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable 

 
• Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the 

complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, 
such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases 
involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying). 

Page 134 of 187



 
• Include statements that: 

o The Charter School has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. 
 

o The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date 
of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an 
extension of the timeline. 

 
o A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later 
than six months from the date it occurred, or six months from the date the 
complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful 
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the 
Executive Director or designee for good cause upon written request by the 
complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 

 
o Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a 

complainant is unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to 
conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, the Charter School staff shall assist 
him/her in the filing of the complaint. 

 
o If a complaint is not filed in writing but the Charter School receives notice of 

any allegation that is subject to the UCP, the Charter School shall take 
affirmative steps to investigate and address the allegations, in a manner 
appropriate to the particular circumstances. 

 
If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation 
confirms that discrimination has occurred, the Charter School will take steps to 
prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its discriminatory effects on 
the complainant, and on others, if appropriate. 

 
o A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her 

participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental 
part of the Charter School's educational program, including curricular and 
extracurricular activities. 

 
o The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that 

includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other 
stakeholders in the development and/or review of the LCAP. 

 
o A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to 

his/her educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well 
as the responsibilities of the Charter School liaison for foster youth to ensure 
and facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in ensuring proper 
transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between 
schools or between the Charter School and another district. 

Page 135 of 187



 
o A foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, or child 

of a military family who transfers into a district high school or between district 
high schools as applicable shall be notified of the Charter School's 
responsibility to: 

 
 Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has 

satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court school, 
or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, and to issue full or partial 
credit for the coursework completed 
 

 Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course 
which he/she has satisfactorily completed in another public school, 
juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency 

 
 If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before 

the transfer, provide the student information about the Charter School-
adopted coursework and Board-imposed graduation requirements from 
which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1 

 
o The complainant has a right to appeal the Charter School's decision to CDE by 

filing a written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the Charter School's 
decision. 
 
In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right 
to file an appeal with CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is 
dissatisfied with the Charter School's decision. 

 
o The appeal to CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the Charter 

School and a copy of the Charter School's decision. 
 
3. Cost for Copies of the Charter School's UCP: Copies of the Charter School's UCP are 

available free of charge. 
 
The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and 
information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted 
on the Charter School web site and may be provided through the Charter School-supported 
social media, if available. 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, 
including students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the 
relevant information provided in the Charter School's policy, regulation, forms, and notices 
concerning the UCP. 
 
If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in the Charter School speak a single primary 
language other than English, the Charter School's policy, regulation, forms, and notices 
concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 

Page 136 of 187



234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the Charter School shall ensure meaningful access to 
all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

 
4. The Charter School’s Responsibilities: All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and 

resolved within 60 calendar days of the Charter School's receipt of the complaint unless the 
complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.  (5 CCR 4631) 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the Charter School shall inform the respondent when the 
complainant agrees to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the 
complaint. 
 
The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for 
compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 
 
All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a 
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or 
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the 
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the 
integrity of the process.  (5 CCR 4630, 4964) 
 
All complainants shall be protected from retaliation. 

 
5. Filing of Complaints: The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall 

maintain a log of complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
 
All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant.  If a complainant is 
unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, the 
Charter School staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4600) 
 
Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: 
 

• A complaint alleging violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 
governing the programs specified in the accompanying Board policy (item #1 of the 
section "Complaints Subject to the UCP") may be filed by any individual, public 
agency, or organization.  (5 CCR 4630) 
 

• Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against 
requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related 
to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or 
information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A 
complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful student 
fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Executive Director or 
designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the 
date the alleged violation occurred.  (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630) 

 
• A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she 
Page 137 of 187



personally suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an 
individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint 
shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged unlawful 
discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first 
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for 
filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Executive Director or designee for good 
cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the 
extension.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
• When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer 
shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the 
specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the 
allegation. 

 
• When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the complainant, 
requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request 
may limit the Charter School's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary 
action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the Charter School shall 
nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the 
complaint consistent with the request. 

 
6. Mediation: Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, 

he/she may informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation 
shall be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. 
However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an 
allegation of sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation 
would feel compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer 
shall make all arrangements for this process. 
 
Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall 
ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential 
information.  The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal 
process at any time. 
 
If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the 
compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 
 
The use of mediation shall not extend the Charter School's timelines for investigating and 
resolving the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. 
If mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the Charter School shall take 
only the actions agreed upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the Charter 
School shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation. 

 
7. Investigation of Complaint: Within ten business days after the compliance officer receives 

the complaint, the compliance officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint. 
 

Page 138 of 187



Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide 
the complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information 
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or 
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, 
or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence 
or information may be presented at any time during the investigation. 
 
In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents 
and review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any 
additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the 
investigation. He/she shall individually interview all available witnesses with information 
pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the relevant 
actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall 
inform both parties of the status of the investigation. 
 
To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview 
the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, 
and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or 
support the investigation. 
 
A complainant's refusal to provide the Charter School's investigator with documents or other 
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the 
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the 
dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, a 
respondent's refusal to provide the Charter School's investigator with documents or other 
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the 
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a 
finding, based on evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a 
remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In accordance with law, the Charter School shall provide the investigator with access to records 
and other information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way 
obstruct the investigation. Failure or refusal of the Charter School to cooperate in the 
investigation may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred 
and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining 
the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is 
more likely to be true than not. 

 
8. Report of Findings:  

 
• OPTION 1: Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the 

compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant, and respondent if there 
is one, a written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below, 
within 60 calendar days of the Charter School's receipt of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 

Page 139 of 187



• OPTION 2: Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final 
decision shall be sent to the complainant within 60 calendar days of the Charter 
School's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 calendar days of receiving the complaint, 
the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant a written report, as 
described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If the complainant is 
dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five business 
days, file his/her complaint in writing with the Board. 

 

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board 
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must 
be answered. When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session.  The 
Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision 
shall be final. 
 
If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to 
the complainant within 60 calendar days of the Charter School's initial receipt of the 
complaint or within the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the 
complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the Charter 
School's decision and, in the same manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with 
the Board if dissatisfied with the decision. 

 
9. Final Written Decision: The Charter School's decision on how it will resolve the complaint 

shall be in writing and shall be sent to the complainant and respondent.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In consultation with the Charter School’s legal counsel, information about the relevant part of 
a decision may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties 
who may be involved in implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long 
as the privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such 
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the Charter School's 
decision to the alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon 
the respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim. 
 
If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the 
student involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single 
primary language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that 
language.  In all other instances, the Charter School shall ensure meaningful access to all 
relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
For all complaints, the decision shall include: (5 CCR 4631) 

• The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual 
determination, the following factors may be taken into account: 
 

o Statements made by any witnesses 
 

o The relative credibility of the individuals involved 
 
Page 140 of 187



o How the complaining individual reacted to the incident 
 

o Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct 
 

o Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders 
 

o Past false allegations made by the complainant 
 
• The conclusion(s) of law 

 
• Disposition of the complaint 

 
• Rationale for such disposition 

 
For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a determination for 
each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has occurred. 
 
The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of the 
following: 

 
• The manner in which the misconduct affected one or more students' education 

 
• The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct 
 
• The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s) 
 
• The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed 
 
• The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred 
 
• Other incidents at the school involving different individuals 

 
Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to address the 
allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a remedy 
that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600 
 
For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include: 
 

• The corrective actions imposed on the respondent 
 
• Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person who was 

the subject of the complaint, but this information should not be shared with the 
respondent. 

 
• Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent 

recurrence 
Page 141 of 187



 
Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the Charter School's decision to 
CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal 
 
The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and 
for reporting any subsequent problems. 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the 
complainant that: 
 

• He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the Charter School's 
complaint procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or 
public/private interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with 
CDE.  (Education Code 262.3) 
 

• The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state 
courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law.  (Education Code 262.3) 

 
• Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, 

disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for 
Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. 

 
10. Corrective Actions: When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall 

adopt any appropriate corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that 
focus on the Charter School’s environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to 
reinforce the Charter School’s policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to 
school policies; or school climate surveys. 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim 
but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Counseling 
 

• Academic support 
 
• Health services 
 
• Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus 
 
• Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or 

retaliation 
 
• Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation 

does not penalize the victim 
 
• Restorative justice 

Page 142 of 187



 
• Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no 

retaliation 
 
• Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were 

related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student 
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 
 

• Parent/guardian conference 
 

• Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others 
 

• Positive behavior support 
 

• Referral to a student success team 
 

• Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges 
as permitted by law 

 
• Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law 

 
When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Charter School shall take appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and 
collective bargaining agreement. 

 
The Charter School may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school 
community to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of 
behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), that the Charter School does not tolerate it, and how to report and 
respond to it. 

 
When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the 
complainant or other affected person. 

 
If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other 
charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or any 
requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the Charter School shall provide a 
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by 
regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075) 

 
For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the Charter 
School shall attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully 

Page 143 of 187



reimburse all affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees 
within one year prior to the filing of the complaint.  (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600) 
 

11. Appeals to the California Department of Education: Any complainant who is dissatisfied 
with the Charter School's final written decision of a complaint regarding any specified federal 
or state educational program subject to the UCP may file an appeal in writing with CDE within 
15 calendar days of receiving the Charter School's decision.  (Education Code 222, 48853, 
48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 52075; 5 CCR 4632) 
 
When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the Charter School's final written 
decision, he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with CDE. 
 
The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and how 
the facts of the Charter School's decision are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The 
appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of 
the Charter School's decision in that complaint.  (5 CCR 4632) 
 
Upon notification by CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the Charter 
School's decision, the Executive Director or designee shall forward the following documents 
to CDE: (5 CCR 4633) 
 

• A copy of the original complaint 
 
• A copy of the written decision 

 
• A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the Charter 

School, if not covered by the decision 
 

• A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and 
documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator 

 
• A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint 
 
• A copy of the Charter School's uniform complaint procedures 
 

Other relevant information requested by CDE 

Page 144 of 187



 
 
 
 

Whistleblower Policy 
 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to maintaining a workplace where employees are free to 
raise good faith concerns regarding certain business practices, specifically: (1) reporting suspected 
violations of law, including, but not limited to, federal laws and regulations; (2) providing truthful 
information in connection with an inquiry or investigation by a court, agency, law enforcement, or 
other governmental body; and (3) identifying potential violations of Mission Vista Academy 
policy, specifically the policies contained in Mission Vista Academy Employee Handbook.  
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Whistleblower Policy 
is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Identify Who to Report Suspected Violations to 
2. Establish the Prohibition of Retaliation and the Consequences for Retaliation  
3. Identify Who to Report Suspected Retaliation to 
4. Establish Investigation Procedures  

 
1. Who to Report Suspected Violations to: An employee who wishes to report a suspected 

violation of law or Mission Vista Academy policy may do so confidentially by contacting any 
of the following individuals: a supervisor, a member of the leadership team or the Director of 
Human Resources.   

 
2. Retaliation and The Consequences for Retaliation: Mission Vista Academy expressly 

prohibits any form of retaliation, including harassment, intimidation, adverse employment 
actions, or any other form of retaliation, against employees who raise suspected violations of 
law, cooperate in inquiries or investigations, or identify potential violations of Mission Vista 
Academy.  Any employee who engages in retaliation will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination.  

 
3. Who to Report Suspected Retaliation to: Any employee who believes that he or she has been 

subjected to any form of retaliation as a result of reporting a suspected violation of law or 
policy should immediately report the retaliation to one of the following: the Inspire Executive 
Director, or the Inspire Deputy Executive Director. Any supervisor, manager, or Human 
Resources staff that receives complaints of retaliation must immediately inform the Inspire 
Executive Director, or the Inspire Deputy Executive Director.  

 
4. Investigation Procedures: Reports of suspected violations of law or policy and reports of 

retaliation will be investigated promptly and in a manner intended to protect confidentiality, 
consistent with a full and fair investigation. The Executive Director or Deputy Executive 

Page 145 of 187



Director and a member of ICS management will conduct or designate other internal or external 
parties to conduct the investigations. The investigating parties will notify the concerned 
individuals of their findings directly.  

 

Page 146 of 187



 
 
 
 

Education Records and Student Information Policy 
 

Mission Vista Academy is committed to protecting student privacy in accord with the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act or “FERPA” and the California Constitution.   
 
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Education Records 
and Student Information Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Define Education Records 
2. Establish the Procedures for Requesting Copies of Education Records 
3. Establish the Procedures for Requesting to Review Education Records 
4. Establish the Procedures for Requesting for Amendment to Education Records 
5. Outline the Procedures for Challenging the Education Record 
6. Outline the Disclosure of Education Records and Directory Information 
7. Outline the Process of Record Keeping 
8. Outline Parental and Eligible Student Right to File a Complaint with U.S Department of 

Education.  
1. Education Record: An education record is any written or computerized document, file, entry, 

or record containing information directly relating to a student that is compiled and maintained 
by the Charter School. Such information includes but is not limited to: 

• Date and place of birth, parent and/or guardian’s address, and where the parties may be 
contacted for emergency purposes;  

• Grades, test scores, courses taken, academic specializations and school activities; 

• Special education records; 

• Disciplinary records; 

• Medical and health records; 

• Attendance records and records of past schools attended; 

• Personal information such as, but not limited to, student identification numbers, social 
security numbers, photographs, or any other type of information that aids in 
identification of a student.  Please note that, as of January 1, 2017, the Charter School 
shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social 
security numbers from students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to 

Page 147 of 187



do so by state or federal law.   

The Charter School shall not use any school resources or data to be used to create a registry 
based on race, gender, sexual orientation, religion, ethnicity or national origin. 

An education record does not include any of the following: 

• Records that are kept in the sole possession of the maker, are used only as a personal 
memory aid, and are not accessible or revealed to another person except a temporary 
substitute for the maker of the record;  

 
• Records maintained by a law enforcement unit of the Charter School that were created 

by that law enforcement unit for the purpose of law enforcement;  
 
• Records relating to a Charter School employee that are made and maintained in the 

normal course of business, relate exclusively to the individual in that individual’s 
capacity as an employee; and are not available for use for any other purpose;  

 
• Records on a student who is 18 years of age or older, or is attending an institution of 

postsecondary education, that are: a) made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, 
psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional acting in his or her 
professional capacity or assisting in a paraprofessional capacity; b) made, maintained, 
or used only in connection with treatment of the student; and c) disclosed only to 
individuals providing the treatment. For the purpose of this definition, “treatment” does 
not include remedial educational activities or activates that are part of the program of 
instruction at the Charter School.  

 
• Records that only contain information about an individual after he or she is no longer 

a student at the Charter School.  
 
• Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher.  

 
Parents and eligible students that they have the right to: 

• Inspect and review the student’s education records;  
 

• Seek amendment of the student’s education records that the parent or eligible student 
believes to be inaccurate, misleading or otherwise in violation of the student’s privacy 
rights;  

 
• Consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s 

education records, except to the extent that FERPA and the Code of Federal 
Regulations authorize disclosure without consent;  

 
• File with the Department of Education a complaint concerning alleged failures by the 

Charter School to comply with the requirements of FERPA and its promulgated 
regulations.   

Page 148 of 187



 
• Request that the Charter School not release student names, addresses and telephone 

listings to military recruiters or institutions of higher education without prior written 
parental consent.   

 
2. Requesting to Review Education Records: Parents and eligible students have the right to 

review the student’s education records.  In order to do so, parents and eligible students shall 
submit a request to review education records in writing to the Director of Records Within forty-
five (45) days, the Charter School shall comply with the request.  
 
If circumstances effectively prevent the parent or eligible student from exercising the right to 
inspect and review the education records, the Charter School will provide the parent or eligible 
student with a copy of the requested records or make other arrangements for inspection and 
review of the requested records.   
 

3. Requesting Copies of Education Records: The Charter School will provide copies of 
requested documents within ten (10) days of a request for copies. The Charter School will 
charge reasonable fees for copies it provides to parents or eligible students, unless it effectively 
prevents a parent or eligible student from exercising the right to inspect and review the 
education records.  The charge will not include a fee to search for or to retrieve the education 
records.    

4. Requesting for Amendment to Education Records: If upon review, a parent or eligible 
student discovers any information or notation that is factually inaccurate, misleading or in 
violation of the student’s right of privacy, he or she may request, in writing, that the Charter 
School amend the record.  The request must be submitted within thirty (30) days of the 
discovery of the inaccurate or misleading information or a violation of the student’s right of 
privacy. The Charter School will respond within ten (10) days of the receipt of the request to 
amend. The Charter School’s response will be in writing and if the request for amendment is 
denied, the Charter School will set forth the reason for the denial and inform the parent or 
eligible student of his or her right to a hearing challenging the content of the education record.   

5. Challenging the Education Record: If the Charter School denies a parent or eligible student’s 
request to amend an education record, the parent or eligible student may request in writing that 
he/she be given the opportunity for a hearing to challenge the content of the student’s education 
records on the grounds that the information contained in the education records is inaccurate, 
misleading or in violation of the privacy rights of the student.   
 
The hearing to challenge the education record shall be held within thirty (30) days of the date 
of the request for a hearing, notice of the date, time and place of the hearing will be sent by the 
Charter School to the parent or eligible student no later than twenty (20) days before the 
hearing.   
 
The hearing will be conducted by the Dean of Academics. The parent or eligible student will 
be given a full and fair opportunity to present evidence relevant to the issues relating to the 
challenge to the education record.  The parent or eligible student may also, at his/her own 
expense, be assisted or represented by one or more individuals of his/her choice, including an 

Page 149 of 187



attorney.  The Dean of Academic’s decision will be based solely on the evidence presented at 
the hearing.  Within thirty 30 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Charter School’s 
decision regarding the challenge will be made in writing and will include a summary of the 
evidence and the reasons for the decision.    
 
If, as a result of the hearing, the Charter School decides that the information is inaccurate, 
misleading or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of the student, it will amend the 
record accordingly and inform the parent or eligible student of the amendment in writing.   
 
If, as a result of the hearing, the Charter School decides that the information in the education 
record is not inaccurate, misleading or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of the 
student, it shall inform the parent or eligible student of the right to place a statement in the 
record commenting on the contested information in the record or stating why he/she disagrees 
with the decision of the Charter School, or both.  If the Charter School places a statement by 
the parent or eligible student in the education records of a student, it will maintain the statement 
with the contested part of the record for as long as the record is maintained and disclose the 
statement whenever it discloses the portion of the record to which the statement relates.   
 

6. Disclosure of Education Records and Directory Information: With the exceptions listed 
below, the Charter School will not release educational records to any person or entity outside 
the Charter School without the written consent of a parent or eligible student.  The written 
permission must specify the records that may be disclosed, the purpose of the disclosure and 
the party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may be made.  When disclosure is made 
pursuant to written permission, the parent or eligible student may request a copy of the 
disclosed records.  Signed and dated written consent may include a record and signature in 
electronic form if it identifies and authenticates a particular person as the source of the 
electronic consent and indicates such person’s approval of the information contained in the 
electronic consent.  The Charter School shall permanently keep the consent notice with the 
record file.  A parent, guardian or eligible student is not required to sign the consent form.  If 
the parent, guardian or eligible student refuses to provide written consent for the release of 
student information that is not otherwise subject to release, the Charter School shall not release 
the information.   
 
The Charter School shall avoid the disclosure of information that might indicate a student’s or 
family’s citizenship or immigration status if the disclosure is not authorized by FERPA.  No 
student information shall be disclosed to immigration authorities for immigration-enforcement 
purposes without a court order or judicial subpoena.  Immigration-enforcement agencies do 
not have a legitimate educational interest in a student’s or family’s citizenship or immigration 
status.  A student’s or family’s citizenship or immigration status is not considered to be 
directory information.   
 
Except for investigations of child abuse, child neglect, or child dependency, or when the 
subpoena served on the Charter School prohibits disclosure, the Charter School shall provide 
parental or guardian notification of any court orders, warrants, or subpoenas before responding 
to such requests.   
 

Page 150 of 187



The Charter School will only disclose personally identifiable information on the condition that 
the receiving party not disclose the information to any party without the prior consent of the 
parent or eligible student and that the receiving party use it for the purposes for which the 
disclosure was made. This restriction does not apply to disclosures that fall within the 
disclosure exceptions listed below and the Charter School maintains the appropriate records, 
as described below. Except for disclosures pursuant to a judicial order or lawfully issued 
subpoena, of directory information or to parents or eligible students, the Charter School will 
inform a receiving party of the requirement that the party not disclose the information to any 
other party without the prior writing consent of the parent or eligible student and that the 
receiving party use it for the purpose for which the disclosure was made.   
 
If the Charter School receives an information request related to a student’s or family’s 
immigration or citizenship status, the Charter School personnel shall take the following action 
steps: 
 

• Notify the Executive Director or Deputy Executive Director about the information 
request; 
 

• Provide students and families with appropriate notice and a description for the 
immigration officer’s request; 

 
• Document any verbal or written request for information by immigration authorities; 
 
• Unless prohibited, provide students and parents/guardians with any documents issued 

by the immigration-enforcement officer. 

The Charter School will train its personnel regarding gathering and handling sensitive student 
information as identified in this policy.   

The Charter School will disclose education records, without consent, to the following parties: 

• Charter School employees who have a legitimate educational interest as defined by 34 
C.F.R. Part 99; 
 

• Contractors, consultants, volunteers or other parties to whom the Charter School has 
outsourced institutional services or functions may be considered a Charter School 
official provided that the outside party performs an institutional service or function for 
which the Charter School would otherwise use employees, is under the direct control 
of the Charter School with respect to the use and maintenance of records, and is subject 
to the requirements of 34 C.F.R. § 99.33(a) governing the use and redisclosure of 
personally identifiable information; 

 
• Other schools to which a student seeks or intends to enroll;  
 
• Certain government officials listed in 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1) in order to carry out 

lawful functions;  
 

Page 151 of 187



• Appropriate parties in connection a student’s application for, or receipt of, financial aid 
to a student if it is necessary to determine eligibility, amount of aid, conditions for aid 
or enforcing the terms and conditions of the aid;  

 
• Organizations conducting certain studies for the Charter School in accordance with 20 

U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(F);  
 
• Accrediting organizations in order to carry out their accrediting functions;  
 
• Parents of a dependent student as defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986; 
 
• Individuals who have obtained lawful court orders or subpoenas, with prior notice to 

parents or eligible students with some exceptions;  
 
• Persons who need to know in cases of health and safety emergencies;  
 
• State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State 

law;  
 
• A victim of an alleged perpetrator of a crime of violence or a non-forcible sex offense.  

The disclosure may only include final results of the disciplinary proceedings conducted 
by the Charter School with respect to that alleged crime or offense.  The Charter School 
may disclose the final results of the disciplinary proceeding, regardless of whether the 
Charter School concluded a violation was committed.   

 
• An agency caseworker or other representative of a State or local child welfare agency 

or tribal organization who has the right to access a student’s case plan, when such 
agency or organization is legally responsible, in accordance with State law, for the care 
and protection of the student, provided those records will not be disclosed by such 
agency or organization, except as required by law; 

 
• Other disclosures as provided by applicable law. 

 
7. Record Keeping: The Charter School will maintain a record of each request for access to and 

each disclosure of personally identifiable information from the education records of each 
student for as long as the records are maintained.  For each request, the record will include the 
following information:  the parties who have requested or received the information and the 
legitimate interests the parties had in requesting or obtaining the information.   
 
For disclosures of personally identifiable information to institutions that make disclosures of 
the information on behalf of the Charter School in accordance with 34 C.F.R. 99.33(b), the 
record will include the names of the additional parties to which the receiving party may 
disclose the information on behalf of the Charter School and the legitimate interests that each 
of the additional parties has in requesting or obtaining the information.   
 

Page 152 of 187

http://www.lexis.com/research/buttonTFLink?_m=6abc13686deebc8da5c10abc89f02b9d&_xfercite=%3ccite%20cc%3d%22USA%22%3e%3c%21%5bCDATA%5b34%20CFR%2099.31%5d%5d%3e%3c%2fcite%3e&_butType=4&_butStat=0&_butNum=3&_butInline=1&_butinfo=26%20USC%20152&_fmtstr=FULL&docnum=1&_startdoc=1&wchp=dGLbVlb-zSkAl&_md5=e6f62af1ce041b02d5bf8cf8786c505b


These record keeping requirements do not apply to requests from or disclosure to parents and 
eligible students, the Charter School officials with a legitimate purpose of inspecting the 
records, a party with written consent from the parent or eligible student, a party seeking 
directory information, or a party seeking or receiving the records as directed by a court order 
or subpoena.   
 
The records relating to disclosures of personally identifiable student information may be 
inspected by parents and eligible students, the Charter School officials (or their assistants) 
responsible for the custody of the records, and parties authorized by regulations for the purpose 
of auditing the recordkeeping procedures of the Charter School.   
 

8. Complaints: Parents and eligible students have the right to file a complaint with the U.S. 
Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the Charter School to comply with the 
requirements of FERPA.  The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is: 

 
Family Policy Compliance Office 

U.S. Department of Education 
400 Maryland Avenue. S.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20202 
 

 
 

Page 153 of 187



 
 
 
 

Immigration Enforcement Policy 
 

Mission Vista Academy is committed to ensuring that public schools remain safe and accessible 
to all California residents regardless of immigration status. 
  
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Immigration 
Enforcement Policy is to accomplish the following:    
 

1. Outline the Procedures for Responding to an Immigration or Law-Enforcement Officer 
2. Outline the Procedures for Notifying Parents Before a Student is Interviewed or Searched 

by any Officer Seeking to Enforce Civil Immigration 
 

1. Responding to an Immigration or Law-Enforcement Officer: The Charter School 
personnel shall notify the Executive Director or Deputy Executive Director of any request by 
an immigration or law-enforcement officer for school or student access, requests for review of 
the Charter school documents, or requests of the services of lawful subpoenas, petitions, 
complaints etc., as soon as possible. 

In addition, if an officer appears at a school function specifically for immigration-enforcement 
purposes, the Charter School personnel must take the following actions:  

1. Advise the officer that the Charter School personnel must have the Executive Director 
or Deputy Executive Director review written notification prior to beginning with 
request; 

2. Ask to see (and make a copy of or note) the officer’s name and badge number; 
3. Ask the officer for her/his reason for being at the Charter School event and document 

it; 
4. Ask the officer to produce any documentation that authorizes school access; 
5. Make copies and retain a copy of all documents provided by the officer.  Retain one 

copy for the Charter School records; 
6. If the officer asserts that special exigent circumstances exist and demands immediate 

access to the Charter school location, the Charter school personnel should comply and 
contact the Executive Director or Deputy Executive Director.  

If the officer does not declare that exigent circumstances exist, the Charter School personnel 
shall inform the officer that the Charter School must consult its own legal counsel before 
proceeding.  In the event the officer presents a federal judicial warrant (search and seizure 
warrant or arrest warrant), consultation with the Charter School’s legal counsel shall be made 
before providing the agent access to the person or materials specified in the warrant if feasible.  

Page 154 of 187



The Charter School personnel should not consent to access by an immigration-enforcement 
officer, except as described above.  At the same time, personnel shall never physically impede 
an officer, even if the officer appears to be exceeding the authorization given under a warrant 
or other document.  If the officer enters without consent, personnel shall document his or her 
actions while on campus. 

The Charter School personnel shall provide notes of the interaction to the Charter School’s 
legal counsel and provide the governing board a report of the interaction as timely as possible. 
These notes must include, but are not limited to: 

1. List or copy of the officer’s credentials and contact information; 
2. List of all the Charter School personnel who communicated with the officer; 
3. Details of the officer’s request; 
4. Information on whether the officer presented a warrant or subpoena to accompany 

his/her request, the information/access requested and proof that the warrant was/wasn’t 
signed; 

5. The Charter school personnel’s response to the officer’s request; 
6. Any further action taken by the officer; 
7. Photo or copy of all/any information presented by the agent. 

Any attempt by a law-enforcement officer to access a school location or a student for 
immigration-enforcement purposes should be reported to the Bureau of Children’s Justice in 
the California Department of Justice at BCJ@doj.ca.gov 

2. Parental Notification: Before a student can be interview or searched by any officer seeking 
to enforce civil immigration laws at the Charter School, the Charter School personnel must 
receive consent from the student’s parent or guardian, unless the officer presents a valid, 
effective warrant signed by a judge or a valid, effective court order, stating otherwise. 
 
The Charter school personnel must immediately notify the student’s parents or guardians if a 
law-enforcement officer requests or gains access to a student for immigration-enforcement 
purposes unless that access was in compliance with a warrant or subpoena that restricts the 
disclosure of the information to the parent or guardian. 

 
 

Page 155 of 187

mailto:BCJ@doj.ca.gov


 
 
 
 

Immigration Enforcement Policy Related to the Detention 
or Deportation of a Student’s Family Member 

 
Mission Vista Academy is committed to ensuring that public schools remain safe and accessible 
to all California residents regardless of immigration status. 
  
The purpose of the Mission Vista Academy Governing Board approving this Immigration 
Enforcement Policy Related to the Detention or Deportation of a Student’s Family Member is to 
accomplish the following:    
 

1. Outline the Procedures for Responding to the Detention or Deportation of a Student’s 
Family Member  
 

1. Responding to the Detention or Deportation of a Student’s Family Member: The Charter 
School shall encourage families and students to be prepared in the event that a family member 
is detained or deported. The Charter School shall encourage families and students to: 

• Know their emergency phone numbers; 
 
• Know where to find important documentation such as birth certificates, passports, 

Social Security Cards, doctors’ contact information, medication lists, and lists of 
allergies. 

The Charter School shall permit students and families to update a student’s emergency contact 
information as needed throughout the school year and to provide alternative contacts if not 
parent or guardian is available.  

The Charter School shall ensure that families may include the contact information of a trusted 
adult guardian as a secondary emergency contact in the event a student’s parent or guardian is 
ever detained. 

The Charter School shall communicate to families that the information provided on the 
emergency cards will only be used to respond to emergency situations – and will never be used 
for any other purpose. 

The student’s emergency card contact information is the information that shall be used in the 
event a student’s parent or guardian is detained or deported and the student must be released 
to an adult designated on that card.  Alternately, the Charter School shall release the student 
into the custody of any individual who presents a Caregiver’s Authorization Affidavit on behalf 

Page 156 of 187



of the student.  The Charter School shall only contact Child Protective Services if school staff 
are unable to arrange for timely care through the methods outlined above or other instructions 
given by the parent or guardian. 

Any attempt by a law-enforcement officer to access a school site or a student for immigration-
enforcement purposes should be reported to the Bureau of Children’s Justice in the California 
Department of Justice at BCJ@doj.ca.gov 

 
 

Page 157 of 187

mailto:BCJ@doj.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Anti-Nepotism Policy 
 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

It is the policy of Mission Vista Charter School to avoid Nepotism, which means to avoid creating 
or maintaining circumstances in which the appearance or possibility of favoritism, conflicts of interest, or 
management disruptions exist due to a relationship between an Mission Vista Charter School decision-
maker and his or her Family Member. This policy is to ensure effective supervision, internal discipline, 
security, safety, and positive morale in the workplace and to avoid the potential for problems of actual or 
perceived favoritism, conflicts in loyalty, discrimination, and appearances of impropriety or conflict of 
interest. This policy applies to all Mission Vista Charter School board members, employees, individual 
consultants hired or retained by Mission Vista Charter School, and School Services Providers hired or 
retained by Mission Vista Charter School. 

 

Relationships between Mission Vista Charter School board members, employees, consultants, or 
School Services Providers are permissible under the following circumstances: 

 

(a) Family Members of Mission Vista Charter School board members, employees, individual 
consultants, or School Services Providers shall not be hired for or retained in an employment 
position if one Family Member would have the authority or be in a position to directly supervise, 
hire, or discharge the other. 

 

(b) Any time a board member, employee, individual consultant, or School Services Provider is a 
Family Member of another, the relationship shall not result in an adverse impact on work 
productivity or performance. The determination of whether there is an adverse impact shall be in 
the discretion of the supervisor(s) of the employee(s), consultant(s), or School Services Provider(s), 
or in the case of a board member, in the discretion of the Mission Vista Charter School board of 
directors. 

 

(c) Any time a board member, employee, individual consultant, or School Services Provider is a 
Family Member of another, the relationship shall not create an actual conflict of interest under the 
law, and shall not create a detrimental perceived conflict of interest. The determination of whether 
there is a detrimental perceived conflict of interest shall be in the discretion of the supervisor(s) of 

Page 158 of 187



the employee(s), consultant(s) or School Services Provider(s), or in the case of a board member, in 
the discretion of the Mission Vista Charter School board of directors. 

  

DEFINITIONS 

 

“Family Members” include an employee's parent, child (natural, adopted, or legal guardianship), 
spouse, domestic partner, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, step-relationships within the preceding 
categories, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law and father-in-law. 

 

 

“Nepotism” describes a work-related situation in which there is the potential for favoritism toward 
a Family Member (such as giving a job, promotion, biased performance reviews, or more favorable working 
conditions) on the basis of the familial relationship. 

 

 

“School Services Provider” shall mean any provider of school services to Mission Vista Charter 
School, and in the case of an organization shall mean be the responsible individual at such organization that 
provides school services to Mission Vista Charter School. 

 

 

PROCEDURES 

 

When a Family Member of a current Mission Vista Charter School board member, employee, 
individual consultant, or School Services Provider applies to become a board member or employee, or 
requests to be a consultant or School Services Provider, the Family Member’s application/request must be 
denied if a conflict under this policy exists (e.g., if one Family Member would have the authority or be in 
a position to directly supervise, hire, or discharge the other). Special circumstances may be reviewed by the 
Board in the event that Mission Vista Charter School ’s best interests would be served otherwise. 

 

 

When a Family Member of a current Mission Vista Charter School board member, employee, 
individual consultant, or School Services Provider applies for a transfer to a new employment position 
within Inspire Charter School – Central, the Family Member’s application must be evaluated to determine 
whether a conflict under this policy exists. If a conflict exists, the application for transfer must either be 
denied or one of the Family Members must seek a position transfer to avoid the conflict, if any such 
opportunity exists. In the event that no such opportunity exists, the application for transfer must be denied. 

 

 
Page 159 of 187



In implementing this policy, it is permissible to ask an applicant, potential consultant, or School 
Services Provider to state whether he or she has a Family Member who is presently employed by or on the 
board of Mission Vista Charter School, but such information may not be used as a basis for an employment 
decision except as stated herein. 

 

 

When a relationship that creates a conflict with this policy occurs during employment, Mission 
Vista Charter School will attempt to arrange a transfer or change in position/duties to eliminate the conflict. 
If a suitable transfer/change in position/duties is not available, one of the employees may be 

  

separated from service. Every attempt will be made to effect transfer or separation on the basis of agreement 
between the employees involved and Mission Vista Charter School. If a mutual agreement is unattainable, 
the Board will determine, in Mission Vista Charter School ’s best interest, which employee is to be 
transferred or separated. 

 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The Senior Director or designee shall coordinate with the current employee’s direct supervisor to 
develop appropriate plans to ensure that a Family Member’s employment does not conflict with this policy. 
If the situation cannot be resolved by a transfer, then the Senior Director or designee will deny the 
application for employment. Special circumstances may be reviewed by the Board in the event that Mission 
Vista Charter School’s best interests would be served by the employment of a Family Member. 

 

 

The Senior Director or designee shall investigate reports of Nepotism and take appropriate action. 
Employees are required to disclose changes in their personal situations to the Senior Director or designee 
which may be covered by this policy. Supervisors may inquire about the family relationship between 
employees to determine the appropriateness of the working relationship under this policy. The Board shall 
make the final determination concerning potential conflicts with this policy involving the Senior Director. 

 

 

 

Approved by the Mission Vista Charter School Board of Directors on June 8, 2019. 

 
 

Page 160 of 187



 
 
 
 

Policy Regarding Inconsistent, Incompatible or Conflicting 
Employment, Activity or Enterprise by School Personnel 

  POLICY STATEMENT 

It is the policy of Mission Vista Academy that its officers and employees may not engage 
in any outside activity, employment, or enterprise for compensation which is inconsistent, 
incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as an officer or employee of Mission Vista 
Academy. 

An officer’s or employee’s outside activity, employment, or enterprise for compensation 
shall be determined to be inconsistent, incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as 
an officer of employee of Mission Vista Academy if any of the following apply: 

1. It involves the use of Mission Vista Academy time, facilities, equipment, supplies, or the 
officer’s or employee’s position or influence with Mission Vista Academy, for private 
gain or advantage. 

2. It involves receipt or acceptance by the officer of employee of any money or other 
consideration for the performance of an act that would otherwise be required within the 
scope of the officer or employee’s duties with Mission Vista Academy. 

3. It involves the performance of an act as part of the outside activity that involves services 
performed for Mission Vista Academy. 

4. It affects the officer’s or employee’s work hours, interferes or conflicts with the officer’s 
or employee’s job duties, raise any ethical or conflict of interest concerns, or create any 
conditions that impact the officer’s or employee’s job performance. 

Officers and employees may not use Mission Vista Academy’s name, logo, supplies, 
equipment or other property in connection with any outside activities. 

PROCEDURE 

In the event that an officer or employee believes that an outside activity for compensation 
may be inconsistent, incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as an officer or 
employee of Mission Vista Academy, the officer or employee shall obtain a written determination 
of the Senior Director or his or her designee that the outside activity is not in violation of this 
policy before engaging in such activity. 

Approved by the Mission Vista Academy Board of Directors on June 8, 2019. 
 Page 161 of 187



 
 
 
 

Policy Confirming Restriction on the Provision of Funds or 
Other Thing of Value to Students, Parents or Guardians 

POLICY STATEMENT 
 

It is the policy of Mission Vista Academy that Mission Vista Academy shall not 
provide any funds or thing of value to any student or his or her parent or guardian that a 
school district could not legally provide to a similarly situated student, or his or her 
parent or guardian. Mission Vista Academy does not and shall not provide, for example, 
“sign up bonuses” to parents or guardians or other incentives unrelated to education. 
 

Additionally, a student, parent or guardian shall not use his or her status as a 
student, parent or guardian with Mission Vista Academy in order to obtain funds or thing 
of value from Mission Vista Academy. For example, this policy prohibits an individual 
from utilizing his or her status as a parent or guardian to obtain a vendor contract with 
Mission Vista Academy for compensation. It also prohibits an individual from utilizing 
his or her status as a parent or guardian to refer or encourage any students enrolled in 
Mission Vista Academy, or their parents or guardians, to select that individual or his or 
her company or another provider of services, in connection with the student’s education 
at Mission Vista Academy, resulting in the individual’s receipt of funds or thing of value 
from Mission Vista Academy. 
 
PROCEDURES 
 

The prior approval of the Senior Director or his or her designee must be obtained 
for any of the following in order to ensure that it does not conflict with this policy: 

1. Any funds or thing of value provided to a student, parent or guardian which has not 
previously been approved. This applies in any situation in which a student, parent 
or guardian would any funds or thing of value, whether in their capacity as a 
student, parent, guardian, vendor, service provider or other circumstance. 

2. Any proposed incentive to be offered to students or parents. 
In requesting approval, the educational purpose of any such funds, thing of value 

or incentive must be provided to the Senior Director or his or her designee. 
 

Approved by the Mission Vista Academy Board of Directors on June 8, 2019. 
 

Page 162 of 187



 

 

 

 

Conflict of Interest Code 

The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and local 
government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. The Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC) has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations 
§18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated 
by reference in an agency’s code. After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be 
amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political 
Reform Act. 

 
Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any amendments to 
it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby adopted and incorporated 
by reference. This regulation and the attached Appendices, designating positions and 
establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code for Mission Vista 
Academy. This code shall take effect when approved by the FPPC, and shall thereupon 
supersede any and all prior such codes adopted by Mission Vista Academy, but shall supplement 
any conflict of interest policies adopted in compliance with the laws governing nonprofit 
corporations. 

 
Individuals holding designated positions shall file statements of economic interests with 
Mission Vista Academy, which will make the statements available for public inspection and 
reproduction (Government Code § 81008). All statements will be retained by Mission Vista 
Academy. 

Page 163 of 187



APPENDIX A 
 

Designated Positions Disclosure Category 
 
 

Members of the Governing Board 1, 2 
 

Senior Director 1, 2 

Assistant Director(s) 3 
 
 
 
 
 

The Senior Director or designee may determine in writing that a particular consultant or newly 
created position as set forth in 2 Cal. Code Regs. § 18219, that makes or participates in the making 
of decisions that may foreseeably have a material effect on any financial interest is hired to perform 
a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus the broadest disclosure is not necessary. Such 
written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s or new position’s duties and, 
based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The Senior 
Director or designee’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection 
in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code (Government Code § 81008). 

Page 164 of 187



 
 
 

Category 1 Reporting: 

APPENDIX B 
 

Disclosure Categories 

 

Designated positions assigned to this category must report: 
 

Interests in real property located in whole or in part within two (2) miles of any facility 
owned or leased by Mission Vista Academy. 

 
Category 2 Reporting: 

 
Designated positions assigned to this category must report: 

 
Investments and business positions in business entities or sources of income (including 
receipt of gifts, loans, and travel payments) from sources that are contractors engaged in 
the performance of work or services, or sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent, or 
distribute school supplies, books, materials, school furnishings, or equipment of the type 
to be utilized by Mission Vista Academy. 

 
Category 3 Reporting: 

 
Designated positions assigned to this category must report: 

 
Investments and business positions in business entities or sources of income (including 
receipt of gifts, loans, and travel payments) from sources that are engaged in the 
performance of work or services, or sources that manufacture, sell, repair, rent, or distribute 
school supplies, books, materials, school furnishings, or equipment of the type to be 
utilized by the designated person’s department. 

Page 165 of 187



Budget and Projected Fund Balance - 2019-20 - Mission Vista Academy

Projected ADA of 4494.45 July August September October November December January February March April May June TOTAL
State Aid - Revenue Limit 3,303,902.88   3,303,903    3,303,903      3,303,903      3,303,903      3,303,903       3,303,903       3,303,903       3,303,903       3,303,903      3,303,903      3,303,903    39,646,835         
Federal Revenue 38,951.90         38,952          38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952            38,952          467,423              
Other State Revenue 253,561.89       253,562       253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562          253,562        3,042,743           
Other Local Revenue -                         -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     -                       
Total Revenue: 3,596,417         3,596,417    3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417      3,596,417    43,157,000         

Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected
Certificated Salaries 1,159,333         1,159,333    1,159,333      1,159,333      1,159,333      1,159,333       1,159,333       1,159,333       1,159,333       1,159,333      1,159,333      1,159,333    13,912,000         
Classified Salaries -                     -                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                -                       
Benefits 363,694            363,694       363,694          363,694          363,694          363,694          384,372          379,203          368,864          363,694          363,694          363,694        4,405,686           
Books and Supplies 254,838            351,058       351,058          447,278          447,278          591,608          591,608          591,608          591,608          591,608          591,608          735,938        6,137,096           
Subagreement Services 296,519            416,795       746,100          1,976,679      630,443          836,699          1,465,781       864,185          1,146,386       1,120,543      1,120,543      1,749,423    12,370,096         
Professional/Consulting Services 43,967              68,022          311,136          948,883          187,966          238,656          584,756          245,242          404,747          390,140          390,140          652,198        4,465,852           
Facilities, Repairs and Other Leases 13,779              13,779          13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779            13,779          165,351              
Operations and Housekeeping 15,693              15,693          22,318            22,318            22,318            22,318            41,240            41,240            41,240            41,240            22,318            22,318          330,252              
Depreciation -                     -                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                -                       
Interest -                     -                -                  -                  -                  70,000            -                  56,000            61,600            -                  84,000            140,000        411,600              
Total Expenses: 2,147,823         2,388,374    2,967,418      4,931,964      2,824,812      3,296,088      4,240,870      3,350,589      3,787,557      3,680,338      3,745,416      4,836,684    42,197,933         
Surplus/Deficit 1,448,593         1,208,043    628,999          (1,335,548)     771,605          300,329          (644,453)         245,827          (191,141)         (83,921)           (148,999)        (1,240,267)   959,067              
Cumulative Fund Balance 1,448,593         2,656,636    3,285,635      1,950,087      2,721,692      3,022,021      2,377,567      2,623,395      2,432,254      2,348,333      2,199,334      959,067        

Beginning Fund Balance -                         1,448,593    2,656,636      3,285,635      1,950,087      2,721,692       3,022,021       2,377,567       2,623,395       2,432,254      2,348,333      2,199,334    

Ending Fund Balance 1,448,593         2,656,636    3,285,635      1,950,087      2,721,692      3,022,021       2,377,567       2,623,395       2,432,254       2,348,333      2,199,334      959,067        

Page 166 of 187



Mission Vista Academy
Monthly Cash Flow/Budget FY19-20
Revised 5/16/19

ADA = 4494.45
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Year-End 
Accruals

 Annual 
Budget 

Revenues
State Aid - Revenue Limit

8011 LCFF State Aid -                      -                      -                      11,706,403   -                      -                      5,695,007     -                      2,758,120     2,758,120     2,758,120     2,758,120     2,758,120     31,192,010   
8012 Education Protection Account -                      -                      224,723        -                      -                      224,723        -                      -                      224,723        -                      -                      -                      224,723        898,890         
8096 In Lieu of Property Taxes -                 -                 1,964,543     604,475        604,475        604,475        604,475        1,057,831     528,915        528,915        528,915        528,915        -                      7,555,935     

-                      -                      2,189,265     12,310,877   604,475        829,197        6,299,481     1,057,831     3,511,758     3,287,036     3,287,036     3,287,036     2,982,843     39,646,835   
Federal Revenue

8181 Special Education - Entitlement -                      -                      121,530        37,394           37,394           37,394           37,394           39,264           39,264           39,264           39,264           39,264           (0)                    467,423         
-                      -                      121,530        37,394           37,394           37,394           37,394           39,264           39,264           39,264           39,264           39,264           (0)                    467,423         

Other State Revenue
8311 State Special Education -                      -                      552,727        170,070        170,070        170,070        170,070        178,573        178,573        178,573        178,573        178,573        -                      2,125,875     
8560 State Lottery -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      916,868        916,868         

-                      -                      552,727        170,070        170,070        170,070        170,070        178,573        178,573        178,573        178,573        178,573        916,868        3,042,743     

Total Revenue -                      -                      2,863,523     12,518,341  811,939        1,036,661     6,506,945     1,275,668     3,729,595     3,504,873     3,504,873     3,504,873     3,899,710     43,157,000   

Expenses
Certificated Salaries

1100 Teachers' Salaries 985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        985,000        -                      11,820,000   
1175 Teachers' Extra Duty/Stipends 98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           98,500           -                      1,182,000     
1200 Pupil Support Salaries 20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           20,417           -                      245,000         
1300 Administrators' Salaries 55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           55,417           -                      665,000         

1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     1,159,333     -                      13,912,000   
Benefits

3101 STRS 193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        193,609        -                      2,323,304     
3311 Medicare 16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           16,810           -                      201,724         
3401 Health and Welfare 131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        131,875        -                      1,582,500     
3501 State Unemployment 5,170             5,170             5,170             5,170             5,170             5,170             25,848           20,678           10,339           5,170             5,170             5,170             -                      103,390         
3601 Workers' Compensation 16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           16,231           -                      194,768         

363,694        363,694        363,694        363,694        363,694        363,694        384,372        379,203        368,864        363,694        363,694        363,694        -                      4,405,686     
Books and Supplies

4302 School Supplies 126,289        210,482        210,482        294,674        294,674        420,963        420,963        420,963        420,963        420,963        420,963        547,252        -                      4,209,633     
4305 Software 102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        102,249        -                      1,226,985     
4310 Office Expense 7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             7,865             -                      94,383           
4311 Business Meals 393                393                393                393                393                393                393                393                393                393                393                393                -                      4,719             
4400 Noncapitalized Equipment 18,041           30,069           30,069           42,096           42,096           60,138           60,138           60,138           60,138           60,138           60,138           78,179           -                      601,376         

254,838        351,058        351,058        447,278        447,278        591,608        591,608        591,608        591,608        591,608        591,608        735,938        -                      6,137,096     
Subagreement Services

5102 Special Education 116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        116,107        -                      1,393,280     
5106 Other Educational Consultants 180,413        300,688        300,688        420,963        420,963        601,376        601,376        601,376        601,376        601,376        601,376        781,789        -                      6,013,761     
5107 Instructional Services -                 -                 329,305        1,439,609     93,373           119,216        748,299        146,702        428,903        403,060        403,060        403,060        448,467        4,963,055     

296,519        416,795        746,100        1,976,679     630,443        836,699        1,465,781     864,185        1,146,386     1,120,543     1,120,543     1,300,956     448,467        12,370,096   

Page 167 of 187



Mission Vista Academy
Monthly Cash Flow/Budget FY19-20
Revised 5/16/19

ADA = 4494.45
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Year-End 
Accruals

 Annual 
Budget 

Operations and Housekeeping
5201 Auto and Travel -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      18,922           18,922           18,922           18,922           -                      -                      -                      75,687           
5300 Dues & Memberships 2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             -                      28,405           
5400 Insurance 10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           10,251           -                      123,013         
5501 Utilities 551                551                551                551                551                551                551                551                551                551                551                551                -                      6,607             
5502 Janitorial Services 157                157                157                157                157                157                157                157                157                157                157                157                -                      1,888             
5900 Communications 2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             2,367             -                      28,405           
5901 Postage and Shipping -                      -                      6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             6,625             -                      66,248           

15,693           15,693           22,318           22,318           22,318           22,318           41,240           41,240           41,240           41,240           22,318           22,318           -                      330,252         
Facilities, Repairs and Other Leases

5601 Rent 11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           11,828           -                      141,935         
5602 Additional Rent 375                375                375                375                375                375                375                375                375                375                375                375                -                      4,494             
5610 Repairs and Maintenance 1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             1,577             -                      18,922           

13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           13,779           -                      165,351         
Professional/Consulting Services

5802 Audit & Taxes -                      -                      -                      9,468             9,468             9,468             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      28,405           
5803 Legal 7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             7,884             -                      94,608           
5804 Professional Development -                      -                      9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             9,555             -                      95,552           
5805 General Consulting -                      -                      6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             6,742             -                      67,417           
5806 Special Activities/Field Trips 36,083           60,138           60,138           84,193           84,193           120,275        120,275        120,275        120,275        120,275        120,275        156,358        -                      1,202,752     
5807 Bank Charges -                      -                      378                378                378                378                378                378                378                378                378                378                -                      3,775             
5808 Printing -                      -                      566                566                566                566                566                566                566                566                566                566                -                      5,663             
5809 Other taxes and fees -                      -                      2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             2,247             -                      22,472           
5811 Management Fee -                      -                      100,223        438,142        28,418           36,283           227,743        44,648           130,536        122,671        122,671        122,671        136,490        1,510,495     
5812 District Oversight Fee -                      -                      65,678           369,326        18,134           24,876           188,984        31,735           105,353        98,611           98,611           98,611           89,485           1,189,405     
5814 SPED Encroachment -                      -                      53,941           16,597           16,597           16,597           16,597           17,427           17,427           17,427           17,427           17,427           -                      207,464         
5815 Public Relations/Recruitment -                      -                      3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             3,784             -                      37,843           

43,967           68,022           311,136        948,883        187,966        238,656        584,756        245,242        404,747        390,140        390,140        426,223        225,975        4,465,852     
Interest

7438 Interest Expense -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      70,000           -                      56,000           61,600           -                      84,000           140,000        -                      411,600         
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      70,000           -                      56,000           61,600           -                      84,000           140,000        -                      411,600         

Total Expenses 2,147,823     2,388,374     2,967,418     4,931,964     2,824,812     3,296,088     4,240,870     3,350,589     3,787,557     3,680,338     3,745,416     4,162,242     674,442        42,197,933   

Monthly Surplus (Deficit) (2,147,823)   (2,388,374)   (103,895)       7,586,377     (2,012,873)   (2,259,427)   2,266,075     (2,074,921)   (57,962)         (175,465)       (240,543)       (657,369)       3,225,269     959,067         
2%

Cash Flow Adjustments
Monthly Surplus (Deficit) (2,147,823)    (2,388,374)    (103,895)       7,586,377     (2,012,873)    (2,259,427)    2,266,075     (2,074,921)    (57,962)         (175,465)       (240,543)       (657,369)       3,225,269     959,067         
Cash flows from operating activities

Public Funding Receivables -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (3,899,710)    (3,899,710)    
Due To/From Related Parties 5,000,000     -                      -                      (5,000,000)    -                      -                      (2,000,000)    -                      -                      -                      -                      (3,000,000)    -                      (5,000,000)    
Accounts Payable -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      674,442        674,442         

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Factoring -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,500,000     -                      2,000,000     2,200,000     -                      3,000,000     5,000,000     -                      14,700,000   
Payments on Factoring -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (2,500,000)    -                      (2,000,000)    (2,200,000)    -                      (6,700,000)    

Total Change in Cash 2,852,177     (2,388,374)    (103,895)       2,586,377     (2,012,873)    240,573        266,075        (74,921)         (357,962)       (175,465)       759,457        (857,369)       

Cash, Beginning of Month -                      2,852,177     463,803        359,908        2,946,284     933,411        1,173,985     1,440,060     1,365,138     1,007,176     831,711        1,591,167     

Cash, End of Month 2,852,177     463,803        359,908        2,946,284     933,411        1,173,985     1,440,060     1,365,138     1,007,176     831,711        1,591,167     733,798        

Page 168 of 187



MISSION VISTA ACADEMY 

BOARD RESOLUTION – 2019 - 1 

I. Adoption of Mission Vista Academy’s Principal’s Annual Salary 

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy must adopt at a regular scheduled board meeting 
in open session the compensation of the highest compensated employee of the school.  

NOWTHEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors approve the 
annual salary for the Mission Vista Academy Principal in the amount of $185,000.  

 

II. Adoption of Mission Vista Academy’s Principal’s Supplemental Benefits  

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy must adopt at a regular scheduled board meeting 
in open session the supplemental benefits of the highest compensated employee of the 
school, the Principal.  

NOWTHEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors approve the 
supplemental benefits/extra pay in the amount of $700 a month and will include the 
following:  

i. Vehicle & Cell Phone stipend 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 169 of 187



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

I, _________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy a 
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, County of ________________, California, hereby certify 
as follows: 

The attached is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy which was duly and regularly held on June 8th, 2019, at 
which meeting all of the members of the Board of Directors had due notice and at which a quorum thereof 
was present; and at such meeting such resolutions were adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of such meeting on file and of 
record in my office; the attached resolution is a full, true, and correct copy of the original resolution 
adopted at such meeting and entered in such minutes; and such resolution has not been amended, 
modified, or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect. 

WITNESS my hand on ______________, 2019. 

 

______________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
Mission Vista Academy  

 

Page 170 of 187



EDUCATION AND SUPPORT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN INSPIRE DISTRICT OFFICE  

AND MISSION VISTA ACADEMY 

This Education and Support Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of July 1, 2019 
(“Effective Date”) by and between Provenance, (doing business as Inspire District Office), a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation (“IDO”) and Mission Vista Academy, a public charter school organized 
as a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“School”).  IDO and School may each be referred to 
herein as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties” to this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, IDO, a nonprofit corporation with tax exempt status as a supporting organization 
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, is in the business of providing educational goods and 
administrative services to charter schools that are operated by separate corporations doing business under 
the trade-name of Inspire (collectively the “Inspire Charter Schools”) and using the business methods and 
proprietary goods and services developed by IDO and by Inspire-model schools, and implementing the 
ethos of Inspire schools to provide high quality learning opportunities through a Personalized Learning 
Model, partnering with parents and embracing homeschooling within the framework of a public charter 
school.;   

WHEREAS, School is authorized by Beaumont Unified School District (“District”) to operate a 
California charter school for a term of five (5) years, from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024, pursuant to 
a petition granted by District dated March, 5 2018 (“Charter”). 

WHEREAS, the Charter provides that the School will implement the Inspire independent study 
model and may contract for educational and administrative support services;  

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, School now desires 
to contract with IDO for educational and administrative support services;   

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and intend that the terms of this Agreement shall at all times 
be consistent with the terms of the Charter, and that this Agreement provides for IDO to deliver educational 
goods and task-related services that are performed at the direction of the governing body of the School and 
over which the governing body of the School retains ultimate decision-making authority. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises set forth in this Agreement, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

1. Relationship of the Parties and Scope of Authority.  The relationship created by this
Agreement between the Parties is that of an independent contractor, not a partnership, joint venture, or 
employment relationship.  Under this Agreement, IDO will deliver goods and perform task-related services 
at the direction of the governing body of the School and for which the governing body of the School retains 
ultimate decision-making authority.  The Parties understand and agree as follows:  

a. The governing body of the School shall at all times retain its duty to exercise its
statutory, contractual, and fiduciary responsibilities governing operation of the School.  The governing 
body of the School, and not IDO, has fiduciary responsibility for the School. The governing body of 
the School is ultimately responsible for ensuring School adheres to all applicable law and is 
accountable to the authorizing District pursuant to the Charter.   

b. School shall at all times remain an independent, self-governing public body that shall

Page 171 of 187



comply with applicable transparency laws, including but not limited to the California Brown Act, 
Public Records Act, Political Reform Act, and effective January 1, 2020, the provisions of Government 
Code section 1090, et seq.. 

c. To the extent not otherwise specified as a duty of IDO pursuant to the scope of
Services, all duties applicable to the proper operation of School and maintenance of applicable 
academic standards shall remain the responsibility of School. 

d. School shall pay for an annual audit of School to be conducted in compliance with
California law and regulations.  The annual audit shall be performed by an independent certified 
public accountant selected and retained by the governing body of the School. 

e. While IDO may make recommendations to the governing body of the School
regarding any arrangements for legal services for School pursuant to the scope of Services, School 
and its governing body may hire legal counsel as School may deem appropriate and necessary. 

f. IDO will not be required to provide any service set forth in this Agreement to the
extent that it is or becomes impracticable, in any material respect, as a result of a cause or causes 
outside IDO’s and/or School’s reasonable control or would require IDO or School to violate 
applicable law or cause IDO to be considered an “entity managing a charter school” per Education 
Code section 47604.1(a). 

g. IDO will provide all Services in a manner it believes to be in the best interests of
School and with due care, in good faith, and in exchange for reasonable compensation taking into 
account that IDO is a nonprofit that is exempt from income taxation pursuant to Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3). 

2. Independent Contractor. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any IDO or School
employee any rights or remedies, including any right to employment, as an employee of the other Party. 
The Parties agree as follows: 

a. All IDO employees providing services to School shall be and remain employed by
IDO and shall at all times be subject to the direction, supervision and control of IDO.  All School 
employees shall be and remain employed by School and shall at all times be subject to the direction, 
supervision and control of School. 

b. School shall not have any right to terminate the employment of any IDO employee
providing services to the School.  IDO shall not have any right to terminate the employment of any 
School employee.  

c. The Parties agree that IDO shall not lease its employees to the School. School shall
employ all of its personnel, including certificated personnel responsible for the delivery of 
instruction.  School shall determine and manage compensation (salary and benefit) plans for its 
employees; provided, however, that School shall oversee and may consult with IDO and IDO will 
assist with providing payroll and related services pursuant to the scope of Services. 

d. IDO certifies that any of its employees who perform school-site services or
transportation services for School, or who may have substantial contact with students at School as 
determined by School in its reasonable discretion, shall be screened in compliance with Education 
Code section 45125.1 and IDO shall otherwise comply with that statute. 

Page 172 of 187



3. Services Provided by IDO.  During the term of this Agreement, IDO shall provide to 
School the services, including the staff necessary to provide the services, listed in Attachment A to this 
Agreement (the “Services”).  IDO is not obligated to devote all of its time or efforts to School, but shall 
devote the time, effort, and skill reasonably necessary to provide the Services to School.  IDO reserves the 
right to sub-contract with a third party for the provision of any of the Services.  The Parties may mutually 
agree to modify the Services at any time by amending Attachment A in writing; provided, however, the 
Parties will also adjust the annual fee commensurately pursuant to Section 5, if necessary, and IDO shall 
only deliver task-related services that are performed at the direction of the governing body of the School and 
for which the governing body of the School retains ultimate decision-making authority.  To the extent there are 
any conflicts between the terms of the Charter and the terms of this Agreement, the terms of the Charter shall 
control. 

4. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2019 and continue through 
June 30, 2024.  This Agreement may be renewed for consecutive terms upon mutual written agreement of 
the Parties.  

5. Annual Fee.  As compensation for the Services, School shall pay IDO an annual fee of 
fifteen percent (15 %) (3.5% allocated to operational/administrative services and, 11.5% to licensing the 
Inspire IP described in Attachment B, including the provision of supporting educational goods and services) 
of the School’s annual Revenues.  For purposes of this Agreement, Revenues shall mean the amount 
received in the current fiscal year ffrom the local control funding formula calculated pursuant to 
Education Code section 42238.02 and implemented by Section 42238.3. Revenues shall not include one-
time or federal restricted grant funds such as PCSGP grants or other federal funding programs.

a. Beginning July 1, 2018, the annual fee shall be paid by SCHOOL to IDO in twelve
(12) monthly installments per year with each monthly payment being due no later than the tenth
(10th) day of each month in which a payment is due.    The amount of each monthly installment
shall be based upon SCHOOL’s current school year budgeted Revenue.

b. At the end of each fiscal year after the P-2 ADA certification by the California
Department of Education, which should occur no later than June 30th, a reconciliation of payments 
shall made based upon SCHOOL’s actual Revenues in said year.  In the event that the total amount 
of installment payments made by SCHOOL for the subject year exceeds the total amount due based 
upon SCHOOL’s actual Revenues, IDO shall refund the total amount of said overpayment to 
SCHOOL within thirty (30) days of the end of the fiscal year.  In the event that the total amount of 
installment payments made by SCHOOL for the subject year is less than the total amount due based 
upon SCHOOL’s actual Revenues, SCHOOL shall pay the total amount of said underpayment to 
IDO within thirty (30) days of the end of the fiscal year.  

c. In the event this Agreement is renewed, the annual fee shall be reviewed and
renegotiated by the Parties. 

6. Costs.  In addition to the annual fee, School shall reimburse IDO for direct “pass-through”
costs and expenses incurred in performing the Services, including, but not limited to: equipment, materials, 
or supplies purchased from third parties at the request of, or on behalf of the School; platform subscription 
fees (e.g. student information systems, learning management systems); travel (including mileage, airfare, 
lodging, meals, and ground transportation); filing or corporate fees; marketing and development costs 
incurred solely for School (e.g. print materials, postage for mailers, and costs of newspaper, radio, 
television, billboard or other broadcast advertisements); and fees of other third parties consulted by IDO at 
the request of or on behalf of the School.  However, no costs will be owed for services provided by 
subcontractors, such as Charter Impact [or legal counsel?] 

Page 173 of 187



a. In the event that IDO purchases equipment, materials, or supplies at the request of 
or on behalf of the School, IDO shall comply with the procurement policies and processes approved 
by the governing body of the School and shall not include any mark-up, added fees or charges with 
the cost of equipment, materials, and supplies purchased from third parties.  Any equipment, 
materials, or supplies that IDO purchases on behalf of the School shall be and remain the property 
of the School. 

b. Marketing and development costs charged to School shall be limited to those costs 
specific to the School program, and shall not include any costs for the marketing of the Inspire 
brand or development of IDO goods, services or intellectual property.   

c. All reimbursable costs of IDO charged to School shall be itemized on IDO 
invoices, with reference to specific dollar amounts and with backup documentation for such costs 
(e.g. copies of receipts or purchase orders).   

7. Annual Notices.  As a supporting organization to School, IDO shall, at least annually, 
provide School with a copy of its most recent Form 990, a description of the support, in services and 
otherwise, provided to School, and its most current articles and bylaws, not later than the 5th day of the 5th 
month after the close of the year for which the Form 990 is filed. 

8. Cooperation.  School shall make available to IDO, in a timely manner, all data, files, 
documents, and other information and records necessary or appropriate for IDO to provide the Services 
under this Agreement.  School staff, and the governing body of the School as necessary, shall work closely 
and cooperatively with IDO to facilitate IDO’s effective performance and delivery of the Services. 

9. Conflicts of Interest.  School and IDO recognize that it is important that School be assured 
that IDO staff acts at all times with integrity.  School has adopted a conflict of interest code under the 
California Political Reform Act.  IDO acknowledges that School may require certain IDO staff to file annual 
financial interest disclosures as consultants under that code and abide by the disclosure and disqualification 
provisions of that Act.  IDO also agrees to adopt and provide to School copies of conflict of interest policies 
required by the IRS, as well as an anti-nepotism policy and a policy regarding inconsistent employment for 
compensation, which policies shall meet Federal requirements for grant and funding program 
administration. 

10. Non-Exclusive, Non-Transferrable Intellectual Property License.  IDO grants School 
a non-exclusive, non-transferable irrevocable, United States limited license to use, display and print graphic 
images of the Inspire IP in connection with School’s operation of the Charter.  The Inspire IP is described 
in Attachment B and may include copyrights, patents, trademarks, technology, and intellectual property of 
every kind (the “Inspire IP”).  The Parties acknowledge that IDO has extensively invested in developing 
and improving the Inspire IP and in marketing, refining, advertising, promoting, and publicizing it, all of 
which have become well and favorably known to the public throughout the United States, and as a result of 
such efforts, IDO has acquired valuable goodwill therein.  The non-exclusive, non-transferable license 
granted to School is subject to the following terms and conditions:  

a. Ownership.  School acknowledges the ownership of the Inspire IP in IDO and shall 
do nothing inconsistent with such ownership.  School acknowledges that all use of the Inspire IP 
shall inure to the benefit of and be on behalf of IDO.  School acknowledges that nothing in this 
Agreement shall give School any right, title, or interest in and to the Inspire IP other than the right 
to use the intellectual property in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.   

b. Quality Standards.  School shall not utilize the Inspire IP in any manner that would 

Page 174 of 187



diminish their value or harm the reputation of IDO or any other Inspire organization.  The nature 
and quality of all services rendered by School in connection with the Inspire IP, all goods sold by 
School under the Inspire IP, and all related advertising, promotional and other related uses of the 
Inspire IP by School shall conform to standards set by and be under the control of IDO.   

c. School agrees that School will not frame, copy, or feature any trademarks, logos, 
content from IDO’s websites or marketing materials at any website owned or controlled by School 
without IDO’s prior express written permission.   

d. Neither School nor any entity owned or controlled by them will directly or 
indirectly file, apply for, prosecute, register, maintain, obtain, and/or acquire any domain names, 
trademark applications, or trademark registrations, for any mark or name comprised of or 
containing the Inspire IP, or for any other confusingly similar marks, names, or terms.  Further, 
neither School nor any entity owned or controlled by School will directly or indirectly challenge, 
contest, or interfere with IDO’s ownership, use, registration, or enforcement of its Inspire IP. 

e. School shall not have the right to grant a license, sublicense, or any other rights to 
the Inspire IP. 

f. The license and rights granted to School herein are subject to any limitations 
imposed by any applicable government grant or government contract entered into by IDO. 

g. School shall use the Inspire IP only in the manner and for the duration expressly 
permitted in writing by IDO.   

h. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, School shall have no right to 
make any use whatsoever of the Inspire IP and must remove all Inspire IP previously used by 
School in accordance with section 14, Termination. 

i. Infringement Proceedings.  School shall promptly inform IDO of any 
infringements or other violations of the Inspire IP.  IDO shall have the exclusive right at its sole 
discretion to determine whether to take any action, including litigation, against such infringements 
or other violations.  For any such action IDO decides to take: (a) School will reasonably cooperate 
with and assist IDO; (b) IDO shall bear all costs, attorney’s fees, and expenses; and (c) IDO shall 
receive and retain all monetary awards, judgments, damages, and settlement proceeds.  If IDO 
decides not to take any action against an infringement or other violation of the Inspire IP, IDO will 
notify School of its decision, at which time School may request IDO’s permission for School to 
take action, including litigation.  If IDO permits School to take action: (a) IDO will reasonably 
cooperate with and assist School; (b) School will bear all costs, attorney’s fees, and expenses; (c) 
School will obtain IDO’s prior approval of any settlement, such approval to not be unreasonably 
withheld; and (e) School will receive and retain all monetary awards, judgments, damages, and 
settlements proceeds. 

j. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ISO shall own all proprietary rights to curriculum 
or educational materials that: (1) are both directly developed and paid for by School; or (2) were 
developed by IDO at the direction of the governing body of the School with School funds dedicated 
for the specific purpose of developing such curriculum or materials unless otherwise agreed in 
writing. 

11. Confidentiality.  Each Party acknowledges that during the term of this Agreement, it will 
have access to certain Confidential Information of the other Party, as defined below.  Each Party shall 

Page 175 of 187



maintain and enforce reasonable administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to reasonably protect 
the confidentiality of the other Party’s Confidential Information.   

a. “Confidential Information” means non-public information marked either 
“confidential” or “proprietary,” or that otherwise should be understood by a reasonable person to 
be confidential in nature.  Confidential Information may include but is not limited to trade secrets, 
policies, procedures, intellectual property, business or strategic plans, contractual arrangements or 
negotiations, financial information and employee information.  Confidential Information does not 
include any information which (i) is rightfully known to the recipient prior to its disclosure; (ii) is 
released to any other person or entity (including governmental agencies) without restriction; (iii) is 
independently developed by the recipient without use of or reliance on Confidential Information; 
or (iv) is or later becomes publicly available without violation of this Agreement or may be lawfully 
obtained by a Party from a non-party; or (v) which is a public record under California law.  

b. If disclosure of Confidential Information is requested pursuant to law, statute, rule 
or regulation (including a subpoena, a request made to School under the California Public Records 
Act, or other similar form of process), the Party to which the request for disclosure is made shall 
(other than in connection with routine supervisory examinations by regulatory authorities with 
jurisdiction and without breaching any legal or regulatory requirement) provide the other Party with 
prior prompt written notice thereof to the extent practicable, and if practicable under the 
circumstances, shall allow the other Party to seek a restraining order or other appropriate relief.   

c. The Parties understand and acknowledge that School’s financial, educational, and 
student records are School property and may be subject to the California Public Records Act.  All 
School records shall be physically or electronically available, upon School’s request, at the 
School’s physical location. Records shall also be made available to School electronically on IDO’s 
software platforms, when such platforms exist. 

d. The finance and other records of the School maintained by IDO shall be made 
available the School’s independent auditor upon request.   

e. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, Confidential Information of 
each Party in the possession of the other Party shall be returned and/or destroyed.   

12. Student Information.  IDO and School will each comply with the federal Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. § 1232g) (“FERPA”), federal Children’s Online 
Privacy and Protection Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 6501–6506) (“COPPA”), and other applicable state and 
federal laws pertaining to student information and privacy. IDO is a “third party” which may 
receive pupil records under California Education Code Section 49073.1(d)(6). 

a. IDO shall be designated as having a legitimate educational interest in accessing 
School’s student education records, as that term is defined by and for purposes of FERPA, thereby 
allowing IDO to access personally identifiable information from student education records from 
School in order to provide its services. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “personally 
identifiable information” (“PII”) means any information that can be used on its own or with other 
information to (i) distinguish one person from another, (ii) identify, contact, or locate a single 
person, or (iii) de-anonymize anonymous data.   

b. IDO shall not use or disclose pupil records, including personally identifiable 
information, received from or on behalf of School except as necessary to provide the Services, as 
required by law, or as otherwise authorized in writing by School.  IDO shall protect the pupil 

Page 176 of 187



records it receives from or on behalf of School no less rigorously than it protects its own 
Confidential Information. IDO will designate and train responsible individuals to ensure the 
security and confidentiality of pupil records.  IDO shall develop, implement, maintain and use 
reasonable administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality 
and availability of all electronically transmitted pupil records received from or on behalf of School.  
In the event of an unauthorized disclosure of PII, IDO shall notify School as soon as practicable, 
and shall, upon School’s request, notify affected parents, legal guardians and eligible pupils using 
reasonably available technological means suchas electronic mail. 

c. IDO shall allow parents, legal guardians and eligible students to access their 
student records in compliance with applicable federal and state law.  If such access is not 
immediately available through access to the electronic record system, IDO shall provide access to 
the requested records via a secure means within five (5) business days of the request for such 
information, or such other time as the parties agree.   

d. IDO shall provide a process and contact information to allow parents, legal 
guardians and eligible students to make written requests to modify erroneous student records as 
required under federal and state law in accordance with School policies.    

e. Within 60 days of the termination or expiration of this Agreement, IDO shall 
certify in writing that protected student information in the possession of IDO shall be returned 
and/or destroyed.   

f. Prohibition on Targeted Marketing.  IDO shall not use PII in pupil records to 
engage in targeted advertising contrary to California law. 

g. Cyber Liability Insurance and Indemnity.  IDO shall obtain and maintain for the 
Term of this Agreement Cyber Liability Insurance with limits of not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate including but not limited to coverage for claims involving security and 
privacy violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, intentional 
and/or unintentional release of information, business interruption, cyber extortion and corruption, 
and denial of service.   

h. IDO shall indemnify, defend and hold School (including its officers, directors and 
employees) from and against all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, expenses or judgments 
involving a third party, including School’s costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, which arise as a 
result of any such unauthorized disclosures or misuse of pupil records through the services provided 
by IDO, excluding those claims, liabilities, damages or judgments arising from the sole active 
negligence or willful misconduct of School.   

13. Insurance. 

a. School shall maintain customary and reasonable insurance coverage, including 
professional liability for errors or omissions and/or directors and officers coverages, comprehensive 
general liability coverage, and automobile liability coverage.  School shall name IDO as an 
additional insured under all School’s policies. 

b. IDO shall maintain customary and reasonable insurance coverage, including 
professional liability for errors or omissions and/or directors and officers coverages, comprehensive 
general liability coverage, and automobile liability coverage.  IDO shall name School as an 
additional insured under all IDO’s policies. 

Page 177 of 187



c. Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining workers’ 
compensation coverage and unemployment insurance for its employees.   

d. The Parties’ insurance coverages shall take into consideration that staff at the 
School are employees of the School, and not employees of IDO. 

14. Termination.   

a. Either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause or a financial penalty 
upon written notice to the other Party, and such termination shall be effective as of the end of the 
then-current school year to minimize disruptions to the School’s operations.   

b. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for breach of a material term or 
condition of this Agreement upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other Party.  Such written 
notice shall identify the breach and provide thirty (30) days for the other Party to cure.   

c. In the event that any new enactment, repeal, or change of any federal, state, or local 
law, regulation, or court or administrative decision or order materially affects the performance of 
School and IDO in conformity with this Agreement, the Parties shall promptly commence 
negotiations in good faith regarding a mutually agreeable approach (including without limitation, 
an amendment to the Agreement) to address the statutory and/or regulatory changes.  If, despite 
such good faith negotiations, the Parties are unable to agree upon an acceptable approach, then 
either Party may elect to terminate the Agreement without further obligation or liability to the other, 
by delivering written notice of termination to the other at least ninety (90) days in advance of the 
effective date of such termination, or in such lesser time as is reasonable under the circumstances.    

d. In the event of termination for any reason, the following conditions shall apply: 

i. School shall pay IDO any due and unpaid portion of the annual fee and costs 
for Services performed by IDO until the effective date of termination. 

ii. IDO shall provide reasonable assistance to School to transition to another 
service provider, during which time School shall reimburse IDO for all reasonable 
expenses incurred by IDO in providing such transition assistance. 

iii. School shall cease all use of the Inspire IP, as described in Attachment B, 
as soon as reasonably practicable, but in no event later than 180 days or the end of the then 
current School fiscal year. 

iv. IDO shall offer to assign any equipment, vehicle or facility leases used 
solely by or for the benefit of or use by School. 

v. As soon as practicable, IDO shall return to School and/or destroy, as 
appropriate, all student-related, fiscal, and other records of School maintained by IDO. 

15. Liability.  Each of the Parties shall remain and be responsible for its own debts and 
obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as imposing on a Party any liability arising out 
of the operations of the other Party, except as such liability may result from the performance of the first 
Party’s obligations under this Agreement.   

16. Indemnification.  The Parties shall defend, indemnify, and hold each other, their 

Page 178 of 187



employees, officers, directors, and agents, free and harmless against any liability, loss, claims, demands, 
damages, expenses, and costs (including attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, and other costs of litigation or 
other proceedings) of every kind or nature arising in any manner out of the performance of their obligations 
under this Agreement, except for such loss or damage caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct 
of the other Party.   

17. Fiduciary Obligations.  The governing bodies for both Parties have reviewed the scope 
of Services and compensation provided in this Agreement in good faith, and in a manner in which they 
believe to be in the best interests of their respective organizations, and with such care, including reasonable 
inquiry, as an ordinary prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances, and have 
determined that the Services contained herein are in the best interests of their respective organizations, and 
that the compensation to be paid is fair and reasonable.   

18. Assignment.  No Party shall assign this Agreement, any interest in this Agreement, or its 
rights or obligations under this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the other Party.  This 
Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties and their respective permitted 
successors and assigns. 

19. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt to negotiate in good faith to resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement before resorting to litigation. 

20. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands, or other communications (collectively “Notice”) 
given to or by the Parties under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
given on the date of receipt if transmitted by email or personally served on the Party to whom Notice is to 
be given, or seventy-two (72) hours after mailing by United States mail first class, registered or certified 
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom Notice is to be given, at such Party’s address set 
forth below: 

To IDO:  

 
  Email:   dr.jayne.gray@gmail.com 

To School:  

  Email: sassiekacie@gmail.com 

Headings. The descriptive headings of the sections and/or paragraphs of this Agreement are 
inserted for convenience only, are not part of this Agreement, and do not in any way limit or 
amplify the terms or provisions of this Agreement.  

21. Amendments.  No supplement, modification, or amendment of this Agreement or the 
Services described in Attachment A shall be binding unless in writing and executed by both Parties.  The 
Parties anticipate additional and/or revised services to be provided through amendments to Attachment A 
and commensurate adjustment of the annual fee, if necessary.  Such amendments may be negotiated directly 
by staff of School and IDO at any time, and shall be brought to the governing bodies of School and IDO 
respectively to approve or ratify.   

22. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter contained herein and supersedes all agreements, representations and 
understandings of the Parties with respect to such subject matter made or entered into prior to the date of 

Page 179 of 187



this Agreement.  If School seeks to enter into a lease, promissory notes or other negotiable instruments, or 
to enter into a lease-purchase agreement or other financing relationships with IDO, such agreements shall 
be separate documents and not be incorporated into this Agreement or any amendments thereto.  Such 
agreements shall be consistent with the School’s authority to terminate IDO and continue operation of the 
School. 

23. Arm’s Length and Independent Counsel.  This Agreement has been negotiated at arm’s 
length and between persons (or their representatives) sophisticated and knowledgeable in the subjects in 
this Agreement.  Accordingly, any rule of law or legal decision that would require interpretation of any 
ambiguities against the Party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived.  The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the Parties and this 
Agreement.  Each Party has been advised by, or had opportunity to seek advice from, its independent 
counsel regarding this Agreement.  

24. No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall constitute, or be deemed 
to constitute, a waiver of any other provision, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.  No 
waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the Party making the waiver. 

25. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or contravenes California law, 
such provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement and shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of its remaining provisions, unless such invalidity or unenforceability would defeat an 
essential purpose of this Agreement. 

26. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the laws of 
the State of California. 

27. Authority to Contract.  Each Party warrants to the other that it has the authority to enter 
into this Agreement, that it is a binding and enforceable obligation of said Party, and that the undersigned 
has been duly authorized to execute this Agreement. 

 

28. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  A faxed, .pdf, 
or other electronic copy of the fully executed original version of this Agreement shall have the same legal 
effect as an executed original for all purposes. 

Provenance, dba, Inspire District Office, a 
California nonprofit public benefit corporation  
 
By:         
Name:   Dr. Jayne Gray 
Its: Board President 
Date:      , 2019 

Mission Vista Academy, a California nonprofit 
public benefit corporation and charter school 
 
By:         
Name:   Kacie Christiansen 
Its:  Board President 
Date:      , 2019 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
DESCRIPTION OF IDO SERVICES 

Page 180 of 187



1. Public Relations and IP. IDO shall provide public relations services to SCHOOL, as 
determined by further mutual agreement of the Parties, in order to advance the shared mission of 
IDO and SCHOOL as set forth above in the recitals to this Agreement. SCHOOL may provide IDO a 
non- exclusive, limited license to use those Inspire Marks or any other Inspire intellectual property 
as may be owned or under license to SCHOOL, as may be requested by IDO from time to time, whether 
registered or unregistered, whether subject to application or not (the “Inspire IP”).  Without 
limitation, and subject to the direction of SCHOOL, IDO shall be available to represent School on all 
matters relating to public relations and public information, including, without limitation, preparing 
press releases on topics relating to the shared mission of IDO and SCHOOL, subject to approval of 
School’s Board or designated representative. 

2. Financial Services (Accounting, Bookkeeping, Payroll, Procurement, and other 
Financial Functions). Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the budget approved by Board of School 
and approval by School’s designated representative, IDO shall be responsible and accountable for: 

A. Preparation and submission to School and, as required by law, all required State 
financial reports, including but not limited to annual audited financial reports, annual budgets, 1st and 2nd 

Interims, unaudited actual reporting, P1 and P2 reporting, non-classroom based funding determinations 
when applicable, annual LCAP spending reporting, as well as providing monthly financial statements to 
the Board of School; 

B. Coordination and processing of payments of SCHOOL’s expenditures: 

a. Management of cash balances to cover SCHOOL’s payroll and payments 
to vendors, pursuant to School policy; 

b. Coordination and processing of SCHOOL’s payroll and tax reporting and 
other filings in accordance with the specific procedures and guidelines as designated and updated from time 
to time by SCHOOL personnel; 

c. Coordination and management of the annual independent audit of 
SCHOOL.  The cost of the audit will be the sole expense of SCHOOL. 

d. Assistance with Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) 
financial reviews, when applicable. 

e. Coordination and management of all facility, vehicle and equipment 
leasing agreements, including holding title or leasehold on behalf of School, with School’s consent; 

f. Assistance and monitoring of spending and general administration of grant 
funding in compliance with specific terms and conditions of said grants and participation in any audits 
related thereto; and, 

g. Identification and management of external financing, as needed. 

h. Recommending, negotiating and managing leases as approved by the 
Board. 

C. Subcontracting.  IDO may subcontract with Charter Impact or other backoffice 
service provider to provide any of these services, with consent of School provided that no such subcontract 
permitted hereunder shall relieve or discharge IDO from any obligation or liability under this Agreement 

Page 181 of 187



and provided that no such subcontract permitted hereunder shall constitute a majority of IDO’s duties under 
this Agreement.. 

3. Board Facilitation.  IDO shall coordinate the scheduling of and documentation of meetings 
of the Board, including the preparation of agendas, preparation of minutes per Board policy. IDO will 
coordinate annual Board member training to include training in SCHOOL protocols, best practices and legal 
updates, including any training required by the Charter. 

4. Strategic Planning and Implementation. IDO will support SCHOOL in the development of 
key long term goals for SCHOOL in meeting its academic, funding, reporting, accountability, growth 
requirements, development and preparation of charter renewals, material charter modifications and other 
changes to School’s charter, as needed or directed by the Board of School. 

5. SCHOOL Policies.  IDO shall ensure ready access to SCHOOL policies by all personnel, 
including, policies, rules, regulations, procedures, personnel, and budget.  For the avoidance of doubt, 
SCHOOL retains sole and complete control over the foregoing policies. 

6. Human Capital Management.  Under the supervision and direction of School, and subject 
to the authority of the Board and School management to employ, discipline or dismiss all persons employed 
by School: 

A. IDO shall support School’s management and Board in recruiting, screening and 
recommending certificated and non- certificated individuals for employment by SCHOOL; 

B. IDO shall also provide pre-employment screening services, verify, check and 
monitor credentials for certificated staff; 

C. IDO shall coordinate and administer health, life and retirement benefits for 
SCHOOL employees, including certificated and non-certificated staff provided by SCHOOL and as 
approved by the Board and its designated representative; 

D. IDO will support the provision of School’s new hire employee orientation, 
training; onboarding (at the time of hiring) and off-boarding (upon termination). IDO will also coordinate 
the provision of all State and federally mandated training to SCHOOL employees; 

E. IDO will track leave of absence benefits (including time off, sick days and other 
leaves) and monitor and provide information on the handling employee work-related injuries in 
coordination with School’s workers compensation provider pursuant to School policies and subject to 
School direction 

F. IDO will maintain and recommend revisions to School’s employment policies and 
employee handbook. 

7. Risk Management.  IDO shall facilitate the School’s selection and maintenance of 
insurance coverages for School, in amounts that are no less than the minimum levels set by SCHOOL, or 
mandated by its Charter or applicable law.  However, IDO shall not act as, or receive any compensation as 
broker for insurance, including any liability, casualty, property, directors’ and officers’ liability or workers 
compensation coverages. 

8. Files and Records.  IDO shall maintain custody and provide ready access to all School files 
and records relating to the Services. IDO acknowledges that all records, data, communications, and other 

Page 182 of 187



property of SCHOOL entrusted or loaned to IDO during the term of this Agreement are SCHOOL’s property 
and IDO agrees to return any such material to SCHOOL immediately upon the termination of this 
Agreement.  IDO shall support School’s responses to requests for records, including Public Records Act 
requests, at the direction of School. 

9. Reporting Requirements to the Board.  IDO shall provide to the Board an annual year-end 
report and more frequently as the Board shall reasonably request summarizing the  services and financial 
support provided, any changes to IDO’s governing documents, and a copy of its Form 990. 

10. Educational Services 

A. Educational Program:  IDO will work in collaboration with SCHOOL on 
development and implementation of the Inspire educational model licensed and provided to 
SCHOOL.  IDO will work with SCHOOL to effectuate any necessary changes to the educational 
program requested by School or mandated by law, recognizing that essential principle of this 
educational model is its flexibility, adaptability and capacity to change in the interest of continuous 
improvement of efficiency. 

B. Professional Development:  IDO will provide the resources and plans to the 
SCHOOL staff to enhance their effectiveness in delivering the Inspire educational program, and to 
help the School’s students master educational standards established by the State of California, 
including training manuals and courses such as Zoom, PLC templates, CPACE, and Fresno Pacific, and 
guidance on achievement goals and reporting under LCAP, SARC and CSI.   

C. Testing and Assessments:  IDO will assist SCHOOL in the administration of all 
State required testing and other State mandated assessments, including a series of assessments 
designed to gauge the Student’s mastery of core concepts and readiness for the State of California’s 
mandated standardized testing, including identifying and securing testing sites approved by School;   

D. Student Records Support:  IDO will maintain and support School’s access to 
and response to requests for SCHOOL’s Student Records in accordance with state, local and federal 
requirements. 

E. Technology:  IDO will provide a comprehensive Computer Technology and IT 
infrastructure solution to SCHOOL and its employees which shall include procuring, imaging, 
delivering, repairing, replacing, warehousing and collection of such Computer Technology, as well as 
other related comprehensive logistical support services required for delivery of the Inspire 
educational program licensed to School. 

F. Meeting the need of Special Needs Students:  IDO will support SCHOOL’s 
employees in the development of Special Education Protocols and educational materials for the 
provision of Special Education Services, consistent with the requirements and policies of the Special 
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) in which School participates.  IDO will assist school in identifying 
and procuring qualified service providers for students with special education needs.  SCHOOL 
personnel, together with SELPA and Authorizer representatives, consistent with any agreements 
which may be in place, shall be responsible for developing an Individualized Education Program 
(“IEP”) for students with identified special needs.  All service provider costs will be the sole 
responsibility of SCHOOL. 

Page 183 of 187



G. Instructional Materials:  IDO shall develop curriculum and coordinate the 
purchase of the curriculum and instructional materials to be used by SCHOOL, as approved by the 
Board, in order to offer interesting and challenging curricula for the purpose of allowing students to 
progress as quickly as their capabilities will allow.  Materials shall be designed in a language and 
format that are readily accessible, and students will be allowed to complete course work at their own 
pace, as the program will be formulated based on the School’s initial assessment of the student’s skill 
levels in reading, math and other core courses. School staff and students will also be provided access 
by IDO to library materials stored, maintained for the use of  Inspire schools served by IDO.  IDO will 
track and coordinate inter-School library materials loans.  SCHOOL will be responsible for all Board-
approved curriculum and instructional material costs.   IDO shall retain all ownership and copyrights 
to any curricular material created by IDO for the use by SCHOOL.   

H. Enrichment Services:  IDO will maintain a system for ordering and providing 
risk management review and tracking of vendor contracts and their compliance with School policies, 
and coordinating Schools’ teachers’ selection, approval and provision and registration for selected 
enrichment services and organization of field trips for students. 

11. Marketing/Branding:  IDO will provide SCHOOL the design of all Inspire-branded 
materials, including promo items, website design, collateral, wearables, print assets including tri-fold 
brochures, rack cards, newsletters, event fliers, graduation programs, and more, based upon the 
Board-approved budget and policies.  IDO will establish brand and communication strategies across 
all channels and promote the brand.  IDO will maintain the SCHOOL public website that will contain 
any information required by SCHOOL and applicable state law.  IDO will review and provide a 
periodic report to School of all social media properties, which may include Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram, and Linkedln and provide refinements to increase traffic.  IDO will coordinate and manage 
all School-approved third party vendors on behalf of SCHOOL.   SCHOOL will be solely responsible 
for those third party vendor costs.  

12. Community Relationships:  IDO shall coordinate SCHOOL’s community relationships, 
including with local non-profits, governmental agencies, local businesses and higher education 
institutions in concert with the Board. 

13. Student Enrollment and Information:  IDO will provide and maintain School’s 
enrollment system portal, and serve as the liaison between SCHOOL and the Student Information 
System Provider; perform quality data tracking, including but not limited to student data such as 
attendance, performance, etc.; and, shall coordinate and manage school data as the technology 
system is developed and maintained.  IDO shall prepare and submit all required State reporting 
regarding student demographics, etc.  IDO will provide periodic reports on student performance, and 
assessments of whether educational goals and measurements are being achieved. 

14. School Calendar:  To the extent necessary or requested by SCHOOL, and consistent 
with the School’s charter and policies, IDO will assist with the development of calendars suitable for 
SCHOOL’s purposes, including for funding qualification and maximization. 

  

Page 184 of 187



Attachment B 

 
Mark Class Goods/Services Reg. No.  Reg. Date 

 

 
 

41 Educational services in the nature of 
charter schools 

5467904 May 15, 2018 

INSPIRE CHARTER SCHOOLS 41 Educational services in the nature of 
charter schools 

5467903 May 15, 2018 

INSPIRATION STATION 

41 Providing a website featuring blogs and 
non-downloadable publications in the 
nature of articles in the field of 
homeschooling and education 

5545765 
 

Aug. 21, 2018 

 

 

Page 185 of 187



MISSION VISTA ACADEMY  

BOARD RESOLUTION – 2019 – 2 

I. Adoption of  Mission Vista Academy Employee Higher Education Scholarship 

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy is committed to fostering a more qualified and 
dynamic work force by providing a scholarship for employees to pursue higher 
education opportunities through Inspire University.  

WHEREAS, the employee who receives the scholarship must work for Mission Vista 
Academy for a minimum of one year after completion of the program.  

NOWTHEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors approve four 
scholarships to cover 50% of each course unit, up to 24 units per year for up to two 
years. This is a cost of up to $6000 per year per person.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 186 of 187



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

I, _________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy a 
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, County of _____________, California, hereby certify as 
follows: 

The attached is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy which was duly and regularly held on ____________, 
2019, at which meeting all of the members of the Board of Directors had due notice and at which a 
quorum thereof was present; and at such meeting such resolutions were adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of such meeting on file and of 
record in my office; the attached resolution is a full, true, and correct copy of the original resolution 
adopted at such meeting and entered in such minutes; and such resolution has not been amended, 
modified, or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect. 

WITNESS my hand on ______________, 2019. 

 

______________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
Mission Vista Academy 

 

Page 187 of 187


	6-9-19 Agenda - Mission Vista
	2-13-19 Board Minutes - Mission Vista Academy
	2-26-19 Board Minutes - Mission Vista Academy
	4-18-19 Minutes - Mission Vista
	Instructional Funds Policy - Mission Vista
	Access to The Charter School Documents Policy- Mission Vista
	Anti-Harrasment Policy- Mission Vista
	FERPA Directory Policy and Opt-Out Notice - Mission Vista
	Homeless Education Policy- Mission Vista
	1. Definitions:
	 Homeless children and youths means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence and includes children and youths:
	2. Homeless Liaison Responsibilities: The Charter School’s homeless liaison is required to do all of the following:
	3. Enrollment: All homeless students are required to follow the school’s process for enrolling students, including filling out and submitting the school’s enrollment packet on time.  As with all students, enrollment depends upon availability.  In the ...
	If the homeless student seeking to enroll is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, medical records, proof of residency or other documentation, this will not serve as a basis for non-enrollment. ...
	If the student needs to obtain immunizations, or immunization or medical records, the School will immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student, or the unaccompanied youth, to the Homeless Liaison, who shall assist in obtaining necessary imm...
	4. Enrollment Disputes and the Dispute Resolution Process: If a dispute arises over enrollment in the Charter School of a homeless student, the student will be immediately enrolled to the Charter School in which enrollment is sought, pending resolutio...
	The Charter School will refer the student and/or his/her parents or guardians to the Homeless Liaison, who will carry out the dispute resolution in accordance with the process set forth below, as expeditiously as possible after receiving notice of the...
	Parents, guardians and unaccompanied youth may provide written or oral documentation to support their positions about enrollment and may seek assistance of social services, advocates, and/or service providers in the dispute process.
	The Charter School will provide the parent or guardian of the student with a written explanation of the Charter School’s decision regarding enrollment, including the rights of the parent, guardian or unaccompanied youth’s appeal the decision.  The wri...
	If the dispute remains unresolved at the Charter School level or is appealed, then the Charter School Homeless Liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the homeless liaison at the county office of education (COE).  The C...
	If the dispute remains unresolved at the COE level or is appealed to the State, then the COE homeless liaison will forward all written documentation and related paperwork to the State Homeless Coordinator.  Upon review, the CDE will notify the parent/...
	5. Comparable Education Services: Each homeless student will be provided access to services comparable to services offered to other students in the Charter School, including but not limited to the following:

	ICS Information Technology Dept Policy & Procedure - Mission Vista
	Information Technology Department
	Policies and Procedures
	Mass Email Checklist
	● Returns qualifying for Full Refund or Credit
	○ Items eligible for a full refund/credit:
	● Returns qualifying for Partial Refund or Credit
	○ Items eligible for partial refund/credit:
	■ Defective items beyond the 90 days

	Identification of Individuals for 504- Mission Vista
	Identification of Individuals for Special Education- Mission Vista
	Individual Education Program Policy - Mission Vista
	Individual Education Program Administrative Policy - Mission Vista
	Parent- Student Technology Use Policy - Mission Vista
	Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education Policy- Mission Vista
	Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education Administrative Regulation- Mission Vista
	Staff Information Technology Use Policy- Mission Vista
	Suicide Prevention Policy - Mission Vista
	Suspension and Explusion Policy - Mission Vista
	Teacher Certification Policy - Mission Vista
	The Charter School Documents Policy - Mission Vista
	Transportation for Students with Disabilities- Mission Vista
	Universal Complaint Policy- Mission Vista
	Universal Complaint Adminstrative Regulation- Mission Vista
	Whistleblower Policy - Mission Vista
	Education Records and Student Information Policy - Mission Vista
	1. Education Record: An education record is any written or computerized document, file, entry, or record containing information directly relating to a student that is compiled and maintained by the Charter School. Such information includes but is not ...
	 Date and place of birth, parent and/or guardian’s address, and where the parties may be contacted for emergency purposes;
	 Grades, test scores, courses taken, academic specializations and school activities;
	 Special education records;
	 Disciplinary records;
	 Medical and health records;
	 Attendance records and records of past schools attended;
	 Personal information such as, but not limited to, student identification numbers, social security numbers, photographs, or any other type of information that aids in identification of a student.  Please note that, as of January 1, 2017, the Charter ...
	The Charter School shall not use any school resources or data to be used to create a registry based on race, gender, sexual orientation, religion, ethnicity or national origin.
	An education record does not include any of the following:
	4. Requesting for Amendment to Education Records: If upon review, a parent or eligible student discovers any information or notation that is factually inaccurate, misleading or in violation of the student’s right of privacy, he or she may request, in ...


	Immigration Enforcement Policy- Mission Vista
	Immigration Enforcement Policy Related to the Detention or Deportation of a Student's Family Member - Mission Vista
	Anti-Nepotism Policy - Mission Vista
	Inconsistent, Incompatible or Conflicting Policy - Mission Vista
	POLICY STATEMENT
	PROCEDURE

	Policy Confirming No Funds or Thing of Value to Students, Parents or Guardians - Mission Vista
	POLICY STATEMENT
	PROCEDURES

	Conflict of Interest Code - Mission Vista
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B

	Board Resolution - Principal's Salary
	Inspire District Office - Service Agreement - Mission Vista
	EDUCATION AND SUPPORT SERVICES AGREEMENT  BETWEEN INSPIRE DISTRICT OFFICE  AND MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
	ATTACHMENT A DESCRIPTION OF IDO SERVICES
	1. Public Relations and IP. IDO shall provide public relations services to SCHOOL, as determined by further mutual agreement of the Parties, in order to advance the shared mission of IDO and SCHOOL as set forth above in the recitals to this Agreement....
	2. Financial Services (Accounting, Bookkeeping, Payroll, Procurement, and other Financial Functions). Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the budget approved by Board of School and approval by School’s designated representative, IDO shall be respo...
	A. Preparation and submission to School and, as required by law, all required State financial reports, including but not limited to annual audited financial reports, annual budgets, 1st and 2nd Interims, unaudited actual reporting, P1 and P2 reporting...
	B. Coordination and processing of payments of SCHOOL’s expenditures:
	a. Management of cash balances to cover SCHOOL’s payroll and payments to vendors, pursuant to School policy;
	b. Coordination and processing of SCHOOL’s payroll and tax reporting and other filings in accordance with the specific procedures and guidelines as designated and updated from time to time by SCHOOL personnel;
	c. Coordination and management of the annual independent audit of SCHOOL.  The cost of the audit will be the sole expense of SCHOOL.
	d. Assistance with Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) financial reviews, when applicable.
	e. Coordination and management of all facility, vehicle and equipment leasing agreements, including holding title or leasehold on behalf of School, with School’s consent;
	f. Assistance and monitoring of spending and general administration of grant funding in compliance with specific terms and conditions of said grants and participation in any audits related thereto; and,
	g. Identification and management of external financing, as needed.
	h. Recommending, negotiating and managing leases as approved by the Board.

	C. Subcontracting.  IDO may subcontract with Charter Impact or other backoffice service provider to provide any of these services, with consent of School provided that no such subcontract permitted hereunder shall relieve or discharge IDO from any obl...
	3. Board Facilitation.  IDO shall coordinate the scheduling of and documentation of meetings of the Board, including the preparation of agendas, preparation of minutes per Board policy. IDO will coordinate annual Board member training to include train...
	4. Strategic Planning and Implementation. IDO will support SCHOOL in the development of key long term goals for SCHOOL in meeting its academic, funding, reporting, accountability, growth requirements, development and preparation of charter renewals, m...
	5. SCHOOL Policies.  IDO shall ensure ready access to SCHOOL policies by all personnel, including, policies, rules, regulations, procedures, personnel, and budget.  For the avoidance of doubt, SCHOOL retains sole and complete control over the foregoin...
	6. Human Capital Management.  Under the supervision and direction of School, and subject to the authority of the Board and School management to employ, discipline or dismiss all persons employed by School:
	A. IDO shall support School’s management and Board in recruiting, screening and recommending certificated and non- certificated individuals for employment by SCHOOL;
	B. IDO shall also provide pre-employment screening services, verify, check and monitor credentials for certificated staff;
	C. IDO shall coordinate and administer health, life and retirement benefits for SCHOOL employees, including certificated and non-certificated staff provided by SCHOOL and as approved by the Board and its designated representative;
	D. IDO will support the provision of School’s new hire employee orientation, training; onboarding (at the time of hiring) and off-boarding (upon termination). IDO will also coordinate the provision of all State and federally mandated training to SCHOO...
	E. IDO will track leave of absence benefits (including time off, sick days and other leaves) and monitor and provide information on the handling employee work-related injuries in coordination with School’s workers compensation provider pursuant to Sch...
	F. IDO will maintain and recommend revisions to School’s employment policies and employee handbook.
	7. Risk Management.  IDO shall facilitate the School’s selection and maintenance of insurance coverages for School, in amounts that are no less than the minimum levels set by SCHOOL, or mandated by its Charter or applicable law.  However, IDO shall no...

	8. Files and Records.  IDO shall maintain custody and provide ready access to all School files and records relating to the Services. IDO acknowledges that all records, data, communications, and other property of SCHOOL entrusted or loaned to IDO durin...
	9. Reporting Requirements to the Board.  IDO shall provide to the Board an annual year-end report and more frequently as the Board shall reasonably request summarizing the  services and financial support provided, any changes to IDO’s governing docume...
	10. Educational Services
	A. Educational Program:  IDO will work in collaboration with SCHOOL on development and implementation of the Inspire educational model licensed and provided to SCHOOL.  IDO will work with SCHOOL to effectuate any necessary changes to the educational p...
	B. Professional Development:  IDO will provide the resources and plans to the SCHOOL staff to enhance their effectiveness in delivering the Inspire educational program, and to help the School’s students master educational standards established by the ...
	C. Testing and Assessments:  IDO will assist SCHOOL in the administration of all State required testing and other State mandated assessments, including a series of assessments designed to gauge the Student’s mastery of core concepts and readiness for ...
	D. Student Records Support:  IDO will maintain and support School’s access to and response to requests for SCHOOL’s Student Records in accordance with state, local and federal requirements.
	E. Technology:  IDO will provide a comprehensive Computer Technology and IT infrastructure solution to SCHOOL and its employees which shall include procuring, imaging, delivering, repairing, replacing, warehousing and collection of such Computer Techn...
	F. Meeting the need of Special Needs Students:  IDO will support SCHOOL’s employees in the development of Special Education Protocols and educational materials for the provision of Special Education Services, consistent with the requirements and polic...
	G. Instructional Materials:  IDO shall develop curriculum and coordinate the purchase of the curriculum and instructional materials to be used by SCHOOL, as approved by the Board, in order to offer interesting and challenging curricula for the purpose...
	H. Enrichment Services:  IDO will maintain a system for ordering and providing risk management review and tracking of vendor contracts and their compliance with School policies, and coordinating Schools’ teachers’ selection, approval and provision and...
	11. Marketing/Branding:  IDO will provide SCHOOL the design of all Inspire-branded materials, including promo items, website design, collateral, wearables, print assets including tri-fold brochures, rack cards, newsletters, event fliers, graduation pr...
	12. Community Relationships:  IDO shall coordinate SCHOOL’s community relationships, including with local non-profits, governmental agencies, local businesses and higher education institutions in concert with the Board.
	13. Student Enrollment and Information:  IDO will provide and maintain School’s enrollment system portal, and serve as the liaison between SCHOOL and the Student Information System Provider; perform quality data tracking, including but not limited to ...
	14. School Calendar:  To the extent necessary or requested by SCHOOL, and consistent with the School’s charter and policies, IDO will assist with the development of calendars suitable for SCHOOL’s purposes, including for funding qualification and maxi...
	Attachment B



	Board Resolution - Higher Education Schlarship
	Inspire Charter Schools - Joint Engagement Agreement (1)
	Inspire Charter Schools - Common Interest and Conflict Waiver (2)
	FY20-Frcst-INSPMVA.pdf
	CLIENT REQUEST
	Multi-Year
	FY19-20

	Inspire District Office - Service Agreement - Mission Vista.pdf
	EDUCATION AND SUPPORT SERVICES AGREEMENT  BETWEEN INSPIRE DISTRICT OFFICE  AND MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
	ATTACHMENT A DESCRIPTION OF IDO SERVICES
	1. Public Relations and IP. IDO shall provide public relations services to SCHOOL, as determined by further mutual agreement of the Parties, in order to advance the shared mission of IDO and SCHOOL as set forth above in the recitals to this Agreement....
	2. Financial Services (Accounting, Bookkeeping, Payroll, Procurement, and other Financial Functions). Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the budget approved by Board of School and approval by School’s designated representative, IDO shall be respo...
	A. Preparation and submission to School and, as required by law, all required State financial reports, including but not limited to annual audited financial reports, annual budgets, 1st and 2nd Interims, unaudited actual reporting, P1 and P2 reporting...
	B. Coordination and processing of payments of SCHOOL’s expenditures:
	a. Management of cash balances to cover SCHOOL’s payroll and payments to vendors, pursuant to School policy;
	b. Coordination and processing of SCHOOL’s payroll and tax reporting and other filings in accordance with the specific procedures and guidelines as designated and updated from time to time by SCHOOL personnel;
	c. Coordination and management of the annual independent audit of SCHOOL.  The cost of the audit will be the sole expense of SCHOOL.
	d. Assistance with Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) financial reviews, when applicable.
	e. Coordination and management of all facility, vehicle and equipment leasing agreements, including holding title or leasehold on behalf of School, with School’s consent;
	f. Assistance and monitoring of spending and general administration of grant funding in compliance with specific terms and conditions of said grants and participation in any audits related thereto; and,
	g. Identification and management of external financing, as needed.
	h. Recommending, negotiating and managing leases as approved by the Board.

	C. Subcontracting.  IDO may subcontract with Charter Impact or other backoffice service provider to provide any of these services, with consent of School provided that no such subcontract permitted hereunder shall relieve or discharge IDO from any obl...
	3. Board Facilitation.  IDO shall coordinate the scheduling of and documentation of meetings of the Board, including the preparation of agendas, preparation of minutes per Board policy. IDO will coordinate annual Board member training to include train...
	4. Strategic Planning and Implementation. IDO will support SCHOOL in the development of key long term goals for SCHOOL in meeting its academic, funding, reporting, accountability, growth requirements, development and preparation of charter renewals, m...
	5. SCHOOL Policies.  IDO shall ensure ready access to SCHOOL policies by all personnel, including, policies, rules, regulations, procedures, personnel, and budget.  For the avoidance of doubt, SCHOOL retains sole and complete control over the foregoin...
	6. Human Capital Management.  Under the supervision and direction of School, and subject to the authority of the Board and School management to employ, discipline or dismiss all persons employed by School:
	A. IDO shall support School’s management and Board in recruiting, screening and recommending certificated and non- certificated individuals for employment by SCHOOL;
	B. IDO shall also provide pre-employment screening services, verify, check and monitor credentials for certificated staff;
	C. IDO shall coordinate and administer health, life and retirement benefits for SCHOOL employees, including certificated and non-certificated staff provided by SCHOOL and as approved by the Board and its designated representative;
	D. IDO will support the provision of School’s new hire employee orientation, training; onboarding (at the time of hiring) and off-boarding (upon termination). IDO will also coordinate the provision of all State and federally mandated training to SCHOO...
	E. IDO will track leave of absence benefits (including time off, sick days and other leaves) and monitor and provide information on the handling employee work-related injuries in coordination with School’s workers compensation provider pursuant to Sch...
	F. IDO will maintain and recommend revisions to School’s employment policies and employee handbook.
	7. Risk Management.  IDO shall facilitate the School’s selection and maintenance of insurance coverages for School, in amounts that are no less than the minimum levels set by SCHOOL, or mandated by its Charter or applicable law.  However, IDO shall no...

	8. Files and Records.  IDO shall maintain custody and provide ready access to all School files and records relating to the Services. IDO acknowledges that all records, data, communications, and other property of SCHOOL entrusted or loaned to IDO durin...
	9. Reporting Requirements to the Board.  IDO shall provide to the Board an annual year-end report and more frequently as the Board shall reasonably request summarizing the  services and financial support provided, any changes to IDO’s governing docume...
	10. Educational Services
	A. Educational Program:  IDO will work in collaboration with SCHOOL on development and implementation of the Inspire educational model licensed and provided to SCHOOL.  IDO will work with SCHOOL to effectuate any necessary changes to the educational p...
	B. Professional Development:  IDO will provide the resources and plans to the SCHOOL staff to enhance their effectiveness in delivering the Inspire educational program, and to help the School’s students master educational standards established by the ...
	C. Testing and Assessments:  IDO will assist SCHOOL in the administration of all State required testing and other State mandated assessments, including a series of assessments designed to gauge the Student’s mastery of core concepts and readiness for ...
	D. Student Records Support:  IDO will maintain and support School’s access to and response to requests for SCHOOL’s Student Records in accordance with state, local and federal requirements.
	E. Technology:  IDO will provide a comprehensive Computer Technology and IT infrastructure solution to SCHOOL and its employees which shall include procuring, imaging, delivering, repairing, replacing, warehousing and collection of such Computer Techn...
	F. Meeting the need of Special Needs Students:  IDO will support SCHOOL’s employees in the development of Special Education Protocols and educational materials for the provision of Special Education Services, consistent with the requirements and polic...
	G. Instructional Materials:  IDO shall develop curriculum and coordinate the purchase of the curriculum and instructional materials to be used by SCHOOL, as approved by the Board, in order to offer interesting and challenging curricula for the purpose...
	H. Enrichment Services:  IDO will maintain a system for ordering and providing risk management review and tracking of vendor contracts and their compliance with School policies, and coordinating Schools’ teachers’ selection, approval and provision and...
	11. Marketing/Branding:  IDO will provide SCHOOL the design of all Inspire-branded materials, including promo items, website design, collateral, wearables, print assets including tri-fold brochures, rack cards, newsletters, event fliers, graduation pr...
	12. Community Relationships:  IDO shall coordinate SCHOOL’s community relationships, including with local non-profits, governmental agencies, local businesses and higher education institutions in concert with the Board.
	13. Student Enrollment and Information:  IDO will provide and maintain School’s enrollment system portal, and serve as the liaison between SCHOOL and the Student Information System Provider; perform quality data tracking, including but not limited to ...
	14. School Calendar:  To the extent necessary or requested by SCHOOL, and consistent with the School’s charter and policies, IDO will assist with the development of calendars suitable for SCHOOL’s purposes, including for funding qualification and maxi...
	Attachment B



	Inspire District Office - Service Agreement - Mission Vista.pdf
	EDUCATION AND SUPPORT SERVICES AGREEMENT  BETWEEN INSPIRE DISTRICT OFFICE  AND MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
	ATTACHMENT A DESCRIPTION OF IDO SERVICES
	1. Public Relations and IP. IDO shall provide public relations services to SCHOOL, as determined by further mutual agreement of the Parties, in order to advance the shared mission of IDO and SCHOOL as set forth above in the recitals to this Agreement....
	2. Financial Services (Accounting, Bookkeeping, Payroll, Procurement, and other Financial Functions). Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the budget approved by Board of School and approval by School’s designated representative, IDO shall be respo...
	A. Preparation and submission to School and, as required by law, all required State financial reports, including but not limited to annual audited financial reports, annual budgets, 1st and 2nd Interims, unaudited actual reporting, P1 and P2 reporting...
	B. Coordination and processing of payments of SCHOOL’s expenditures:
	a. Management of cash balances to cover SCHOOL’s payroll and payments to vendors, pursuant to School policy;
	b. Coordination and processing of SCHOOL’s payroll and tax reporting and other filings in accordance with the specific procedures and guidelines as designated and updated from time to time by SCHOOL personnel;
	c. Coordination and management of the annual independent audit of SCHOOL.  The cost of the audit will be the sole expense of SCHOOL.
	d. Assistance with Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) financial reviews, when applicable.
	e. Coordination and management of all facility, vehicle and equipment leasing agreements, including holding title or leasehold on behalf of School, with School’s consent;
	f. Assistance and monitoring of spending and general administration of grant funding in compliance with specific terms and conditions of said grants and participation in any audits related thereto; and,
	g. Identification and management of external financing, as needed.
	h. Recommending, negotiating and managing leases as approved by the Board.

	C. Subcontracting.  IDO may subcontract with Charter Impact or other backoffice service provider to provide any of these services, with consent of School provided that no such subcontract permitted hereunder shall relieve or discharge IDO from any obl...
	3. Board Facilitation.  IDO shall coordinate the scheduling of and documentation of meetings of the Board, including the preparation of agendas, preparation of minutes per Board policy. IDO will coordinate annual Board member training to include train...
	4. Strategic Planning and Implementation. IDO will support SCHOOL in the development of key long term goals for SCHOOL in meeting its academic, funding, reporting, accountability, growth requirements, development and preparation of charter renewals, m...
	5. SCHOOL Policies.  IDO shall ensure ready access to SCHOOL policies by all personnel, including, policies, rules, regulations, procedures, personnel, and budget.  For the avoidance of doubt, SCHOOL retains sole and complete control over the foregoin...
	6. Human Capital Management.  Under the supervision and direction of School, and subject to the authority of the Board and School management to employ, discipline or dismiss all persons employed by School:
	A. IDO shall support School’s management and Board in recruiting, screening and recommending certificated and non- certificated individuals for employment by SCHOOL;
	B. IDO shall also provide pre-employment screening services, verify, check and monitor credentials for certificated staff;
	C. IDO shall coordinate and administer health, life and retirement benefits for SCHOOL employees, including certificated and non-certificated staff provided by SCHOOL and as approved by the Board and its designated representative;
	D. IDO will support the provision of School’s new hire employee orientation, training; onboarding (at the time of hiring) and off-boarding (upon termination). IDO will also coordinate the provision of all State and federally mandated training to SCHOO...
	E. IDO will track leave of absence benefits (including time off, sick days and other leaves) and monitor and provide information on the handling employee work-related injuries in coordination with School’s workers compensation provider pursuant to Sch...
	F. IDO will maintain and recommend revisions to School’s employment policies and employee handbook.
	7. Risk Management.  IDO shall facilitate the School’s selection and maintenance of insurance coverages for School, in amounts that are no less than the minimum levels set by SCHOOL, or mandated by its Charter or applicable law.  However, IDO shall no...

	8. Files and Records.  IDO shall maintain custody and provide ready access to all School files and records relating to the Services. IDO acknowledges that all records, data, communications, and other property of SCHOOL entrusted or loaned to IDO durin...
	9. Reporting Requirements to the Board.  IDO shall provide to the Board an annual year-end report and more frequently as the Board shall reasonably request summarizing the  services and financial support provided, any changes to IDO’s governing docume...
	10. Educational Services
	A. Educational Program:  IDO will work in collaboration with SCHOOL on development and implementation of the Inspire educational model licensed and provided to SCHOOL.  IDO will work with SCHOOL to effectuate any necessary changes to the educational p...
	B. Professional Development:  IDO will provide the resources and plans to the SCHOOL staff to enhance their effectiveness in delivering the Inspire educational program, and to help the School’s students master educational standards established by the ...
	C. Testing and Assessments:  IDO will assist SCHOOL in the administration of all State required testing and other State mandated assessments, including a series of assessments designed to gauge the Student’s mastery of core concepts and readiness for ...
	D. Student Records Support:  IDO will maintain and support School’s access to and response to requests for SCHOOL’s Student Records in accordance with state, local and federal requirements.
	E. Technology:  IDO will provide a comprehensive Computer Technology and IT infrastructure solution to SCHOOL and its employees which shall include procuring, imaging, delivering, repairing, replacing, warehousing and collection of such Computer Techn...
	F. Meeting the need of Special Needs Students:  IDO will support SCHOOL’s employees in the development of Special Education Protocols and educational materials for the provision of Special Education Services, consistent with the requirements and polic...
	G. Instructional Materials:  IDO shall develop curriculum and coordinate the purchase of the curriculum and instructional materials to be used by SCHOOL, as approved by the Board, in order to offer interesting and challenging curricula for the purpose...
	H. Enrichment Services:  IDO will maintain a system for ordering and providing risk management review and tracking of vendor contracts and their compliance with School policies, and coordinating Schools’ teachers’ selection, approval and provision and...
	11. Marketing/Branding:  IDO will provide SCHOOL the design of all Inspire-branded materials, including promo items, website design, collateral, wearables, print assets including tri-fold brochures, rack cards, newsletters, event fliers, graduation pr...
	12. Community Relationships:  IDO shall coordinate SCHOOL’s community relationships, including with local non-profits, governmental agencies, local businesses and higher education institutions in concert with the Board.
	13. Student Enrollment and Information:  IDO will provide and maintain School’s enrollment system portal, and serve as the liaison between SCHOOL and the Student Information System Provider; perform quality data tracking, including but not limited to ...
	14. School Calendar:  To the extent necessary or requested by SCHOOL, and consistent with the School’s charter and policies, IDO will assist with the development of calendars suitable for SCHOOL’s purposes, including for funding qualification and maxi...
	Attachment B






